Williams, Katrina

From: Zogg, Nikole

Sent: Wednesday, May 20, 2020 3:40 PM

To: Kirk Carpenter

Subject: FW: HEPA/UVGI evidence

Attachments: sars_guidance_nydoh.pdf; Air Cleaning Technologies An Evidence-Based

Analysis_ohtas-05-52.pdf; Applications of ultraviolet germicidal irradiation disinfection in health
care facilities- Effective adjunct, but not stand-alone technology_1-s2.0-S0196655310004207-
main.pdf; Inactivation of Viruses on Surfaces by Ultraviolet Germicidal Irradiation. pdf

Hi Kirk,
Here’s the info we provided to Canyon County Jail and later to Caldwell Fire on HEPA and UVGI.
Nikki

From: Roscoe, Clay
Sent: Sunday, March 22, 2020 5:31 PM
To: Zogg, Nikole <Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov>; Aanensen, Jaime <Jaime.Aanensen@phd3.idaho.gov>

Subject: HEPA/UVGI evidence

Summary: Other than recommending that air from AIl rooms be exhausted directly to the outside or be
filtered through HEPA filters before recirculation, the CDC has not given guidance on additional filtration
requirements for general healthcare spaces for SARS-CoV?2.

Background: SARS-CoV?2 is approximately 0.125 micron (range 0.08 - 0.15) in diameter. Respiratory
droplets containing COVID-19 are often larger. These sizes fall within the particle-size range that HEPA
filters capture with extraordinary efficiency: 0.01 micron (10 nanometers) and above. Filters meeting the
HEPA standard must satisfy certain levels of efficiency. Common standards require that a HEPA air filter
must remove—from the air that passes through—at least 99.95% (European Standard) or 99.97%
(ASME, U.S. DOE) of particles whose diameter is equal to 0.3 pm; with the filtration efficiency increasing
for particle diameters both less than and greater than 0.3 pm because HEPA filtration removes airborne
particles in three ways (diffusion, interception and impaction). Many media outlets have incorrectly
stated that HEPA filters don'’t filter below 0.3 micron and therefore can’t capture the new coronavirus.

General considerations for environmental controls for SARS-CoV2:

o Evaluate all central air handling systems to ensure filters have been changed and pressure gauges
have been accurately calibrated

o Consider the purchase of portable HEPA-filtered air scrubbers that can be continuously
monitored for use in temporary isolation rooms or wards. Modifications of these rooms for
temporary use should be overseen by the health system’s infection control department. If portable
HEPA-filtered scrubbers are utilized, ensure that the negative air relationship of these machines
does not adversely impact adjacent spaces. (A thorough evaluation of the HVAC system is
recommended.)

e Evaluate UVGI lights within air handling systems. Not all UVGI lights in air handling systems are
intended for air sterilization. The most common UVGI light in an air handling unit is for coil /drain



pan sterilization to reduce microbial growth. This type of UVGI light is not intended nor can it be
modified to sterilize moving air.

« Review the relative humidity (RH) of patient care areas. Studies have shown spaces with an RH
between 40% and 60% can cut the airborne travel distance of viral droplets and reduce the risk of
healthcare associated infections (HAIs). Not all facilities or locations will have the capacity to
achieve these humidity levels at all conditions, but we recommend it be part of your evaluation
process.

Summary from a review article evaluating utility of HEPA and/or UVGI for removing airborne pathogens:

In-room air cleaners may be used to protect health care staff from air borne infectious pathogens such as
tuberculosis, chicken pox, measles, and dessiminated herpes zoster. Although in-room air cleaners [may
not be] effective at protecting staff and preventing the spread of droplet-transmitted diseases such as
influenza and SARS, they may be deployed in situations with a novel /emerging infectious agent whose
epidemiology is not yet defined and/or where airborne transmission is suspected.

It is preferable that in-room air cleaners be used with a fixed and permanent room placement when
ventilation requirements must be improved and the HVAC system cannot be used. However, for acute
(temporary) situations where a novel/emerging infectious agent presents whose epidemiology is not yet
defined and where airborne transmission is suspected it may be prudent to use the in room air cleaner as
a portable device until mode of transmission is confirmed. To maximize effectiveness, consultation with
an environmental engineer and infection control expert should be undertaken before using an in-room
air cleaner and protocols for maintenance and monitoring of these devices should be in place.




Williams, Katrina

From: Doney, Douglas

Sent: Wednesday, May 27, 2020 4:18 PM

To: Zogg, Nikole; Williams, Katrina; Bowman, Ricky; Aanensen, Jaime; H E Smith; Julius, Carol
Subject: FW: Special Events

Attachments: 2020 Events.docx

FYl all. Here are the dates of events our team has put together for the remainder of 2020. Good luck to us!!!!

Please share with those who need the info as I've not included everyone I’'m sure who would benefit from it.

Doug

From: Berg, Kelly

Sent: Tuesday, May 26, 2020 11:19 AM

To: Froude, Cristina <Cristina.Froude@phd3.idaho.gov>; Doney, Douglas <Douglas.Doney@phd3.idaho.gov>
Subject: Special Events

Here is a current list of possible events for 2020 that may occur. There may be additional ones that are scheduled that
we will discover or events that will end up being rescheduled. Please let me know what further information you may

need.

Thank you,

Kelly Berg, REHS/RS | Consumer Protection Program Senior | Southwest District Health
13307 Miami Lane | Caldwell ID 83607 | ph: 208.455.5418 | fx: 208.455.5405
| kelly.berg@phd3.idaho.gov | Healthier Together | www.swdh.org

i
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This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This message
contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named. If you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy
this email. Please notify the sender immediately if you have received this email by mistake and delete this email from your system. If you are not the intended
recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.




Williams, Katrina

From: Zogg, Nikole

Sent: Friday, June 05, 2020 2:40 PM

To: Aanensen, Jaime; Doney, Douglas; Julius, Carol; Froude, Cristina; D'Orazio, Frances;
Roscoe, Clay; Kiester, Mitch

Subject: Fw: [EXT] FW: 6/3 Follow-Up - Governors Briefing on COVID-19 [External Email]

FYI

[x] =] 5 Nikole Zogg | Director | Southwest District Health

1 13307 Miami Lane | Caldwell ID 83607 | ph: 208.455.5315 | cell: 208.546.8945
" Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov | Healthier Together | www.swdh.org

|
|
1
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From: Carol Moehrle <CMoehrle@phd2.idaho.gov>

Sent: Friday, June 5, 2020 1:51 PM

To: grackow@phd?7.idaho.gov; Iwhalen@phd1l.idaho.gov; Melody Bowyer; mmann@phd6.idaho.gov;
rduke@cdhd.idaho.gov; Zogg, Nikole

Subject: FW: [EXT] FW: 6/3 Follow-Up - Governors Briefing on COVID-19 [External Email]

Sharing

From: Jeppesen, Dave <Dave.Jeppesen@dhw.idaho.gov>

Sent: Friday, June 5, 2020 12:03 PM

To: davidcpatemd@gmail.com; Carolyn Bridges <carolyn@bridges-family.com>; Sherri Ybarra <sybarra@sde.idaho.gov>;
Brian Whitlock <BWhitlock@teamiha.org>; IOEM - Richy, Brad <brichy@imd.idaho.gov>; Hahn, Christine
<Christine.Hahn@dhw.idaho.gov>; Carol Moehrle <CMoehrle@phd2.idaho.gov>; Emily Callihan (ID-GOV
<Emily.Callihan@gov.idaho.gov>; 'Louis Hougaard' <Louis.Hougaard@gov.idaho.gov>; Sara.Stover@gov.idaho.gov;
Shaw-Tulloch, Elke D. <Elke.Shaw-Tulloch@dhw.idaho.gov>; Petroff, Kelly - CO 10th <Kelly.Petroff@dhw.idaho.gov>;
BPmooney09@gmail.com; Ball, Christopher L. <Christopher.Ball@dhw.idaho.gov>

Subject: [EXT] FW: 6/3 Follow-Up - Governors Briefing on COVID-19 [External Email]

[CAUTION: External Email]
Working Group,

Please see the follow up information below from the Whitehouse Briefing call on Wednesday.
Dr. Hahn and Dr. Ball,

Please note the new information about testing.

dave

Dave Jeppesen

Director
Idaho Department of Health & \Welfare



208-334-5500
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From: Mckenzie Macdonald <Mckenzie.Macdonald@gov.idaho.gov>

Sent: Friday, June 5, 2020 11:36 AM

To: Jeppesen, Dave <Dave.Jeppesen@dhw.idaho.gov>; Sara Stover <Sara.Stover@dfm.idaho.gov>; Louis Hougaard
<Louis.Hougaard@gov.idaho.gov>

Subject: FW: 6/3 Follow-Up - Governors Briefing on COVID-19 [External Email]

Some follow-up information from Wednesday’s White House call.

McKenzie MacDonald
Scheduler | Office of Governor Brad Little
phone: (208) 854-3009

mobile: (208) 559-5888

email: mckenzie.macdonald@gov.idaho.gov

From: Pottebaum, Nic D. EOP/WHO <Nicholas.D.Pottebaum@who.eop.gov>

Sent: Friday, June 5, 2020 11:34 AM

To: Pottebaum, Nic D. EOP/WHO <Nicholas.D.Pottebaum@who.eop.gov>

Cc: Hoelscher, Douglas L. EOP/WHO <Douglas.L.Hoelscher@who.eop.gov>; Obenshain, Tucker T. EOP/OVP
<Anne.T.0Obenshain@ovp.eop.gov>; Swint, Zachariah D. EOP/WHO <Zachariah.D.Swint2 @who.eop.gov>; Campana,
Ariella M. EOP/WHO <Ariella.M.Campana@who.eop.gov>

Subject: RE: 6/3 Follow-Up - Governors Briefing on COVID-19

Governors and Senior Staff,

On Wednesday’s briefing, Ambassador Birx referenced an Addendum to the Testing Blueprint: Using
Tests for Diagnosis and Proactive Surveillance. The document is now available here (6-pages).

This document provides additional guidance regarding the optimal deployment and use of
testing formats and testing platforms for both the diagnosis of and proactive surveillance for
COVID-19. In achieving this optimization, certain testing formats and platforms are better suited for
diagnosis, while others are better positioned to enable proactive surveillance (monitoring) within communities
or populations known to be at high-risk of contracting the virus. Accordingly, such optimization is critical to
maximizing the efficacy of States’ testing programs and determining appropriate payment mechanisms. The
considerations for optimizing testing should be reflected in each State’s July through December Jurisdictional
Testing Plans. A Federal peer review panel led by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC), will
assess the quality of States’ plans for using proactive surveillance to complement diagnostic testing in
responding to requests for Federal financial support of their testing initiatives. These requests are due by June
15, 2020.

Documents

e Addendum to the Testing Blueprint: Using Tests for Diagnosis and Proactive Surveillance
(Here; 6-pages)

e Opening Up America Again Testing Blueprint (Here; 11-pages)

Addendum — Areas of Focus
e Diagnosing Active Infection in Individuals




e Using Testing for Proactive Surveillance Including Pooled Testing & Other Options for Proactive
Surveillance Testing
o Developing Innovative Approaches to Support the Reopening of Colleges and Universities

Please share this document with your State Health Official, State Lab Director, State Emergency Manager, and
other relevant State, local, Tribal, and community officials involved in your testing ecosystem.

Thanks,
Nic

From: Pottebaum, Nic D. EOP/WHO

Sent: Wednesday, June 3, 2020 9:40 PM

To: Nic Pottebaum (Nicholas.D.Pottebaum@who.eop.gov) <Nicholas.D.Pottebaum@who.eop.gov>

Cc: Douglas.L.Hoelscher@who.eop.gov; Obenshain, Tucker T. EOP/OVP <Anne.T.Obenshain@ovp.eop.gov>; Swint,
Zachariah D. EOP/WHO <Zachariah.D.Swint2@who.eop.gov>; Campana, Ariella M. EOP/WHO
<Ariella.M.Campana@who.eop.gov>

Subject: 6/3 Follow-Up - Governors Briefing on COVID-19
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THE WHITE HCUSE

Governors and Senior Staff,

Thank you for your efforts in the whole-of-America approach to responding and recovering with a
focus on protecting seniors and other vulnerable Americans.

Readout from the June 3, 2020 Governors Briefing

Today, Vice President Mike Pence led a discussion with the chief executives of approximately 50 States,
territories, and the city of Washington, DC, and the White House Coronavirus Task Force to update our
Nation’s governors on local, State, and Federal COVID-19 response and recovery efforts. To open up the
meeting, Chaplain of the United States Senate, Rear Admiral Barry Black led the group in prayer. The Vice
President assured the Governors that the Administration would honor the memory of George Floyd, justice
would be done, and at a time of civil unrest we would continue to protect the rights, property, and lives of all
our people.

As President Trump has said, the American people expect law and order, and Vice President Pence thanked
those governors who have provided adequate resources to keep America’s communities safe. The briefing
focused on protecting our most vulnerable Americans including nursing home residents and Americans with
underlying health conditions, including those in African American, Hispanic, and Native American
communities.

Vice President Pence led a discussion of best practices from our Nation’s governors on re-opening their States
and communities in a phased-approach while expanding testing, protecting and supporting our most
vulnerable Americans including nursing home residents and expanding healthcare capacity. Protecting
vulnerable seniors in nursing homes is a top priority for the Trump Administration — in fact it was the first ask
that the Vice President made to our Nation’s governors on March 2. Administrator Seema Verma of the Centers
for Medicare & Medicaid Services (CMS) discussed the recently released information to States on survey
activities, CARES Act funding, and enhanced enforcement for infection control deficiencies in nursing homes.
The Vice President and other Federal leaders asked governors and their teams to redouble their efforts to
prioritize the protection of Americans in nursing homes and other long-term care facilities. Our Nation’s
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governors also discussed the unprecedented support President Trump has provided for the National Guard by
extending Title 32 Status for 49 States to respond to COVID-19 and facilitate economic recovery through
August 21, 2020 and continuing the 100% Federal cost share.

Best practices from governors highlighted on today’s briefing included (full list here):

e Governor Greg Abbott of Texas highlighted efforts to inspect over 90% of nursing homes’ infectious
disease protocols and utilizing the Texas National Guard personnel in support of nursing facilities
disinfection.

e Governor Jared Polis of Colorado highlighted efforts by his Care Facility Task Force that has
completed 747 out of 747 infection control surveys nursing homes across Colorado.

e Governor Ron DeSantis of Florida highlighted efforts to distribute personal protective equipment to
nursing homes early on, increasing reimbursement in nursing homes to serve COVID-19 patients, and
deploying a mobile RV unit to test nursing home residents and workers.

Since January 2020, the Trump Administration has led nearly 300 briefings — including 22 governors’
briefings — with over 123,000 State, local, and Tribal participants.

State-Specific PPE & Testing Information

e Abbott ID Now Machines: Prior to today’s call, each State received a list of Abbott ID Now machines
located in their State that are receiving cartridges routinely from Abbott. At Ambassador Birx’s
recommendation, these machines should be deployed from clinical and lab settings (e.g.,
hospitals) to long-term care settings. If your Abbott ID now machines are located in clinical and lab
settings, please deploy to long-term care settings to maximize their use.

e State & County-Level PPE Data: On Monday, each governor and staff received updated (March 1
through May 29) State- and county-specific information on personal protection equipment (PPE) and other
critical supplies being distributed to healthcare providers through the normal commercial supplier
distribution system, which has been bolstered by Project Airbridge and additional commercial supply chain
acquisitions.

e PPE for Nursing Homes: On Monday, each governor and staff received updated information on
personal protection equipment (PPE) delivered to Medicaid and Medicare-certified nursing homes in your
State. This updated information included includes shipping details. FEMA is coordinating two shipments
totaling a 14-day supply of PPE to all 15,400+ Medicaid and Medicare-certified nursing homes in America
to supplement regular supplies. More information here.

ICYMI: On June 1, FEMA Administrator Gaynor sent a letter (here) to the Nation’s Emergency Managers
highlighting the approach to the three-month mark of our Nation’s response to COVID-19 as the 2020 Atlantic
hurricane season officially begins. The letter stresses the importance of all-hazards preparedness in a COVID-
19 environment and the forecast for the 2020 Atlantic hurricane season.

e COVID-19 Pandemic Operational Guidance for the 2020 Hurricane Season (here).

o All-Hazards Preparedness in a Pandemic Exercise Starter Kit (here)

Below, you will find additional information and resources mentioned on today’s briefing call:
e Contacting Your FEMA Regional Administrator & FEMA Letter to Our Nation’s Emergency Managers
e Protecting Nursing Home Residents & Workers
e Extension of Governors’ Use of the National Guard to Respond to COVID-19
COVID-19 Testing & PPE Resources
e CDC Contact Tracing Resources
e Updated Guidance from Treasury on Coronavirus Relief Fund
e Guidance to Help Agriculture Workers During the Coronavirus Pandemic

If you have any additional questions, please reach out to the Office of the Vice President or White House
Intergovernmental Affairs Office.

Thanks,

Nic



Nicholas D. Pottebaum

Special Assistant to the President and Deputy Director

White House Office of Intergovernmental Affairs

0: 202-456-2132 | C: 202-881-7803| E: Nicholas.D.Pottebaum@who.eop.gov

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

Contacting Your FEMA Regional Administrator & FEMA Letter to Our Nation’s Emergency

Managers
The Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) has activated the National Response Coordination

Center (NRCC) 24/7. All requests to the Federal government must be formally communicated by your
State emergency manager to your FEMA Regional Administrator. This is the same process as natural
disasters (e.g., hurricane recovery, flood recovery, tornado recovery, etc.).

Protecting Nursing Home Residents & Workers

On Monday, each governor and staff received a letter from CMS Administrator Verma & CDC Director Robert
Redfield regarding the National Healthcare Safety Network for America’s Medicaid and Medicare-certified
nursing homes. As we look ahead to re-open America, CMS and CDC are taking action and urging States to
keep nursing home residents safe by focusing testing on nursing homes and other vulnerable populations.
States were provided detailed information regarding State-specific data reported from nursing homes. You
can find additional information here. Vice President Pence called on governors to prioritize the safety of
elderly Americans in nursing homes during his first governors’ briefing call on March 2 and has reiterated that
call on several of the governors call since. The letter asks each governor “to focus your testing on
nursing homes and other vulnerable communities.” The Trump Administration is taking the
following actions:

1. CMS is increasing penalties for noncompliance with longstanding infection control
requirements.

2. CMS is ensuring States conduct necessary surveys of nursing homes by tying survey funding to
State Survey Agency performance.

3. CMS is continuing the deployment of its network of Quality Improvement Organizations
to provide an array of assistance and work with governors to target assistance to facilities that have
experience outbreaks.

4. CDCis assessing and providing guidance and technical assistance to improve infection
control practices to nursing homes and State health departments.

Extension of Governors’ Use of the National Guard to Respond to COVID-19

Tuesday, President Trump signed a Memorandum on Governors’ Use of the National Guard to respond to
COVID-19 and to Facilitate Economic Recovery through August 21, 2020. You can find the Presidential
Memorandum here that was announced by President Donald J. Trump (May 28) here. This authority
provides governors continued command of their National Guard forces, while being 100% federally funded
under Title 32, enabling these States to use the additional resources to meet the missions necessary in the
whole-of-America COVID-19 response. Each state’s National Guard is still under the authority of the Governor
and is working in concert with the Department of Defense. In the memorandum, the President called out
additional support needed for vulnerable populations — especially those in nursing homes,
assisted living, long-term care facilities, and other congregate settings — as a focus for
National Guard support, and will reflect this focus in the Mission Assignments to the
Department of Defense. In the days ahead, FEMA will work with the Department of Defense and the States
to extend validated mission assignments to carry out the President’s direction.

COVID-19 Testing & PPE Resources
e« FDA Approved Tests: To date, the FDA has authorize 119 tests under EUAs, which includes 103

molecular tests, 15 antibody tests, and 1 antigen test. You can find the full list here.
o Public-Private Partnership on Community-Based Testing Sites: HHS has partnered with
pharmacy and retail companies to accelerate testing for more Americans in more communities across the

country. More details here.
5



e U.S. Department of Health & Human Services (HHS) is delivering $11 billion in new funding to
support expanded testing capacity for States, territories, and tribes. More information here and you can
find the State-by-State breakdown here.

e Primer on Testing Basics: The FDA issued a Consumer Update, Coronavirus Testing Basics, to provide
information about the different types of tests available and the steps involved in obtaining results. More
details here.

e Swab & Media Options: You can find swab and transport media option and flexibilities here.

e Increase Payment for High-Production Coronavirus Lab Tests: CMS announced Medicare is
doubling payment for certain lab tests that use high-throughput technologies to rapidly diagnose large
numbers of COVID-19 cases. Additional information here. CMS also pays for COVID-19 specimen
collection (additional information here).

e« Reminder — FDA Delegates Authority to States: On March 16, the FDA put in place a policy for
states to take responsibility for tests developed and used by laboratories in their states. States can set up a
system in which they take responsibility for authorizing such tests and the laboratories will not engage with
the FDA. This includes expanding swab options as Colorado as done. More information here.

o Additional Testing Resources: FDA Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) and 24/7 technical
assistance for labs (1-888-463-6332).

CDC Contact Tracing Resources

e COVID-19 Contact Tracing Training: Guidance, Resources, and Training Plan (here)

e COVID-19 Principles of Contact Tracing Booklet (here)

e Health Departments Interim Guidance on Developing a COVID-19 Case Investigation & Contact Tracing
Plan (here)

e Principles of Contact Tracing: CDC’S Basic Principles of Contact Tracing to Stop COVID-19 Transmission
(here)

e Preliminary Criteria for the Evaluation of Digital Contact Tracing Tools for COVID-19 (here)

o Digital Contact Tracing Tools for COVID-19 (here)

Updated Guidance from Treasury on Coronavirus Relief Fund
The Coronavirus Relief Fund (CRF) for State, local, and tribal governments FAQ/guidance can be found here.
It is updated frequently.

Guidance to Help Agriculture Workers During the Coronavirus Pandemic

The Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) and Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CDC) have published guidance with recommended actions for protecting agriculture workers from exposure to
COVID-19. Prevention and control of coronavirus at agricultural worksites, and in shared worker housing and
shared transport vehicles, can present unique challenges. Applying specific disease management and
prevention measures can help reduce the risk of transmitting the virus among workers on farms, ranches, and
other production worksites. More information here.

NOTICE: THIS ELECTRONIC MESSAGE TRANSMISSION CONTAINS INFORMATION WHICH MAY BE
CONFIDENTIAL OR PRIVILEGED. THE INFORMATION IS INTENDED ONLY FOR THE USE OF THE INDIVIDUAL(S)
OR ENTITY(IES) NAMED ABOVE. IF YOU ARE NOT THE INTENDED RECIPIENT, PLEASE BE AWARE THAT ANY
DISCLOSURE, COPYING, DISTRIBUTION, OR USE OF THE CONTENTS OF THIS INFORMATION IS PROHIBITED. IF
YOU HAVE RECEIVED THIS ELECTRONIC TRANSMISSION IN ERROR, PLEASE IMMEDIATELY NOTIFY THE SENDER
AND DELETE THE COPY YOU RECEIVED.

Public Health - Idaho North Central District
F: fb.com/idahopublichealth | T: twitter.com/phincd | W: idahopublichealth.com
Healthy and Prepared People in Our Communities. PHAB Accredited.



IMPORTANT: This e-mail, including attachments, is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act, 18
U.S.C. Sections 2510-2521, is confidential and may be legally privileged or otherwise protected from
disclosure. If you are not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any retention, dissemination,
distribution, or copying of this communication is strictly prohibited. Please reply to the sender that you have
received the message in error, and delete it. Thank you.



Williams, Katrina

From: Sarah Andrade <sandrade@lifeways.org>
Sent: Monday, June 08, 2020 9:31 AM

To: Zogg, Nikole

Subject: Risk Tolerance, Staff and COVID

Good Morning Lifeways,

Thank you for showing up brave and strong wherever you are showing up this morning!

As we look to phase back into the office, | know that leaders across our organization are having some
interesting conversations with staff members around what this looks like for them individually. One of the
places that | am noticing some particular difficulty is around a weird guilt or shame related to choosing to
maintain working from home or needing accommodations based on individual circumstances. It's no wonder
that this has developed with the politically charged and value based debates that are going through virtually
every media outlet available to them. | think that we may have an opportunity to remove some of this shame
by removing their need to indicate their "level of comfort" or "fear related to returning/infection" and talk
about the concept of risk tolerance.

| think that many of us are familiar with risk tolerance as it relates to financial planning and/or investing or
perhaps in project management, but it isn't widely discussed as it relates to an individual. In addressing trauma,
a common approach to gauging where a client is at is to identify their the parameters of their Window of
Tolerance. The Window of Tolerance is the optimal zone of arousal where we are able to manage and thrive in
our life. When we find ourselves outside of our window, our nervous system responds by kicking us into survival
mode, resulting in hyper or hypo arousal. As both a blessing and a curse, this window does not have permanent
boundaries and will narrow or widen at different times throughout our life.

Risk tolerance is similar to a window of tolerance, in that it can both dictate the behaviors we impart
unconsciously to others and also rather subjective and easily justified. Risk tolerance is formed based on what
we personally perceive as societal risks and benefits. We assume that everyone has a similar perception (or
should) and can feel angry or hurt if they are not.

| like this metaphor from Dr. Evelin Decker,

“I use a backpack as a metaphor to explain the concept of risk tolerance: the more equipment (risks and
precautions) you carry, the slower you move (lower tolerance), but the more likely you are to survive if you get
lost in the woods (get infected). The less you carry, the faster you move (high tolerance) but the more likely you
will be in need if you get lost.

People living in a high rise building in New York City will have a different risk tolerance than people in a farm
community in rural Oregon. The more someone is at risk of disease and death due to where they live, their
health, pre-existing conditions, economic status, race, or age, the lower their risk tolerance. Others feel that
they have less to lose if they get sick, and are willing to take on more risks. One cannot know everyone’s level of
vulnerability who we come in contact with. Essential workers and those they care for have died due to others’
inadvertent exposure.”

For COVID-19, | have heard some very charged language related to levels of comfort. In communicating how
comfortable a person may be in going to the grocery store, it’s difficult for another individual to quantify or
relate something like a window of tolerance. Because risk tolerance is derived from somewhat of a standard
formula, it offers us a language free from labels or value, to share where an individual is at in terms of his or her
readiness for certain tasks or activities. It allows us the language necessary to be clear and conscious with with
our choices.



“Your personal risk tolerance is yours alone and cannot be imposed on anyone else without their clear verbal
understanding and agreement. As risk tolerance increases, so does the potential harm to others. You are
responsible for protecting others from yourself, otherwise that is a consent and boundary violation."

I have also included Dr. Dacker’s rubric, which | believe that we can use to start having conversations that are
productive and moving toward understanding and safety planning alongside our teams.



Risk Tolerance

The higher the risks, the heavier the backpack, the lower the toleronce
Evelin Docker 2020
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Thank you,
Sarah

Sarah Andrade, LCSW | Idaho Outpatient Clinical Director
sandrade@lifeways.org |Lifeways Inc. |www.Lifeways.org
208-454-2766 ext. 737 work | 208-454-2726 fax

Important: This letter and any attachments may contain confidential information subject to protection under the Federal Standards for Privacy of
Individually Identifiable Health Information which prohibit you from making any further disclosures of this information (e-CFR formally known as 45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164 and 42 CFR, part 2). If you or your organization is a “Covered Entity” under the above mentioned regulations, you are
obligated to treat such information in a manner consistent with these regulations. If this letter and its attachments were sent to you in error, you
are prohibited from utilizing or disseminating this information. Please immediately destroy it from all locations where it might be stored and

email complianceofficer@lifeways.org or call 541-889-9167 advising that you have done so. We appreciate your cooperation.




Williams, Katrina

From: Zogg, Nikole

Sent: Monday, June 15, 2020 7:41 AM

To: Williams, Katrina; Doney, Douglas

Subject: Fw: MCHD Update: Stay Safe at Home and at Work

Attachments: 6-14-20 Stay Safe at Home and at Work Press Release.pdf; 6-14-20 Ontario COVID-19
Testing Flyer.pdf; 6-4-20 Nyssa COVID-19 Testing Flyer.pdf;, 6-4-20 Vale COVID-19 Testing
Flyer.pdf

FYI

E‘] =] | Nikole Zogg | Director | Southwest District Health

| 13307 Miami Lane | Caldwell ID 83607 | ph: 208.455.5315 | cell: 208.546.8945
Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov | Healthier Together | www.swdh.org

From: Sarah E. Poe <Sarah.Poe@malheurco.org>
Sent: Sunday, June 14, 2020 6:37 PM
Subject: MCHD Update: Stay Safe at Home and at Work

Community Partners,

Two new COVID-19 cases were reported today in Malheur County. It is important for everyone to stay vigilant and
reduce the risk of COVID-19 to their family and those who are most vulnerable in our county. To protect the health of all,
we recommend healthy habits that can slow the spread of COVID-19. Please share the information attached in the “Stay
Safe at Home and at Work Press Release” to find more on important prevention steps, and guidance for employers,
agricultural workers, and testing. Help us flatten the COVID-19 curve.

Please also share the Drive-Up Testing flyers attached. Testing eligibility has expanded to increase the number of people
we can test. Encourage anyone with symptoms or anyone without symptoms who are in the following groups to be
tested:

e Close contacts of a person with COVID-19

e People exposed to COVID-19 in congregate setting

e Migrant/seasonal agricultural workers upon arrival in Oregon

e People who identify as Black, African-American, Latino, Latina, Latinx, American Indian/Alaska Native, Asian,

Asian-American or Pacific Islander
e People who identify as having a disability
e People whose first language is not English

Thank you for your support and continued alertness. Call our office (541-889-7279) or my cell (208-501-5966) if you have
questions or ideas.

Best,
Sarah

Sarah Poe, Director



Malheur County Health Department
www.malheurhealth.org

1108 SW 4" Street
Ontario, Oregon 97914
Office: 541-889-7279 x127
Mobile: 208-501-5966
sarah.poe@malheurco.org




Williams, Katrina

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Deborah Kling <dkling@cityofnampa.us>

Tuesday, June 23, 2020 2:15 PM

Zogg, Nikole

FW: UPDATED (Mayor Kling letter to Nampa businesses)
04-30-20-CDH-SWDH-Food-Establishment-Guidance-COVID.pdf; stage4-protocols-bars-
breweries-wineries-distilleries-nightclubs.pdf; stage4-protocols-restaurants.pdf; Letter from
Mayor Kling June 2020 AB.pdf

From: Teresa Hewitt <hewittt@cityofnampa.us>
Sent: Tuesday, June 23, 2020 10:20 AM
To: Joe Huff <huffj@cityofnampa.us>; Jason Kimball <kimballj@cityofnampa.us>; Jay Snyder <snyderj@cityofnampa.us>;

Beth Ineck <ineckb@cityofnampa.us>

Cc: Amy Bowman <bowmana@cityofnampa.us>; Joe Huff <huffi@cityofnampa.us>

Subject: UPDATED (Mayor Kling letter to Nampa businesses)

Good morning,

Mayor Kling has asked me to forward these documents for printing and distribution.

She has asked that each business receives a copy of her letter and the corresponding guideline (restaurant or bar). Jay, |
understand you will be distributing these to the downtown businesses and Jason, | understand the police will distribute
to the bars and any other business you deem necessary.

Please let me know if you have any questions.

Best Regards,

T.J. Hewitt

Executive Assistant to the Mayor
City of Nampa

0:208.565.5288, C: 208.565.7625
Like us on Facebook

NAMPAR ay



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
Testing Flyer.pdf; 6-4-20 Nyssa COVID-19 Testing Flyer.pdf; 6-4-20 Vale COVID-19 Testing
Flyer.pdf

FYI

E] | ’ Nikole Zogg | Director | Southwest District Health

} 13307 Miami Lane | Caldwell ID 83607 | ph: 208.455.5315 | cell: 208.546.8945
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

1108 SW 4™ Street

Ontario, Oregon 97914

Office: 541-889-7279 x127

Mobile: 208-501-5966
sarah.poe@malheurco.org




Williams, Katrina

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Hi Kim,

Zogg, Nikole

Monday, June 15, 2020 2:33 PM

Beckley, Kimberly

RE: Summer School Plans for Endorsement
WeiserSchoolDistrictSecondarySummerSchool_15Jun20.pdf;
CaldwellMigrantSummerSchoolProgram_15Jun20.pdf

| have attached endorsement letters for Weiser and Caldwell.

Thank you,
Nikki

From: Beckley, Kimberly

Sent: Monday, June 15, 2020 1:40 PM
To: Zogg, Nikole <Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov>
Subject: Summer School Plans for Endorsement

Nikki,

Both Weiser and Caldwell Migrant Summer school have requested endorsement. Their plans are attached.

Thank you,
Kim Beckley



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

¢ Governor Ron DeSantis of Florida highlighted efforts to distribute personal protective equipment to
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

e All-Hazards Preparedness in a Pandemic Exercise Starter Kit (here)

Below, you will find additional information and resources mentioned on today’s briefing call:
e Contacting Your FEMA Regional Administrator & FEMA Letter to Our Nation’s Emergency Managers
e Protecting Nursing Home Residents & Workers
o Extension of Governors’ Use of the National Guard to Respond to COVID-19
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
o FDA Approved Tests: To date, the FDA has authorize 119 tests under EUAs, which includes 103

molecular tests, 15 antibody tests, and 1 antigen test. You can find the full list here.
e Public-Private Partnership on Community-Based Testing Sites: HHS has partnered with
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

e  Swab & Media Options: You can find swab and transport media option and flexibilities here.

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

e Reminder — FDA Delegates Authority to States: On March 16, the FDA put in place a policy for
states to take responsibility for tests developed and used by laboratories in their states. States can set up a
system in which they take responsibility for authorizing such tests and the laboratories will not engage with
the FDA. This includes expanding swab options as Colorado as done. More information here.

e Additional Testing Resources: FDA Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) and 24/7 technical
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

Sent: Tuesday, June 23, 2020 2:23 PM

To: Doney, Douglas

Subject: FW: UPDATED (Mayor Kling letter to Nampa businesses)

Attachments: 04-30-20-CDH-SWDH-Food-Establishment-Guidance-COVID.pdf; stage4-protocols-bars-

breweries-wineries-distilleries-nightclubs.pdf; stage4-protocols-restaurants.pdf; Letter from
Mayor Kling June 2020 AB.pdf

FYl —well, I guess it was more like a motivation letter with our guidance. | suppose that is a good thing. It should be easy
for us to remind, educate, and consult with our bars and bar/restaurant establishments.

Thank you,
Nikki

From: Deborah Kling [mailto:dkling@cityofnampa.us]

Sent: Tuesday, June 23, 2020 2:15 PM

To: Zogg, Nikole <Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov>

Subject: FW: UPDATED (Mayor Kling letter to Nampa businesses)

From: Teresa Hewitt <hewittt@cityofnampa.us>

Sent: Tuesday, June 23, 2020 10:20 AM

To: Joe Huff <huffi@cityofnampa.us>; Jason Kimball <kimballj@cityofnampa.us>; Jay Snyder <snyderj@cityofnampa.us>;
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

0: 208.565.5288, C: 208.565.7625
Like us on Facebook

NAMPAReay







- SOUTHWEST

.‘ 'Yy
‘ﬁDlSTRlCT HEALTH
May 28, 2020

To Whom it May Concern:

Weiser School District — Migrant Summer Camp has been working in close collaboration
to meet the criteria outlined by the State Board of Education and Southwest District
Health, which utilizes the most up-to-date guidance from the Centers for Disease Control
and Prevention in order to safely operate amid the COVID-19 pandemic.

This letter is to endorse Weiser School District — Migrant Summer Camp in their pursuit
of re-opening during the Spring/Summer of 2020. Weiser School District — Migrant
Summer Camp has reviewed and updated policies and procedures and developed
mitigation strategies to address the level of local community spread of COVID-19,
including intensified cleaning and disinfecting protocols, identification of feasible social
distancing strategies, updated policies for illnesses and absenteeism, plans for short-
term dismissal for positive COVID-19 cases, and identified ways to accommodate needs
of children and families at risk for serious illness from COVID-19 cases. The district has
shown commitment in establishing and maintaining an effective relationship with
Southwest District Health to help address changing circumstances. A full list of
completed criteria is attached to this letter.

At this time, Southwest District Health fully endorses Weiser School District — Migrant
Summer Camp in re-opening in-person, school-based education as defined in their plan.

Respectfully,

T2 sy

Nikole Zogg, PhD, MPH
District Director

Healthier Together
13307 Miami Lane @ Caldwell, ID 83607 @ (208) 455-5300 @ FAX (208) 454-7722



{, -~ SOUTHWEST

»G,DISTRICT HEALTH

June 15, 2020

To Whom it May Concern:

Caldwell Migrant Summer School has been working in close collaboration to meet the
criteria outlined by the State Board of Education and Southwest District Health, which
utilizes the most up-to-date guidance from the Centers for Disease Control and
Prevention in order to safely operate amid the COVID-19 pandemic.

This letter is to endorse Caldwell Migrant Summer School in their pursuit of re-opening
during the Spring/Summer of 2020. Caldwell Migrant Summer School has reviewed and
updated policies and procedures and developed mitigation strategies to address the
level of local community spread of COVID-19, including intensified cleaning and
disinfecting protocols, identification of feasible social distancing strategies, updated
policies for illnesses and absenteeism, plans for short-term dismissal for positive COVID-
19 cases, and identified ways to accommodate needs of children and families at risk for
serious illness from COVID-19 cases. The school has shown commitment in establishing
and maintaining an effective relationship with Southwest District Health to help address
changing circumstances. A full list of completed criteria is attached to this letter.

At this time, Southwest District Health fully endorses Caldwell Migrant Summer School in
opening in-person, school-based education as defined in their plan.

Respectfully,

Nikole Zogg, PhD, MPH
District Director

Healthier Together
13307 Miami Lane @ Caldwell, ID 83607 @ (208) 455-5300 @ FAX (208) 454-7722



STAGE 4: PROTOCOLS FOR BARS, BREWERIES,
WINERIES, DISTILLERIES AND NIGHTCLUBS

June 13 — June 26

Establishments planning to open in Stage 4 or continue in Stage 4 must have a plan in place to mitigate the risk of

spreading the virus that causes COVID-18.

Although plans do not need to be submitted for review or approval, they must comply with existing and applicable
licensing requirements and be available upon request. Nightclub activities that were not allowed in Stage 3 may resume
in Stage 4. While nightclub activities, such as dancing, do not inherently lend themselves to physical distancing, safety of
the employees should be prioritized, and physical distancing and sanitation should be practiced to the extent possible in

the context of the following guidance.

BARS, BREWERIES, WINERIES, DISTILLERIES
AND NIGHTCLUBS SHOULD USE THE FOLLOWING
PROTOCOLS AS GUIDANCE FORTHEIR PLANS TO

OPERATE IN STAGE 4.

Establish protocols to maintain six feet of
physical distance among employees and patrons.
Considerations include:

Limit occupancy as necessary, to maintain six feet
physical distancing

0 Consider establishing a maximum number of
people per square foot to maintain physical
distancing requirements (see example calculator
in Resources section)

Space tables appropriately to keep patrons six feet
apart while seated and while moving in and out of
chairs

Eliminate the use of waiting areas and standing areas

Space seating at counters and bars at least six feet
apart between parties while seated

Prohibit counter and bar ordering and have drinks
and food served at tables

o If this is not feasible, consider appropriate
distancing and protective measures for employee
safety (e.g. use of sneeze guards, distancing
markings on the floor, electronic ordering, etc.)

0 Make sure employees and patrons maintain at
least a six-foot distance when waiting in line for
entrance to the establishment

0 Forestablishments using employees to check
identification or collect cover charges, limit
employee exposure by requiring face coverings
and gloves; ensure patrons standing in line are
waiting at least six feet apart

If live and other entertainment is offered, that

may create a congregation of patrons around the
entertainment (e.g. dancing or standing front of the
stage) consider the provision of a barrier between
the patrons and the entertainment to keep at least a
six-foot distance

CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE
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" June 13 - June 26

Establish protocols to reduce the risk of spread

of the COVID-19 virus by training employees on
cleaning and disinfection procedures, and protective
measures. Consider the following:

Dedicate certain staff members to disinfection of high
contact surfaces throughout the establishment and
disinfection of tables between parties

Refrain from using pre-set tableware if food is served
Refrain from refillable drinks

Make sure grawlers and refillable or reusable
containers are cleaned prior to refilling

Verify ware-washing machines are operating at the
required wash and rinse temperatures and with the
appropriate sanitizers each day

Require all employees in contact with patrons to
wear cloth face coverings and gloves during their
shift and change gloves after touching patron items

Make sure to disinfect frequently any pool tables,
shuffle boards, darts, bag toss and other games being
used and if this is not feasible consider eliminating
their use

Update employee illness policy and provide COVID-19
staff training.

Monitor employee health. Considerations might
include:

0 Screen employees for fever and symptoms before
every shift

— Check temperature with non-contact
thermometer:; if no fever, which is a
temperature greater than 100.4°F, or
COVID-18 symptoms are present, require
workers to self-monitor and report onset of
symptoms during their shift

o Inform staff regarding when they should stay
home or when they should [eave work due to
illness

0 Make sure a procedure is in place for contacting
your local public health district if an employee is
diagnosed with COVID-19

1" STAGEk:PROTOCOLS FOR BARS, BREWERIES,
000 WINERIES, DISTILLERIES AND NIGHTCLUBS

Identify other measures to reduce exposures to
COVID-19 such as:

Post signs on the front door or window that states
that any customer, who has a fever or other COVID-19
symptoms, must refrain from entering

Provide signage throughout the establishment
reminding patrons to practice physical distancing and
proper hand hygiene

Make hand sanitizer available throughout the
astablishment

Limit the number of patrons in the facility at one time

Direct the flow of traffic in the establishment to
maximize space between people (e.g. lines marked on
the floor)

Use signage and barrier protection to limit movement
and maintain distancing

Limit employee and patron contact by using
contactless payment methods when possible

Keep photo booths or other novelty attractions
closed (if applicable)

Use abservation personnel to make sure distancing
and disinfection procedures are followed

Dedicate staff to maintain sanitation for high touch
surfaces

Eliminate self-serve snacks and water
Close drinking fountains

Create low decibel environments to prevent people
from needing to talk loudly, shout or lean close to
hear if not providing live or other entertainment

Improve ventilation, if possible, by opening windows
and doors or adjusting the HVAC system

CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE



Resources:

Food and Drug Administration. Food Safety and the
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19). Available at:

https:/www.fda.gov/food/food-safety-during-emergencies/
food-safety-and-coronavirus-disease-2019-covid-19

National Restaurant Association. COVID-19 Reopening
Guidance.

https:/restaurant.org/Downloads/PDFs/business/COVID19-
Reopen-Guidance.pdf

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Interim
Guidance for Businesses and Employers to Plan and Respond
to Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19):

https:/www.cdc.qov/coranavirus/2018-ncov/community/

guidance-business-response.html

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Reopening
Guidance for Cleaning and Disinfecting Public Spaces,
Workplace, Businesses, Schools and Homes: https:/
www.cde.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/reopen-

guidance.html

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Guidance on
Disinfecting:

https:/www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2013-ncov/community/
disinfecting-building-facility.html

Environmental Protection Agency list of COVID-19 effective
disinfectants:

https:/www.epa.gov/pesticide-registration/list-n-
disinfectants-use-against-sars-cov-2

Calculator to estimate the maximum number of people per
square footage:

https:/www.banquettablespro.com/social-distancing-room-
space-calculator



. STAGEL:PROTOCOLS FOR RESTAURANTS

REBOUNDS Sma | [0 EESTERE

Restaurant dining rooms and patios in operation in Stage 4 should continue to operate under the plans submitted to the
local public health districts and use the following protocols. Restaurants previously closed and planning to open in Stage
4, must have a plan in place to mitigate the risk of spreading the virus that causes COVID-19.

Plan templates are available to retail food establishments to assist in outlining plans for reopening dining areas. Templates
are available from the local public health districts and foodsafety.idaho.gov, along with industry and public health
guidance.

Reopening plans must be submitted to the local public health district, but they do not require approval prior to resuming
dining operations. Inspections will not be required. However, restaurants should have their reopening plan available during
routine inspections, enforcement inspections, pre-opening inspections, and food illness investigations. Restaurants will be
expected to adhere to the plan submitted and base the plan on recommendations and guidelines provided by the Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention and the Food and Drug Administration. Restaurants are encouraged to make their plans
available to the public.

RESTAURANTS SHOULD USE THE FOLLOWING
PROTOCOLS AS GUIDANCE FORTHEIR PLANSTO
OPERATE IN STAGE 4.

Establish protocols to maintain six feet of - Verify ware-washing machines are operating at the
physical distance among employees and patrons. required wash and rinse temperatures and with the
Considerations might include: appropriate sanitizers each day
Limit occupancy as necessary to maintain six feet - Require all employees in contact with patrons to
physical distancing wear cloth face coverings and gloves during their

Space tables appropriately apart to keep patrons shift and change them after touching patron items

six feet apart while seated and moving in and out of - Recommend all employees in the dish washing room
chairs to wear face shields in addition to face coverings and
gloves

Reduce the use of waiting areas and lohbies as
feasible - Update employee illness policy and provide COVID-19

Continue to kesp playground areas closed staff training. Considerations might include:

Monitor employee health by screening employees for

Limit employee and patron contact by using fever and symptoms hefore every shift

a reservation or call ahead madel and using

contactless payment methods when possible o Check temperature with non-contact
thermometer; if no fever, which is a temperature
Establish protocols to reduce the risk of spread greater than 100.4°F, or COVID-19 symptoms are
of the COVID-19 virus by training employees on present, require workers to self-monitor and
cleaning and disinfection procedures, and protective report onset of symptoms during their shift

MARAIFSS-GUEIdDRMC ol ing: Inform staff regarding when they should stay home or

Dedicate certain staff members to disinfection of when they should leave work due to illness
high contact surfaces throughout the establishment

and disinfection of tables between parties Make sure a procedure is in place for contacting

your local public health district if an employee is
Refrain from using pre-set tableware diagnosed with COVID-18

Clean and disinfect coolers, to-go containers, and
delivery vehicles often

CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE
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Identify how close interactions with patrons will be
limited. Considerations might include:

Offer online, digital, or phone-in ordering
Offer takeout or delivery service

Establish hours of operation for patrons at high-risk
of severe disease

Limit the number of patrons in the restaurant at one
time

Direct the flow of traffic in the restaurant to maximize
space between people (e.g., lines)

Use signage and barrier protection to limit movement.

and maintain distancing

Consider other strategies such as requiring non-
cash transactions, using disposable menus or menus
that can be disinfected and increasing ventilation
throughout the restaurant.

Resources:

Food and Drug Administration. Food Safety and the
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19). Available at:

https:/www.fda.gov/food/food-safety-during-

emergencies/food-safety-and-coronavirus-disease-
2019-covid-19

Food and Drug Administration. Best Practices for Retail
Food Stores, Restaurants, and Food Pick-Up/Delivery
Services During the COVID-18 Pandemic.

https:/www.fda.qov/food/food-safety-during-
emergencies/best-practices-retail-food-stores-

restaurants-and-food-pick-updelivery-services-during-
covid-19

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. What
Grocery and Food Retail Workers Need to Know about
COVID-19. Availahle at:

https:/www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/

organizations/grocery-food-retail-workers.html

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention. Interim
Guidance for Businesses and Employers to Plan and
Respond to Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19).

https:/www.cdc.gov/coronavirus/2019-ncov/community/
guidance-business-response.html

National Restaurant Association. COVID-19 Reopening

Buidance.

https:/restaurant.org/Downloads/PDFs/business/
COVID19-Reopen-Guidance.pdf
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June 23, 2020

To Our Valued Nampa Businesses:

Thank you for persevering through these difficult times with understanding,
professionalism and thoughtfulness towards our community. | appreciate your
efforts in adhering to the Southwest District Health guidelines established to help
protect your customers from the spread of the coronavirus.

The recent outbreak in Ada County, specifically at the bars, is a reminder of how
quickly the virus can spread. We do not want this to happen in Nampa and it’s
going to take all of us working together to protect our community. While we
hope these cases are not indicative of a larger spike to come, we must dll
remain diligent and continue taking steps to keep our customers and
community safe.

As Ada County returns to Stage 3 and bars are being asked to close during this
time, we know you will join us in doing all we can to protect Nampa residents
and businesses by following best practices. As a reminder, coronavirus can enter
your business via employees or customers; therefore, we encourage you to
follow both employer and general wellness guidelines.

Additionally, remember to practice physical distancing and encourage
employees and customers to wear face coverings/masks. State epidemiologist
Dr. Christine Hahn was recently quoted as saying, “The science is clear. The risk
of transmission from a person who doesn't know they are carrying the virus drops
fo 1.5% from 70% if both people in a face-to-face encounter are protecting their
faces.”

Attached please find the guidelines for both bars and restaurants; we ask you to
please review them with all of your employees.

Thank you for helping us achieve a safe and healthy community where we all
can prosper.

\\hbbu%h N

MAYOR DEBBIE KLIN%




Williams, Katrina

From: Zogg, Nikole

Sent: Tuesday, June 23, 2020 2:41 PM

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

How about now?

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

NAMPAReady




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

El | 1 Nikole Zogg | Director | Southwest District Health

| 13307 Miami Lane | Caldwell ID 83607 | ph: 208.455.5315 | cell: 208.546.8945
Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov | Healthier Together | www.swdh.org

i

]
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

¢ People exposed to COVID-19 in congregate setting

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




NYSSA COVID-19

FREE DRIVE UP TESTING
PRUEBA GRATIS DESDE SU AUTO

Wednesday: June 10, July 8, August 12
10 a.m. to 2 p.m. LDS Chutrch 1309 Park Ave, Nyssa

Miércoles: 10 de Junio, 8 de Julio, 12 de Agosto
10 a.m. a 2 p.m. Iglesia de los Mormones 1309 Park Ave, Nyssa

Do you live or work in Malheur County?

¢Vive o trabaja en el condado de Malheur?

Qualifications for testing/Calificaciones para la prueba

Symptoms /Sintomas: No symptoms, but part of following
groups/Sin sintomas, pero parte de los

* Cough/Tos ] : siguientes grupos?
» Shortness of Breath/Dificultad para Respirar
: Fex:fer/ Fibte : * Close contacts of a person with COVID-19/Contactos
¢ Chills/ Escaloftnos ; : s ; cercanos de una persona con COVID-19
e Repeated shaking with chills/Sacudidas repetidas « People exposed to COVID-19 in congrepate

Soi escalo.frlos setting /Personas expuestas a COVID-19 en entorno
*  Muscle pain/Dolor muscular congregado
¢ Headache/Dolor de cabeza * Migrant/seasonal agricultural workers upon atrival in
¢ Sore throat/Dolor de garganta : Oregon/Migrantes/trabajadores agticolas a su llegada
* New loss of taste ot smell/Nueva pérdida de a Oregén '

sabor u olfato * People who identify as Black, African-Ametican,

Latino, Latina, Latinx, American Indian/Alaska
Native, Asian, Asian-American ot Pacific
Islander/Petsonas que se identifican como

Brought to you by Malheur County

Health Depaftﬂlent & Emergency afroamericanas, latinas, latinas, latinas, indias
I\/Ianagement / Traido a usted por americanas / nativas de Alaska, asiiticas, asidtico-
= \ ameticanas o islenas del Pacifico
Dep artamento de b?.ll,ld del COﬁda(.flO * People who identify as having a disability /Las
de Malheur Yy Mane]o de Emel‘geﬂCIaS petsonas que se identifican como discapacitadas
malheurhealth‘org m 541-889-7279 * People whose first language is not English /Personas

cuyo primer idioma no es inglés
* First Responders/Primeros respondedot




County of Malheur

HEALTH DEPARTMENT

1108 S.W. 4th Street » Ontario, OR 97914 « (541) 889-7279

June 14, 2020
For Immediate Release

Malheur County Asks Public to Stay Safe at Home and at Work

Two new COVID-19 cases were reported today in Malheur County. It is important for everyone to
stay vigilant and reduce the risk of COVID-19 for themselves and those who are most vulnerable in
our county. To protect your health, the Malheur County Health Department and the Oregon Health
Authority recommend healthy habits that can slow the spread of COVID-19. They are all important
and should all be done together to keep you as healthy as possible. Follow the links provided to
learn more about how to stay safe at home and work.

Follow These Steps

e Physical distancing
o English flyer
o Spanish flyer

e Handwashing & disinfecting
o English flyer
o Spanish flyer

e Wear face coverings
o English flyer

o Spanish flyer
e Make a plan - see more below

Making Your Plan
A basic plan includes:
e Talk to your household members about what to do if someone gets sick.
e  Write down:
o Nearby organizations where you can get help, including health care. Call 211 for
local resources.
o Any medical conditions and medications for each person in your household.
o Phone numbers of essential contacts, like other family members and your health care
provider.
o Your plan for home isolation, including a separate place for people to sleep,
cook/eat, shower and use the toilet in case you or a family member gets sick.
If you need help creating your plan, the CDC has tips:
e COVID-19: Get your home ready. Create a household plan and keep your family and
community safe.
o English guidance

The Malheur County Health Department does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, age,
disability, sex, marital status, familial status, sexual orientation, religion, gender identity, political beliefs or source of
income. Interpreter services and/or other assistive aids are provided at our facility at no cost. Our facilily is accessible.



o Spanish guidance

Employers FAQ

What are the available COVID sick/UI benefits?
What are the rules about providing sick leave to my employees?
How can I navigate resources for my small business?
Learn more about COVID scenarios and benefits with this easy guide
What are the rules about providing sick leave to my employees?
Are there coronavirus safety posters I should display at my workplace?
o Preventing germ spread
o Preventing germ spread (Espaifiol / Spanish
o Symptoms of coronavirus
What if I have to lay people off or temporarily close my business because of issues related to
COVID-19?
Can any programs help minimize my layoffs?
What if I permanently close my business because of COVID-19 coronavirus?
What are the resources that can help me keep my company in business?
How can I protect customers at my restaurant?
What’s the best way to clean my workplace?
What is the guidance from the Oregon Occupational Safety and Health Administration

(OSHA)?

What is the guidance for construction/contractors?

Agricultural Workers

COVID-19 Interim Guidance for Agricultural Workers and Migrant and Seasonal Farm
Workers

Who Is More at Risk? | ;Quiénes son mas vulnerables?

COVID-19 Is a Serious Disease | La COVID-19 es una enfermedad grave

Help Avoid This Deadly Disease | Ayude a evitar esta enfermedad mortal

What To Do if You Get Sick | Qué hacer si se enferma

Your Right to a Safe and Healthy Workplace | Su derecho a un lugar de trabajoseguro y
saludable

Resources for Workers | Recursos para trabajadores

Oregon Housing and Community Services

Oregon Department of Agriculture

ODA Food Security and Farmworker Safety Project

Oregon Department of Education — Resources for Migrants and other non-English speaking
students

Oregon OSHA — How to file a Complaint

Oregon Law Center

Oregon Human Development Corporation

Oregon Child Development Coalition (OCDC)

Pan-American Health Organization COVID-19 educational materials

Migrant Clinicians Network — COVID-19 Resources

National Center for Farmworker Health — COVID-19 Resources

Immigrant Workers Rights and COVID-19

World Health Organization video - How to make a temporary washing station in the field

The Malheur County Health Department does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, age,
disability, sex, marital status, familial status, sexual orientation, religion, gender identity, political beliefs or source of
income. Interpreter services and/or other assistive aids are provided at our facility at no cost. Our facility is accessible.



COVID-19 Testing
e Learn more about testing basics

o English flyer
o Spanish flyer
e (Call your healthcare provider
o Need health insurance? Call the Malheur County Health Department at 541-889-
7279 to see if you qualify for the Oregon Health Plan and get assistance with benefits
available.
o Find out if you qualify for testing at their facility
o The OHA Investigative Guidelines recommend increased testing for those with
symptoms or for people who are part of the following groups:
= Close contacts of a person with COVID-19
= People exposed to COVID-19 in congregate setting
= Migrant/seasonal agricultural workers upon arrival in Oregon
" People who identify as Black, African-American, Latino, Latina, Latinx,
American Indian/Alaska Native, Asian, Asian-American or Pacific Islander
= People who identify as having a disability
= People whose first language is not English
e Visit an upcoming COVID-19 Drive Up Testing Site
o Ontario testing: July 1, August 5
o Nyssa testing: July 8, August 12
o Vale testing: June 17, July 15, August 19

The Malheur County Health Depariment does not discriminate on the basis of race, color, national origin, age,
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

Sent: Wednesday, September 30, 2020 3:52 PM

To: Williams, Katrina

Subject: here's what is in my inbox. many of these emails have attachments...sorry. :( i'll work on my
sent and delete boxes next.

Attachments: Re: Request for Endorsement; RE: public charge; Fw: public charge; RE: public charge; Fw:

WIC Program FFY21 budget and subgrant; RE: June PCHAT Report (6/2020); Fw: MCHD
Update:; Stay Safe at Home and at Work; RE: Summer School Plans for Endorsement; FW.
HEPA/UVGI evidence; FW: Network Report 5/21: 2020 Conference Update, Naloxone Access
during COVID-19, Legal Responses Underlying Re-opening Economies and more; F\W:
Special Events; Fw: Network Report 6/4. Racism as a Public Health Crisis, COVID-19 and
Health Justice Webinar Series, Worker Protections for Reopening Businesses and more; FW:
[EXT] FW: 6/3 Follow-Up - Governors Briefing on COVID-19 [External Email]; Fw: [EXT] FW:
6/3 Follow-Up - Governors Briefing on COVID-19 [External Email]; Risk Tolerance, Staff and
COVID; FW: COVID-19/SARS-CoV-2 Update 6/10; Fw: MCHD Update: Stay Safe at Home
and at Work; FW: UPDATED (Mayor Kling letter to Nampa businesses); FW: UPDATED
(Mayor Kling letter to Nampa businesses); FW: UPDATED (Mayor Kling letter to Nampa
businesses)

1 Nikole Zogg | Director | Southwest District Health

‘ﬂﬁt{ 13307 Miami Lane | Caldwell ID 83607 | ph: 208.455.5315 | cell: 208.546.8945
fi Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov | Healthier Together | www.swdh.org
' TEE

This email and any files transmitted with it are confidential and intended solely for the use of the individual or entity to whom they are addressed. This message
contains confidential information and is intended only for the individual named., If you are not the named addressee you should not disseminate, distribute or copy
this email. Please notify the sender immediately if you have received this email by mistalke and delete this email from your system. If you are not the intended
recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.



Williams, Katrina

From: Mary Ferguson <mary.ferguson@desertsage.org>
Sent: Tuesday, June 02, 2020 9:57 PM

To: Russ Duke

Cc: Zogg, Nikole

Subject: RE: public charge

Hi Russ,

I have not heard of individuals being concerned but that doesn’t mean they’re not. We are designated as a migrant
health center to serve all regardless of their documentation status. Patients are also protected by HIPAA. Nonetheless,
an undocumented community member isn’t going to understand or necessarily have sufficient trust in the system.

Now that you’ve brought this to my attention, | share the same concerns you have. It would be great to have
information or messaging we can add to our materials as we work with migrants in the dairies and fields. If you have
information, it would be both helpful and welcomed.

Thanks.

Mary Ferguson, CEO
208-696-7216

o8 DESERT SAGE

k “ HEALTH CENTERS

Glenns Ferry Health Center, Inc. DBA as:

Desert Sage Health Centers Desert Sage Health Centers Desert Sage Health Centers Desert Sage Health
Centers

Administration Offices Medical/Dental/Behavioral Health Medical Medical

2390 American Legion Blvd, Suite 2 2280 American Legion Blvd. PO Box 266 350 Main Street
Mountain Home, ID 83647 Mountain Home, 1D 83647 Glenns Ferry, 1D 83623-0266 Grand View, 1D 83624

http://desertsagehealthcenters.org/

From: Russ Duke <RDuke@cdh.idaho.gov>

Sent: Monday, June 1, 2020 12:25 PM

To: Mary Ferguson <mary.ferguson@desertsage.org>
Cc: Nikki Zogg, PhD MPH <nikole.zogg@phd3.idaho.gov>
Subject: public charge

WARNING!! This email originated from non Desert Sage Health Center email server. Do not click on any links or open
attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Mary. Is Desert Sage doing any type of messaging around undocumented individuals having access to testing services
for COVID without risk of being considered for “public charge” as a result? | have been getting questions from some
members of our Hispanic community and since we are not a testing site, we really haven’t done anything around

this. The worry is that undocumented individuals won't seek testing because of the risk of the public charge ground of
inadmissibility associated with seeking publicly funded healthcare, which could make for some real challenges in helping



manage the pandemic. Have you received any feedback from the community on this subject? Is there anything we can
do to help support this message? | hope you are doing well. Russ

CENTRAL Russell A. Duke | District Director

o
g DISTRICT | p.208-327-8501 | M. 208-921-3480 | F. 208-327-8500
HEALTH E. RDuke@cdh.idaho.gov | W. cdh.idaho.gov

707 N. Armstrong Pl., Boise, |ID 83704
Connect with us! @ @ @

Excellence | Positive Impact | Partnership | Innovation | Credibility | Humanity

IMPORTANT: The information contained in this email may be privileged, confidential or otherwise protected from disclosure. All persons
are advised that they may face penalties under state and federal law for sharing this information with unauthorized individuals. If you
received this email in error, please reply to the sender that you have received this information in error. Also, please delete this email after
replying to the sender.




Williams, Katrina

From: Russ Duke <RDuke@cdh.idaho.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, June 03, 2020 8:32 AM
To: Zogg, Nikole

Subject: RE: public charge

| like that idea and agree that Twin should be included or at least given the opportunity to participate. Christine
is a aware, but we didn't talk about a plan. Do you want to have Katrina reach out to her and start the
conversation?

( i. Y CENTRAL Russell A. Duke | District Director

DISTRICT | p.208-327-8501 | M. 208-921-3480 | F. 208-327-8500
HEALTH E. RDuke@cdh.idaho.gov | W. cdh.idaho.gov

707 N. Armstrong PI., Boise, ID 83704
Connect with us! ® @ @

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

From: Zogg, Nikole <Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov>
Sent: Wednesday, June 3, 2020 7:53 AM

To: Russ Duke <RDuke@cdh.idaho.gov>

Subject: [External Email]Fw: public charge

?Hi Russ,
Do you want to see if Christine and Katrina can create some messaging that's consistent across the region? |

wonder if we should loop in D5 as well. | imagine some of the workers follow the work and move around the
region during the planting and harvesting season.

We've done some Hispanic radio ads and social media posts, but | don't think its been specific to testing.
Maybe we can pull from some of that language as a place to start.

Nikki

[SWDH-Email]

Nikole Zogg | Director | Southwest District Health

13307 Miami Lane | Caldwell ID 83607 | ph: 208.455.5315 | cell: 208.546.8945
Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov<mailto:Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov> | Healthier Together |
www.swdh.org <http://www.swdh.org/>




From: Mary Ferguson <mary.ferguson@desertsage.org>
Sent: Tuesday, June 2, 2020 9:56 PM

To: Russ Duke

Cc: Zogg, Nikole

Subject: RE: public charge

Hi Russ,

| have not heard of individuals being concerned but that doesn't mean they're not. We are designated as a
migrant health center to serve all regardless of their documentation status. Patients are also protected by
HIPAA. Nonetheless, an undocumented community member isn't going to understand or necessarily have
sufficient trust in the system.

Now that you've brought this to my attention, | share the same concerns you have. It would be great to have

information or messaging we can add to our materials as we work with migrants in the dairies and fields. If you
have information, it would be both helpful and welcomed.

Thanks.

Mary Ferguson, CEO
208-696-7216

[cid:image001.jpg@01D3D307.7D6B1D40]
Glenns Ferry Health Center, Inc. DBA as:

Desert Sage Health Centers Desert Sage Health Centers Desert Sage Health

Centers Desert Sage Health Centers

Administration Offices Medical/Dental/Behavioral

Health Medical Medical

2390 American Legion Blvd, Suite 2 2280 American Legion Blvd. PO Box

266 350 Main Street

Mountain Home, ID 83647 Mountain Home, ID 83647 Glenns Ferry, ID 83623-
0266 Grand View, ID 83624

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

WARNING! This email originated from non Desert Sage Health Center email server. Do not click on any links

2



or open attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Hi Mary. Is Desert Sage doing any type of messaging around undocumented individuals having access to
testing services for COVID without risk of being considered for "public charge” as a result? | have been getting
questions from some members of our Hispanic community and since we are not a testing site, we really haven't
done anything around this. The worry is that undocumented individuals won't seek testing because of the risk
of the public charge ground of inadmissibility associated with seeking publicly funded healthcare, which could
make for some real challenges in helping manage the pandemic. Have you received any feedback from the
community on this subject? Is there anything we can do to help support this message? | hope you are doing
well. Russ

[cid:iimage012.png@01D63928 AE78B670]

Russell A. Duke | District Director

P. 208-327-8501 | M. 208-921-3480 | F. 208-327-8500 E.
RDuke@cdh.idaho.gov<mailto:RDuke@cdh.idaho.gov> | W.

cdh.idaho.gov<https://cdhd.idaho.gov/?utm campaign=0Qutgoing%20Signature&utm source=CDHD Link>
707 N. Armstrong Pl., Boise, ID 83704

Connect with us! [cid:image013.png@01D63928.AE78B670]
<https://www.facebook.com/cdhdidaho/> [cid:image014.png@01D63928.AE78B670]
<https://twitter.com/CDHidaho> [cid:iimage015.png@01D63928.AE78B670]
<https://www.youtube.com/channel/UC4LJ1BM5Jv3zczecnYkXarw >

Excellence | Positive Impact | Partnership | Innovation | Credibility | Humanity

IMPORTANT: The information contained in this email may be privileged, confidential or otherwise protected
from disclosure. All persons are advised that they may face penalties under state and federal law for sharing
this information with unauthorized individuals. If you received this email in error, please reply to the sender
that you have received this information in error. Also, please delete this email after replying to the sender.
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GENERAL REQUIREMENTS:

A

This subgrant is funded by the Women, Infants and Children Grant, CFDA#10.557, WIC
Admin, awarded October 1, 2020 through the US Department of Agriculture, Food and
Nutrition Service with a total award amount as indicated on the Award Letter; and
Breastfeeding Peer Counseling Grant, CFDA#10.557, WIC Breastfeeding Peer Counseling,
awarded October 1, 2019 through the US Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition
Service, with a total award amount of $478,773.

This subgrant supports the Idaho Department of Health and Welfare Strategic Plan and the
Division of Public Health priorities.

Reserved.

The Subgrantee must adhere to the following:

1. Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements to State,
Local and Tribal Governments. www.ecfr.gov - CFR Title 45 Part 75, Subpart C, 75.201.

2. United States Department of Agriculture, Food and Nutrition Service policy statement
located at https://www.fns.usda.gov/wic/policy.

3. The Federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular 2 CFR 200: Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal
Awards, located at https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2017/05/17/2017-
09909/uniform-administrative-requirements-cost-principles-and-audit-requirements-for-
federal-awards.

The Subgrantee must comply with:
1. Idaho WIC Program Policy Manual found at wic.dhw.idaho.gov.

The Subgrantee must receive prior written approval from the Department for any deviations
from the budgeted services or activities. The Subgrantee must be financially responsible for
costs deemed unallowable or unapproved by the subgrant monitor. Unallowable costs are
outlined in Cost/Billing Procedures, paragraph B and summarized in the Idaho WIC Program
Policy Manual.

The Subgrantee must share this scope of work with staff, as applicable, to ensure their
knowledge of the expectations and ability to meet subgrant requirements.

Staffing

1. The Subgrantee must maintain staffing with the knowledge and skills to accomplish
subgrant services and activities. Changes in key staff positions must be reported to the
subgrant monitor within thirty (30) calendar days.

2. The Subgrantee must provide a 1 FTE WIC Coordinator who is a Registered and
Licensed Dietitian or who is qualified to be a Program Manager per the state of Idaho job
classification to manage and administer the WIC Program. When the WIC Coordinator is
unavailable, the Subgrantee must provide a back-up person in charge to oversee
operations.

3. The Subgrantee must provide a Breastfeeding Promotion and Support Coordinator (BFC)
who is the Designated Breastfeeding Expert (DBE). The BFC must be a Registered and
Licensed Dietitian, Registered and Licensed Nurse and/or an International Board
Certified Lactation Consultant to coordinate breastfeeding promotion and support
activities. The BFC must oversee complex breastfeeding challenges, assist with
breastfeeding assessments and follow-up in coordination with other applicable staff,
participate in breastfeeding training activites for all staff, and other responsibilites outlined
in the Idaho WIC Policy Manual.



The Subgrantee must provide Registered and Licensed Dietitian(s) to provide services
such as high-risk nutrition counseling, formula, milk substitute, and/or nutritional
authorization and staff training oversight.

The Subgrantee must provide a Training Lead who is a Registered and Licensed Dietitian
or a WIC Certifier with two (2) years of local agency WIC experience to administer and
oversee ldaho WIC Program staff training per the Idaho WIC Policy Manual.

The Subgrantee must determine and provide an adequate number of trained Certifiers to
determine participant eligibility and provide low-risk nutrition education per the ldaho WIC
Program Policy Manual.

The Subgrantee must have a Breastfeeding Peer Counselor Coordinator to plan, direct,
and manage the general operations of the peer counseling program. The Peer Counselor
Coordinator should have specialized training in lactation management and care such as
an International Board Certified Lactation Consultant (IBCLC) or Certified Lactation
Counselor/Educator (CLC/CLE).

The Subgrantee must have Breastfeeding Peer Counselors to provide breastfeeding
services. Peer Counselors shall be paraprofessionals with previous breastfeeding
experience. When possible, Peer Counselors should be current or previous WIC
participants.

-----

The Subgrantee must have two (2) Vendor Leads to serve as the WIC Authorized Food .
List experts and assist with vendor activities.

Monitoring

1.

The Subgrantee must comply with all programmatic and financial monitoring activities
required by the Department as outlined in this subgrant, including on-site review as
requested, and as outlined in the Subgrant Terms and Conditions, Sections 3-5.
The Subgrantee must have available for review, upon request, any documents, papers,
or other records which are pertinent to this subgrant. The Subgrantee must provide timely
and reasonable access to personnel for the purposes of interview and discussion related
to such documents.
The Subgrantee must respond to all deficiencies pertaining to monitoring of the subgrant
in a timely and appropriate manner.
This subgrant’s risk level has been assessed as high for this subgrant year and is
reassessed annually.
a. Enhanced monitoring will be conducted to include technical assistance calls with the
Division of Public Health.
i. A technical assistance site visit, to include the program and Division of Public

Acknowledging Federal Support:

1.

The Subgrantee must acknowledge federal funds when developing any documents
describing programs or projects, issuing statements, press releases, and requests for
proposals, bid invitations, and other documents funded in whole or in part by federal
funds using the following disclaimer template:

a. Audio-visuals - The production of this [type of audiovisual (motion picture, television
program, etc.] was supported by Grant [number of grant] from [name of Federal
Agency]. Its contents are solely the responsibility of [name of recipient] and do not
necessarily represent the official views of the Department or [name of Federal
Agency].

b. Publications - "This publication was made possible by [number of grant]
from [name of Federal Agency]. Its contents are solely the responsibility of



the authors and do not necessarily represent the official views of the
Department or [name of Federal Agency]. [Local Agency Name] [Date]".
Conference Materials - The Subgrantee must ensure that conference
materials, including promotional materials, the agenda and any websites that
advertise the conference, acknowledge that the federal agency funding this
subgrant provided support for the conference, in whole or in part. The
acknowledgement must be accompanied by the following disclaimer:

i. "Funding for this conference was made possible [in part, if applicable] by [grant
or cooperative agreement number] from [name of Federal Agency]. The views
expressed in written conference materials or publications and by speakers and
moderators do not reflect the official policies of the Department or [name of
Federal Agency] nor does mention of trade names, commercial practices, or
organizations imply endorsement by the U.S. Government. [Local Agency
Name] [Date]".

K. The Subgrantee must comply with subaward and executive compensation reporting
requirements as required by the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act
(FFATA). 2 CFR 170.

L. Reserved

M. Reserved

N. The Subgrantee must ensure that the Assurance and Signature page (attachment 1)
regarding discrimination laws is signed, returned to Subgrantor and adhered to.

Il SUBGRANT SERVICES AND ACTIVITIES

A. General Program/Services Requirements

The Subgrantee must perform services/activities associated with this subgrant in their
geographic service area with specified populations for the term of the Subgrant.

The Subgrantee must maintain a quarterly average caseload level of ninety-seven to one
hundred percent (97-100%) of the authorized participating caseload (including migrant
clients) allocated by the Department’s WIC Office. Authorized caseload is defined as the
caseload number used to calculate funding and is based on the average participation of
prior months.

e

2.

a.

Caseload is reviewed on a quarterly basis. If a Subgrantee is serving less than
ninety-seven percent (97%) of the authorized participating caseload for two (2)
consecutive quarters, a corrective action plan is to be completed and submitted to the
Department's WIC Office by the agency for review and approval. If the local agency
caseload is not met (97-100%) for two (2) consecutive quarters, the Department’s
WIC Office will have the option to amend the subgrant for the next quarter to adjust
caseload and funding according to current performance.

If funding is available, the Department’'s WIC Office may renegotiate, redistribute, and
amend subgrant funds to local agencies that are conducting satisfactory performance
measures in the current federal fiscal year. If a Subgrantee is serving greater than
100% (100%) of authorized participating caseload for two (2) consecutive quarters
and federal funds are available, the Department's WIC Office may redistribute and

amend subgrant funds.

If funds are available in the following federal fiscal year, the Department's WIC Office
may readjust authorized participating caseloads based on the previous federal fiscal
year performance. In addition, amendment requests will not be considered unless
funds are available and the local agency is conducting satisfactory performance
measures.



d.

Authorized Participant Caseload for FFY201 is participants per month.
97% of authorized caseload is participants per month.

B. Program Specific Requirements
1. The Subgrantee must:

a.

b.

comply with WIC program applicant processing time frames according to 7 CFR
246.7. Required time frames are outlined in the Idaho WIC Program Policy Manual.
determine eligibility of persons requesting WIC services by screening individuals in
accordance with procedures set forth in the Idaho WIC Program Policy Manual. Note
that income eligibility criteria change July 1 each year.

perform WIC certification procedures such as categorical and income screening,
measures, and health and nutrition assessments in accordance with the Idaho WIC
Program Policy Manual.

provide information to participants and check for their understanding of WIC program
rules, regulations, WIC-approved foods, and use of food benefits at a participant’'s
initial appointment. A copy of the Rights, Responsibilities and Consent form
(available at wic.dhw.idaho.gov) signed by the participant or participant's
representative must be kept on file to document that this training has taken place.
prescribe a WIGC food package appropriate to participant nutritional risk(s) and
category, and issue food benefits as set forth in the Idaho WIC Program Policy
Manual.

not implement a waiting list or priority restriction of participant categories without prior
written approval from the Department’'s WIC Office.

prohibit smoking in the physical space used to provide WIC services, post “No
Smoking” signs, and ensure signage is consistent with federal WIC regulations.
notify the Department’s Subgrant Monitor, in writing, that an audit has been
conducted within thirty calendar (30) days of the audit. The Subgrantee must submit
a copy of the audit report to the Department’'s WIC Office whenever the audit report
includes a WIC finding.

submit to the Department, on letterhead and prior to purchase, requests to purchase
computers, printers, or capital outlay furniture using WIC funds. The written request
shall include the description of the item, purchase cost, and reason for purchase. The
Department will determine if the request is reasonable and necessary according to
regulation.

notify the Department's subgrant monitor, in writing, of impending closure of any WIC
clinic site at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the actual closing date. The
notification shall include the date of the clinic closure and a plan for serving the
participants impacted by the closure.

notify the Department’'s subgrant monitor, in writing, when opening a new WIC clinic
site at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the actual opening date.

complete nutrition assessment following the Value Enhanced Nutrition Assessment
(VENA) requirements.

provide participant-centered nutrition education to all participants and appropriately
utilize participant focused counseling materials provided by the Department's WIC
Office. Nutrition education will be in accordance with the guidelines set forth in the

Idaho WIC Program Policy Manual. Breastfeeding-weomen-and-children-may-be
certified forone- (1) yearperiods—tnfanis-are-certified-up-to-their first birthday-orsix

offer participants nutrition education contacts as defined in the Idaho WIC Program
Policy Manual.

ensure that the provision of high risk nutrition education/counseling by a Registered
Dietitian to all participants deemed high risk on assessment occurs as often as
necessary per the Idaho WIC Program Policy Manual.

expend at least twenty percent (20%) of the annual local agency’s grant for nutrition
education activities. Guidance for WIC category coding can be found on the ldaho
WIC website,



https://healthandwelfare.idaho.gov/Portals/0/FoodCashAssistance/MWomenlnfantsand
Children/AO_CategoryCoding.pdf.

g. expend at least four percent (4%) of the annual local agency's grant for breastfeeding
promotion, support and education.

r. promote breastfeeding to pregnant and postpartum WIC participants, and refer to and
promote the breastfeeding peer counseling program.

s. provide peer counseling services, when funded or appropriate for the participant
following the requirements of the peer counseling grant. Services must be made
available outside of usual clinic hours and outside of the WIC clinic, but shall also be
available during usual clinic hours and in the WIC clinic.

C. Data/Computer System
1. The Subgrantee must provide adequate computer hardware, software, and IT
maintenance and support to WIC staff in order to effectively deliver WIC services.
2. The Subgrantee must supply and maintain sufficient data transfer lines, servers, routers,
Local Area Network connectivity, and Internet connectivity to WIC staff in order to
efficiently deliver WIC services.

3. The Department will supply eWIC card readers, signature pads and associated supplies
for use by the Subgrantee's WIC staff in the delivery of WIC food benefits.

4. The Department will supply and maintain WIC Information System Program (WISPr)
software for use by the Subgrantee’'s WIC staff for the delivery of WIC services and data
collection. The Department shall provide training and technical support for WISPr usage.
The Subgrantee must utilize eWIC card readers and signature pads, software, and
training provided by the Department to operate the Subgrantee’s portion of WISPr.

5. The Subgrantee must ensure all data elements of WISPr are completed and entered
accurately, as outlined in the Idaho WIC Program Policy Manual.

6. The Subgrantee must maintain an inventory listing of all equipment purchased with WIC
funds as defined in the Idaho WIC Program Policy Manual. This inventory should be
reviewed yearly.

7. The Subgrantee must allow WIC staff to access all training materials including videos
through platforms such as YouTube.

8. The Subgrantee must ensure participant confidentiality, network security and appropriate
staff training and use of software to provide remote services or telehealth. The
Subgrantee must submit procedures in writing for approval 60 days prior to conducting
remote services or telehealth appointments. The procedures must be reviewed and
submitted biannually to the state agency.

D. Vendor Relations
1. The Subgrantee must provide two (2) WIC employees to serve as Vendor Leads who, at
the request of the Department will:

a. assist with vendor activities such as compliance buy investigations, test buys,
pre-authorization, universal product code (UPC) collection, or other vendor visits.

b. attend vendor and food list trainings.

c. follow up on vendor issues or concerns in accordance with the ldaho WIC
Program Policy Manual.

d. actas the food list expert and vendor point person for your agency.

E. Meetings
1. The Subgrantee must ensure all staff who perform WIC services attend mandatory
trainings as determined by the Department.

F. Other
1. Outreach and Referrals



a. The Subgrantee must develop an outreach plan targeting high risk and
underserved populations. The plan shall include specific outreach activities for
the targeted populations and timelines for implementation. At least one (1)
specific outreach activity shall include information about the benefits of WIC
program participation.

b. Any outreach materials developed that address program eligibility must receive
prior approval by the Department before distribution.

c. The Subgrantee must provide program participants with information about
available health and social services to which the participant can be referred.
Mandatory referrals to Special Supplemental Assistance Program (SNAP),
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families (TANF), and Substance Abuse must be
made, as appropriate.

2. The Subgrantee must coordinate WIC staff services with other health and social services
available within the geographic service area, including, but not limited to, immunizations,
voter registration, and breastfeeding support.

M. RECORDS AND DOCUMENTATION

A. The Subgrantee must prepare and submit a Nutrition Education Plan using the form provided
by the Department's WIC Office.

B. The Subgrantee must prepare and submit a Breastfeeding Peer Counseling Plan using the
form provided by the Department’'s WIC Office.

C. The Department's WIC Office will conduct an on-site evaluation of the Subgrantee every two
(2) years to review program activities and service delivery. The evaluation will include a
financial review. The subgrantee must make requested program and financial reports
available to the evaluation team.

1. Upon receipt of the on-site evaluation report, the subgrantee must prepare a written
response within sixty (60) calendar days, including a plan to remedy areas requiring
corrective action.

D. The Subgrantee must maintain on file and make available for review, audit, and evaluation all
criteria used to determine eligibility and certification, including information on geographic
service area and referral.

E. The Subgrantee must maintain complete, accurate, and current accounting of all local, state,
and federal funds received and expended for the purpose of program delivery.

F. The Subgrantee must maintain all records pertaining to WIC operations for a minimum of four
(4) years.

G. The Subgrantee must have a written agreement with any agency or program that will share
participant information including other programs within the health department or tribal
organizations. The agreement shall be in accordance with 7 CFR 246.26(d) and the Idaho
WIC Program Policy Manual.

V. SUBGRANT TRANSITION PLAN:

A. Subgrantee must notify the Department's subgrant monitor, in writing, if WIC services will no
longer be conducted by the agency at least six (6) months prior to the end of WIC services.

B. The Subgrantee must develop and submit a Transition Plan to the Department three (3)
months prior to the end of WIC services. The Transition Plan shall describe the process for
ensuring a smooth transition for WIC participants and services.



. The Subgrantee must return all equipment and supplies purchased with WIC funds as
requested by the Department.

All electronic or hard copies of WIC participant information must be returned to the
Department or destroyed at the Department’s request.



PERFORMANCE-METRICS (section deleted)



COST/BILLING PROCEDURES
COST:
This is a cost reimbursement subgrant.

The Department will pay up to the total amount as outlined below for services satisfactorily provided.

Item Estimated Budget
Personnel $0.00
Operating Expenses $0.00
Indirect Costs $0.00
TOTAL NOT TO EXCEED BUDGET $0.00

A. Reserved.

B. The Subgrantee must ensure that the amount billed for this subgrant only includes costs directly
related to and necessary for the activities in accordance with the intent of the federal grant.

a. Subgrant funds may not be used for research and development, construction,
reimbursement of pre-subgrant costs, purchase of promotional items, personal use items,
conferences or meetings not associated with the subgrant, entertainment costs, lobbying
activities, clinical care, purchase of vehicles, unless otherwise specified.

b. Federal funds shall be used to supplement and not supplant other federal, state, and local
public funds.

C. The Subgrantee must not assign a cost to a federal award as a direct cost if any other cost for the
same purpose in like circumstances has been allocated as an indirect cost.

D. The Subgrantee must apply all costs consistent with policies and procedures that apply uniformly
to both federally-financed and other activities of the Subgrantee.

E. The indirect cost rate applied to this subgrant cannot exceed the current indirect rates on file with
the Department.

F. The Department may reimburse the Subgrantee for reasonable and necessary travel that is
associated with the subgrant.

G. The Subgrantee must ensure that all expenses are allowable, reasonable, necessary, and
charged to the correct WIC category (Client Services, Nutrition Education, Breastfeeding
Promotion and Support, or General Administration) as defined in the Idaho WIC Program Policy
Manual and the OMB.

BILLING PROCEDURES:

The Subgrantee must provide an invoice for the calendar month, PHD Billing Cost Report, Fiscal
Operating Detail Report, and Personnel Detail Report within thirty (30) calendar days after the end of the
billing period.

Invoices will be processed for payment no later than thirty (30) calendar days once all required
documentation is received. Invoices received without the required documentation will be returned to the
Subgrantee for resubmission. No invoice shall be accepted or paid without required documentation.



The invoice must include, but is not limited to:
1. All subgrant services delivered during the billing period, identified by each item as reflected in the
project budget and the total for each
Total amount of direct and indirect costs billed for the billing period
Subgrant number
Dates of service
Subgrantee name, address, phone number and/or email address
Invoice number or unique identifier from the Subgrantee

S

The Subgrantee must submit invoices and reports for services/activities rendered under this subgrant to
the FTP site designated below:

https://sftp.dhw.idaho.gov /DivisionofPublicHealth
Leah Sallas_HC##HHBHE Month Year

CLOSEOUT PERIOD: akiny : 3 :
20419: The subrecipient will be given forty-five (45) calendar days to submit a final invoice to the
Department for costs outlayed during the subgrant performance period. Final invoices received without
backup/supporting documentation or with errors will be returned to the Subgrantee for resubmission.

10



REPORTS

1. Report Description: WIC Program Quarterly Report - The report shall contain a repaort of
program activities.

Report Format: Form provided electronically by the Department
Report Due Date: Thirty (30) calendar days after the end of the guarter.

Reporting Periods:

16/01 — 12/31 DUE: 01/30
01/01-03/31 DUE: 04/30
04/01 — 06/30 DUE: 07/31
07/01 - 09/30 DUE: 10/31
2, Report Description: Self-Monitoring Audit Reports - The report shall contain all the components

of the Local Agency Review Tools — ohservation, chart reviews, clinic site review and
ineligible/terminated files.

Report Format; The Department will provide electronic versions of this form.
Report Due Date: Thirty (30) calendar days after the end of the quarter.

Reporting Periods:

10/01 — 12731 DUE: 01/30
01/01 - 03/31 DUE: 04/30
04/01 — 06/30 DUE; 07/31
07/01 — 09/30 DUE; 10/31
3. Report Description: Peer Counseling Program Quarterly Report - The report shall contain a

report of Peer counseling project activities.
Report Format; The Department will provide electronic versions of this form.
Report Due Date: Thirty (30) calendar days after the end of the quarter.

Reporting Periods:

10/01 — 12131 DUE: 01/30
01/01 - 03/31 DUE: 04/30
04/01 - 06/30 DUE: 0v/31
07/01 - 08/30 PUE: 10/31

Monthly Fiscal Operating Detail Report:
Must be submiited with invoices.

The report shall contain all operational costs expended during the reporting period. Reports shall include
in order: PCA number, PCA Description, Expenditure Sub Object Code, Sub Object Code Number,
Vendor Name, Invoice Description, Calendar Date of Expenditure, Fiscal Month Text, Fiscal Year, GL
Amount. Report shail identify the Subgrantee Name and Reporting Period.

Monthly Personnel Detail Report:
Must be submitted with invoices.

Personnel Detail Report; The report shall contain all personnel expended during the reporting period.
The report shall contain in order: Fiscal Month, PCA number, PCA Description (Title), Employee Name,
Class Code Title, Earnings Hours, Earnings Total. Report shall identify the Subgrantee Name and

11




Reporting Period. This report must equal the personnel hours billed each month during the reporting
period,

The Subgrantee shall submit required financial reports to the FTP site designated below:
https://sfip.dhw.idaho.gov/DivisionofPublicHealth

12




(t Monthly Community Health Action Team: Activity Report

Date: 6/9/2020
Employee Name:
Ashley Anderson

1) COVID-19

a. Youth (ACEs, SUDs, and related issues)
b. Food Insecurity
c. Behavioral Health

0,

! Tran5ﬁortation

e Twelfth PCHAT meeting was held on May 27th via Zoom Remote Conference.

e PCHAT members worked diligently to report out on current activities to help
meet community needs of Payette and Malheur Counties. A member shared out a
needs survey/assessment results conducted during the COVID-19 pandemic. The
team identified an area that the PCHAT would be able to help the communities:
develop a robust resource guide for the Payette County area (also extends to
Malheur County as residents move between counties frequently). The resources
are various, covering food access, medical, behavioral health, and more that are
available in Payette County. The resource guide has been a standing project the
team wanted to develop and provide to the community since the inception of the
group and COVID-19 has been the spark to get the community resource guide
developed. Payette WICAP has agreed to post the resources on their organization
website, the resources are available for use by any organization or individual.

o Link to resource guide:
https://public.3.basecamp.com/p/PftuAZK53RwdHSzXuEzXA6qR

e New members have been added to the team that have experience in community
development and behavioral health.

e Garden Committee is continuing efforts to organize a get together with the WICAP
team at the Payette garden site, get some vegetables have been planted to geta
start on the planting for the season for a Fall yield.

e The region-wide Food Assessment Project lead by the U of I Extension office has
been paused until Kari Boone returns from maternity leave.

e Team members are working on planning and logistics around screening films on
Trauma Informed Care and Culture, planning for screening Fall 2020 (if safe to do
s0). Please see notes.

e State of Idaho has increased the poverty level, up to 200%. There are a lot more
people now qualified to receive food being distributed by WICAP, people seeking
food will not have to meet a certain level to qualify and receive food. The number
of food boxes issued have been dramatically increased (in the time of COVID-19),
the teams recognize that individuals require more assistance in more than just

_food access: power, living, etc.

t Wins
Y 1



PCHAT agreed to meet virtually to touch base on projects and share resources on
May 27t, The team will meet again on June 22 via Zoom remote conference.
Payette County Community Resource Guide was developed, finalized, and
continues to be distributed to community partners to share to the communities
served within Malheur and Payette Counties.

PCHAT membership has increased within the past two months, despite not
meeting in-person due to COVID-19.

‘ ny Challez

e COVID-19 has posed challenges in conducting in-person activities and paused
many activities that were planned between Spring-Summer 2020 for the PCHAT.

previous report(s), unless otherwise noted.

X Healthcare access Telehealth/Mobile Health
XISubstance Abuse K Primary Care
[JEmergency/Hospital Care Specialty Care

M Housing X Adult Education

X Early Childhood Education XTransportation

X Food Access [JHigh School Graduation
[1Spiritual Health XISocial Activities
Community Cohesion [XISenior Health
XIBehavioral Health K Livable Community

X Chronic Disease Communicable Disease

X Emergency Preparedness [ Other: Click here to enter text.

Standing items from previous report(s), unless otherwise noted.

Private District Dollars: State Contracts and | Time of Participants:
Foundations: Sub-grants: (# of participants x time

(hours) x value of time ($))
N/A N/A N/A N/A

Describe any in-kind donations:
None, other than the time of participants: $450.00 (estimate for 1.5 hours/month)

Name: Organization: Sector:

Rami Rodriguez St. Luke’s Fruitland Health Care

Dawn Callaham St. Luke’'s Health Care

Britany Warner St. Luke’s Fruitland Health Care

Bailee Jones St. Luke's Fruitland Health Care

Matt Sorenson Boys & Girls Club (Payette) Education, After-School Activities
Demi Larson Boys & Girls Club (Payette) Education, After-School Activities
Sarah Yeuth Payette Paramedics Health Care

Lorinda Sanders Valley Family Health Care Health Care, FQHC

Renee Charron Valley Family Health Care Health Care, FQHC




Betty Dressen City of Payette Local Government
Jennifer Yturriondobeitia YNI/C-WHO (Payette) Health Care, Non-Profit 501(c)(3)
Aaron St. George Serenity Wellness Health Care
Kari Boone University of Idaho Education
Rebecca Lemmons St. Alphonsus Health Care
Carla Warner SWDH Health Care, Education
Claudia Weathermontester | St. Alphonsus Health Care
Lynsey Hanson Boys and Girl Club of West Education, After-School Activities
Joy Husman Treasure Valley Mental & Behavioral Health
Lyndsay Grosvenor Intermountain Hospital Behavioral Health
Lisa Tovar Valley Family Health Care Health Care, FQHC
Connie Kreps St. Alphonsus Health Care
Becky Wolery WICAP Community
Cailah Cox Insight Counseling & Therapy | Behavioral Health
Insight Counseling & Therapy Behavioral Health, Community Planning

Please submit reports to your supervisor and the Director by the 15t of the
following month. Thank you.

PCHAT May 2020 Meeting Minutes

Call to Order

Roll Call & Introductions Attendees: Betty Dressen, Glenn Blankenship, Sidney Fenton, Lindsay Grosvenor,
Cailah Cox, Becky Wolery, Brenda Davis, Dawn Callaham, Ashley Anderson, Megan Gomeza

Group Norms— Agenda | Use of Parking Lot | Decision by Consensus | Disagree & Commit | Bring in Positivity

Program Updates & Resource Sharing—

Payette County, Malheur County Resource Guide: The summer lunch/food program for Payette, Fruitland,
and New Plymouth was requested for this area, the group is encouraged to pass along resources to Dawn
Callaham. The current version is available on the PCHAT Basecamp (Updates are tracked*). The team is
working with to distribute resource guide widely.

Sustainability of a regularly updated guide: Sharing with United Way to possibly continue the document
updating and taking the document on over time. As St. Luke’s and St. Al's will be using Auntbertha.com as a
centralized resource tool.

As the guide continues to grow, the team is considering sustainability of the document and the ability to
keep the document up-to-date.

Auntbertha.com Website Resource Update: This resource will be adopted within the St. Al's system. This will
be a public access site for community and the St. Al's medical group. There are two different numbers for
providers to connect with and get information for clients. Organizations may submit a request to be added
and get listed within 1-week. It would be helpful to have businesses added into the platform to build up the
online resource, this would be useful for providers and clients.

Recommendations: For consistency, businesses should to be added to 211, Aunt Bertha, Malheur county
health department, SWDH, and WICAP resource pages.

Reminder from VFHC on Medicaid Enrollment: A lot of people are left uninsured at this time due to COVID-
19, VFHC is working on increasing the number of people enrolled in Medicaid on both the Idaho and Oregon

side. Enrollments are being done by phone. VFHC Outreach number: 541-889-6119.




WICAP Food Distribution in Counties: State of Idaho has increased the poverty level, up to 200%. There are a
lot more people now qualified to receive food being distributed by WICAP, people seeking food will not
have to meet a certain level to qualify and receive food. The number of food boxes issued have been
dramatically increased (in the time of COVID-19), the teams recognize that individuals require more
assistance in more than just food access: power, living, etc.

More Activity in Food Distribution (Malheur County*): Oregon Food Bank is working on a mass food
distribution, Friday May 19", and again June 19", With increased funding, they have purchased and planned
dates to host an emergency food distribution event. 29" is a practice run. Malheur council on aging is
providing transportation and drop off options for residents. Lindsay Grosvenor will reach out with any
information on volunteering or volunteer opportunities.

VFHC Outreach to At-Risk Populations: VFHC is currently working within Gem County, Washington County,
Payette County and with community council of Idaho on behalf of the migrant population, to promote
healthy habits and increase food access recognizing the disparity of the acquisition of COVID-19. VFHC
would like to be connected with homeless populations that may be positively impacted by this outreach,
please contact Megan Gomeza. WICAP will work with their director of community services and connect with
VFHC to expand and collaborate in order to deliver help and meet community needs across the indicated
counties.

Meeting Psychiatric Needs in the Area: Team request for mental health resources to share, there is a big
need within Payette County for community residents. The Project Launch at WICAP is a Payette County
resource for children 0-8 years of age, children will have to do a screener and the associated cost/co-pay
may be waived by WICAP (not currently expanded to Malheur County).

Starting in the next couple of weeks, a Payette County mental health provider will be serving clients with
any domestic violence experience (experienced trauma) and this service is free. Groups will be launched
after COVID-19 settles. Counseling services are also offered for foster families and children. May be offering
healthy parenting classes in the near future. Please contact Becky Wolery for more information.

A new resource map for behavioral health services is live, this includes information on access and services
being offered in-person or remotely: https://www.c-who.or

Trauma Informed Care, Culture: As a number of community based events have been cancelled, the LCAC has
some additional funding and this has created an opportunity to move these funds to a an alternative
activity: providing a group viewing for providers and organizations of Paper Tigers & Resilience. The viewing
may take place at the Parma, motor view (5400 for the space rental per night, up to 230 vehicles), may be
Monday-Tuesday-Wednesday sometime in the Fall 2020. Contact/follow-up information on participation
will be collected when folks drive-in. The group is in agreement that there is a need for our communities to
learn about Resiliency, especially in times of COVID-19. The PCHA Team will stay tuned for updates as
information is received by the project lead.

For consideration- Suggested a panel or group debriefing following any viewing of the film(s). The team will
circle back on logistics.

Educational Opportunities —

IIBHN Annual Conference, May 1-August 31: CEUs & CMEs available for the virtual webinar offerings this
summer, so more information please visit: https://www.c-who.org/iibhn-2020-conference/ (Flyer included
in May/June distribution e-mail)

Project LAUNCH: Will be certifying child therapists in a child therapy model, offering the training with the
grant. The team will stay tuned for updates from WICAP & Becky Wolery. Trauma information BCIT, or
another evidence-based model will be the basis.




PCHAT Projects—
CHIP Payette County: To be reviewed in June.
Mission & Vision Statements: The team has set a goal to complete these items on/by June 28™.

Open Discussion —

Garden Committee Update: Soil has been delivered to WICAP Payette. Friday will be a get together with the
WICAP team at the Payette garden site, get some vegetables planted to get a start on the planting for the
season. The PCHAT team is encouraged to review previous meeting minutes for more information on
projects discussed at this meeting.

SUD Recovery Housing: Update to be expected after 5/28/20, the primary planning team is working with a
realtor trying to find some land that would be suitable for the project. Looking to open up the project and
plan with the larger group (be inclusive of more partners) in-person once COVID-19 situation has resolved
and will allow for more relaxed social distancing measures.

CFSA: The region-wide Food Assessment Project lead by the U of | Extension office has been paused until
Kari Boone returns from maternity leave. Once there are updates, Dawn will provide the information on the
PCHAT Basecamp with a document reflecting current progress.

Adjourn




County of Malheur

HEALTH DEPARTMENT

1108 S.W. 4th Street « Ontario, OR 97914 « (541) 889-7279

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
e  Wear face coverings
o English flyer

o Spanish flyer
e Make a plan - see more below

Making Your Plan
A basic plan includes:
e Talk to your household members about what to do if someone gets sick.
e Write down:
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
e  COVID-19: Get your home ready. Create a household plan and keep your family and
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
e What are the available COVID sick/UI benefits?
e What are the rules about providing sick leave to my emplovees?
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
o Preventing germ spread (Espafiol / Spanish)
o Symptoms of coronavirus
e What if I have to lay people off or temporarily close my business because of issues related to
COVID-19?
e Can any programs help minimize my layoffs?
e What if I permanently close my business because of COVID-19 coronavirus?
e What are the resources that can help me keep my company in business?
e How can I protect customers at my restaurant?
e What’s the best way to clean my workplace?
e  What is the guidance from the Oregon Occupational Safety and Health Administration

(OSHA)?

e What is the guidance for construction/contractors?

Agricultural Workers
e COVID-19 Interim Guidance for Agricultural Workers and Migrant and Seasonal Farm
Workers
Who Is More at Risk? | ;Quiénes son méas vulnerables?
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

Close contacts of a person with COVID-19

People exposed to COVID-19 in congregate setting

Migrant/seasonal agricultural workers upon arrival in Oregon

People who identify as Black, African-American, Latino, Latina, Latinx,
American Indian/Alaska Native, Asian, Asian-American or Pacific Islander
People who identify as having a disability

People whose first language is not English

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



| ONTARIO COVID-19

FREE DRIVE UP TESTING
PRUEBA GRATIS DESDE SU AUTO

Wednesday: June 3, July 1, August 5
10 a.m. to 2 p.m. Malheur County Fairgrounds

Miércoles: 3 de Junio, 1 de Julio, 5 de Agosto
| 10 a.m. a 2 p.m. Terrenos de la Feria del Condado de Malheur

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

* Cough/Tos _ : siguientes grupos?
* Shortness of Breath/Dificultad para Respirar
5 Fex.fer/ Fibre : * Close contacts of a person with COVID-19/Contactos
*  Chills/ Escaloff:ios : g \ : cercanos de una persona con COVID-19
* Repeated shaking with chills/Sacudidas repetidas * People exposed to COVID-19 in congregate

e escalo.fﬂos setting/Personas expuestas a COVID-19 en entorno
¢ Muscle pain/Dolor muscular congtegado
*  Headache/Dolor de cabeza * Migrant/seasonal agticultural workers upon arrival in
* Sore throat/Dolor de gatganta ; Oregon/Migrantes/ trabajadores agticolas a su llegada
* New loss of taste or smell/Nueva pérdida de a Oregén

sabor u olfato * People who identify as Black, African-American,

Latino, Latina, Latinx, American Indian/Alaska
Native, Asian, Asian-American or Pacific
Islander/Petsonas que se identifican como

Brought to you by Malheur County

Health Depaftmeflt & Emel‘geﬂcy afroamericanas, latinas, latinas, latinas, indias
I Management / Traido a usted por ametricanas / nativas de Alaska, asidticas, asidtico-
ameticanas o islenas del Pacifico
Departamento de S_alud del Conda(_io * People who identify as having a disability/Las
de Malheur Y Mane]o de EmergenC1aS petsonas que se identifican como discapacitadas
malheurhealth_org m 541-889-7279 * People whose first language is not English/Petsonas

cuyo primer idioma no es inglés
* First Respondets/Primeros respondedor




NYSSA COVID-19

FREE DRIVE UP TESTING
PRUEBA GRATIS DESDE SU AUTO

Wednesday: June 10, July 8, August 12
10 a.m. to 2 p.m. LDS Church 1309 Park Ave, Nyssa

Miércoles: 10 de Junio, 8 de Julio, 12 de Agosto
10 a.m. a 2 p.m. Iglesia de los Mormones 1309 Park Ave, Nyssa

Do you live or work in Malheur County?

¢Vive o trabaja en el condado de Malheur?

Quualifications for testing/Calificaciones para la prueba

Symptoms /Sintomas: No symptoms, but part of following
groups/Sin sintomas, pero parte de los
* Cough/Tos siguientes grupos?
e Shottness of Breath/Dificultad pata Respirar
¢ Fever/Fibre * Close contacts of a person with COVID-19/Contactos

e Chills/Escalofrios

*  Repeated shaking with chills /Sacudidas repetidas .
con escaloftios

*  Muscle pain/Dolor musculat

* Headache/Dolor de cabeza "

* Sore throat/Dolor de garganta

¢ New loss of taste or smell/Nueva pérdida de

cercanos de una persona con COVID-19
People exposed to COVID-19 in congtregate
setting/ Personas expuestas a COVID-19 en entorno
congregado
Migrant/seasonal agricultural workers upon arrival in
Otegon/Migrantes/trabajadores agticolas a su llegada
a Oregon
sabor u olfato * People who identify as Black, African-Ametican,
Latino, Latina, Latinx, American Indian/Alaska
Native, Asian, Asian-Ametican or Pacific
Blought to Jol by Malheur COLII’lty Islander/Personas que se identifican como

Health Depal‘tmﬁﬂt & Emel‘gency afroamericanas, latinas, latinas, latinas, indias

Management / Traido a usted por americanas / nativas de Alaska, asiaticas, asidtico-
americanas o islenas del Pacifico

Departamento de SaIUd del Condado * People who identify as having a disability /Las
de Malheur Yy Mane]o de Emergeﬂcms personas que se identifican como discapacitadas
ma]heurhealth.org m 541-889-7279 * People whose first language is not English /Personas

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
Testing Flyer.pdf; 6-4-20 Nyssa COVID-19 Testing Flyer.pdf, 6-4-20 Vale COVID-19 Testing
Flyer.pdf

FYI

EI s E[ Nikole Zogg | Director | Southwest District Health

| 13307 Miami Lane | Caldwell ID 83607 | ph: 208.455.5315 | cell: 208.546.8945
! Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov | Healthier Together | www.swdh.org

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

¢ Migrant/seasonal agricultural workers upon arrival in Oregon

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




VALE COVID-19

FREE DRIVE UP TESTING
PRUEBA GRATIS DESDE SU AUTO

Wednesday: June 17, July 15, August 19
10 am. to 2 p.m. LDS Church 135 Yakima St. S., Vale

Miércoles: 17 de Junio, 15 de Julio, 19 de Agosto
10 a.m. a 2 p.m. Iglesia de los Mormones 135 Yakima St. S., Vale

Do you live or work in Malheur County?

¢Vive o trabaja en el condado de Malheur?

Qualifications for testing/Calificaciones para la prueba

Symptoms /Sintomas: No symptoms, but part of following
roups/Sin sintomas, pero parte de los

* Cough/Tos : : siguientes grupos?
* Shottness of Breath/Dificultad para Respirat
. Fex.rer/ Fibre ; * Close contacts of a petson with COVID-19/Contactos
*  Chills/ ESC"ﬂOf_ﬂOS ; : ; : cercanos de una petrsona con COVID-19
* Repeated shaking with chills/Sacudidas repetidas » People exposed to COVID-19 in congregate

<Ol escalo.fﬂos setting/Personas expuestas a COVID-19 en entorno
e Muscle pain/Dolor musculat congtegado
¢ Headache/Dolor de cabeza » Migrant/seasonal agticultural workets upon atrival in
¢ Sote throat/Dolor de garganta s Otregon/Migrantes/trabajadotes agricolas a su llegada
* New loss of taste or smell/Nueva pérdida de a Otegén

sabot u olfato * People who identify as Black, African-American,

Tatino, Latina, Latinx, American Indian/Alaska
Native, Asian, Asian-Ametrican or Pacific
Islandet /Personas que se identifican como

Brought to you by Malheur County

Health Depﬂl'fmﬁﬂt & Emel‘gency afroamericanas, latinas, latinas, latinas, indias
N[anagement / Traido a usted por ameticanas / nativas de Alaska, asiticas, asiatico-
. americanas o islefias del Pacifico
Dep artamento de Salud del Condado * People who identify as having a disability /Las
P g ty

de Malheur y Manejo de Emergencias petsonas que se identifican como discapacitadas
malheurhealth_org m 541-889-7279 * Pecople whose first language is not English /Petrsonas

cuyo primet idioma no es inglés
* First Respondets/Primeros respondedot




Williams, Katrina

From: Zogg, Nikole

Sent: Monday, June 15, 2020 2:33 PM

To: Beckley, Kimberly

Subject: RE: Summer School Plans for Endorsement

Attachments: WeiserSchoolDistrictSecondarySummerSchool_15Jun20.pdf;

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



-~ SOUTHWEST

[
f&-DISTRICT HEALTH

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



A(, - SOUTHWEST

(( DISTRICT HEALTH

June 15, 2020

To Whom it May Concern:

Weiser School District Alternative Secondary Summer School has been working in close
collaboration to meet the criteria outlined by the State Board of Education and
Southwest District Health, which utilizes the most up-to-date guidance from the Centers
for Disease Control and Prevention in order to safely operate amid the COVID-19
pandemic.

This letter is to endorse Weiser School District Alternative Secondary Summer School in
their pursuit of opening during the Spring/Summer of 2020. Weiser School District
Alternative Secondary Summer School has reviewed and updated policies and
procedures and developed mitigation strategies to address the level of local community
spread of COVID-19, including intensified cleaning and disinfecting protocols,
identification of feasible social distancing strategies, updated policies for illnesses and
absenteeism, plans for short-term dismissal for positive COVID-19 cases, and identified
ways to accommodate needs of children and families at risk for serious illness from
COVID-19 cases. The district has shown commitment in establishing and maintaining an
effective relationship with Southwest District Health to help address changing
circumstances. A full list of completed criteria is attached to this letter.

At this time, Southwest District Health fully endorses Weiser School District Alternative
Secondary Summer School in opening in-person, school-based education as defined in
their plan.

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
main.pdf; Inactivation of Viruses on Surfaces by Ultraviolet Germicidal Irradiation.pdf

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

Summary: Other than recommending that air from All rooms be exhausted directly to the outside or be
filtered through HEPA filters before recirculation, the CDC has not given guidance on additional filtration
requirements for general healthcare spaces for SARS-CoV?Z.

Background: SARS-CoV2 is approximately 0.125 micron (range 0.08 - 0.15) in diameter. Respiratory
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
stated that HEPA filters don’t filter below 0.3 micron and therefore can’t capture the new coronavirus.

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

o Evaluate UVGI lights within air handling systems. Not all UVGI lights in air handling systems are
intended for air sterilization. The most common UVGI light in an air handling unit is for coil/drain



pan sterilization to reduce microbial growth. This type of UVGl light is not intended nor can it be

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
not bej effective at protecting staff and preventing the spread of droplet-transmitted diseases such as
influenza and SARS, they may be deployed in situations with a novel/emerging infectious agent whose
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




Preparedness Guidance
Document for

Severe Acute Respiratory
Syndrome

New York State Department of Health
December 17, 2003



Introduction

The purpose of this guidance document is to assist public health officials and health care
providers in preparing for and responding rapidly and decisively to the recurrence of Severe
Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) in the local community or a health care facility. The
document closely follows the draft SARS Public Health Guidance first issued on October 10,
2003, with subsequent revisions, by the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/sarsprepplan.htm). The intent is to provide detailed State
implementation strategies, consistent with the national guidance. New York State specific
procedures, reporting forms, and legal guidance are provided.

As stated in the Executive Summary of the draft CDC Guidance document:
“The basic strategy that controlled SARS outbreaks worldwide was
rapid and decisive surveillance and containment. The keys to
successful implementation of such a strategy are up-to-date
information on local, national, and global SARS activity; rapid and
effective institution of control measures; and the resources,
organizational and decision-making structure, and trained staff
vital to rapid and decisive implementation. This guidance
document accounts for two important features of SARS outbreaks:
1) they are neither regional nor national but rather confined to
limited geographic — and even institutional — settings, and 2) they
are dynamic, meaning that the characteristics of an outbreak can
change quickly.”

The New York State guidance document was developed in consultation with local health
departments and health care providers in New York State. In the event of a SARS outbreak, it is
likely that specific guidance and procedures may change. Therefore, this document is likely to
be revised. The document and any revisions will be available on the public website of the
New York State Department of Health at http://www.health.state.ny.us/index.html.
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1. SARS Surveillance

A. Goals and Key Concepts
The overall goals of Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) surveillance are to:

« Ensure early detection of cases and clusters of respiratory infections that might
signal the global re-emergence of SARS.

» If the re-emergence of SARS is confirmed, maintain prompt and complete
identification and reporting of potential cases to facilitate control and
management of the outbreak.

+ Identify and monitor contacts of SARS cases to enable early detection of illness in
persons at greatest risk for disease.

The following are key concepts about SARS surveillance:

+ The key to recognizing persons with SARS is identifying an epidemiologic link of
exposure to another case of SARS or a setting (e.g., hospital} where SARS-
associated coronavirus (SARS-CoV) transmission is occurring.

+ Screening criteria for epidemiologic linkages need to reflect 1) the status of SARS
globally and the risk of exposure from travel, and 2) the status of SARS activity in
the community, at the work site, or in other settings where a patient with SARS-
like illness may have been.

+ In asetting of extensive SARS-CoV transmission, the possibility of SARS should
be considered in all persons with a febrile respiratory illness, even if an
epidemiologic link cannot be readily established.

B. Plan for Surveillance of SARS Cases in New York State

In April 2003, on an emergency basis, SARS was added to the NYS reportable disease
list (Section 2.1 of the New York State Sanitary Code). Physicians should immediately
report any potential cases (as defined by the reporting criteria below) to the local health
department (LHD). SARS reporting criteria will be based on the level of SARS activity
worldwide. The two categories of SARS activity are: (a) absence of known SARS
activity and (b) presence of SARS activity anywhere in the world. An overview of the
SARS reporting criteria is in Appendix 1A,

1. Case Surveillance
a. No SARS Activity Anywhere in the World.
In the absence of SARS activity worldwide, surveillance is aimed at early
detection of cases and clusters of respiratory infections among individuals likely
to be first alfected by the re-emergence of SARS (e.g., travelers to areas
previously affected with SARS; healthcare workers).

Reporting Criteria

Medical providers should ask all patients being admitted to the hospital with
radiographic evidence of pneumonia or acute respiratory distress syndrome
(ARDS) of unknown etiology about recent travel, employment history and/or
exposure to another person who was recently diagnosed with pneumonia.
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Providers should immediately report to the LHD any patient who meets the
following clinical and at least one epidemiologic criteria:

e (linical criteria
= Radiographic evidence of pneumonia or ARDS of unknown etiology,
which warrants hospitalization,
» Epidemiologic criteria (at least one of the following)
= Travel within 10 days of onset to mainland China, Hong Kong, or
Taiwan,
OR
»  Within 10 days of onset, close contact with other ill person(s) who
recently traveled to mainland China, Hong Kong, or Taiwan,
OR
*  Employment as a healthcare worker with direct patient contact or a
worker in a laboratory which contains live SARS-associated
coronavirus (SARS-CoV),
OR
»  Within 10 days of onset, close contact with person(s) with
radiographic confirmed pneumonia without an alternative diagnosis.

The NYSDOH SARS Screening Form When There is No SARS Activity
Worldwide (Appendix 1B) can be used by LHDs to determine if a patient meets
the reporting criteria. If a patient does meet the reporting criteria, the NYDOH
SARS Case Report Form (Appendix 1C) should be completed. (Appendix 1C also
includes a guide on SARS supplemental data entry fields.)

Additional factors that increase the likelihood of SARS-CoV infection
Additional information should be obtained on patients who meet the above
reporting criteria to determine if there are factors that would increase the
likelihood of SARS-CoV infection, including,

= While traveling, visited a healthcare setting.

*  While traveling, had close contact with a person hospitalized for a
respiratory infection.

v Part of a cluster of unexplained pneumonia in which one case is linked
to travel to a previously SARS-affected area or to an ill healthcare
worker.

If a patient has additional factors that increase the index of suspicion for SARS,
consideration should be given for more aggressive isolation precautions and
clinical evaluation (See Section 2 for details).

Travel to other areas with SARS-CoV transmission in Spring 2003:

(Singapore; Toronto, Canada: Hanoi Vietnam)

In the absence of SARS transmission worldwide, it is felt that the most likely sites
of SARS recurrence are mainland China and the neighboring locations of Taiwan
and Hong Kong. Hospitalized persons with radiographic confirmed pneumonia
who have a travel history to other areas with SARS-CoV transmission in Spring
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2003- Singapore; Toronto, Canada; and Hanoi, Vietnam- do not need to be
reported unless there are factors that increase the likelihood of SARS-CoV
infection (see above section).

Pediatric Populations

Based on the limited information available from the Spring 2003 SARS outbreak,
the role of pediatric patients in the transmission of SARS-CoV disease is thought
to be much less significant than the role of adults. Thus, in the absence of SARS
activity anywhere in the world, the screening of persons requiring hospitalization
for radiographic evidence of pneumonia or ARDS of unknown etiology should be
limited to adults, unless there are special circumstances that make the clinician
and public health personnel consider a child to be of potentially high risk for
having SARS-CoV disease.

b. Presence of SARS Activity Anywhere in the World

If the re-emergence of SARS is documented in the United States or abroad, the
likelihood that persons with respiratory infections may be infected with SARS
will increase significantly, Enhanced surveillance activities should focus on:

» increasing the sensitivity of case detection through use of less specific
clinical criteria when screening cases (i.c., expand surveillance to
include non-hospitalized persons with fever or respiratory symptoms),
and

* evaluating suspicious illnesses regardless of identification of an
epidemiologic fink (e.g., respiratory illness in healthcare workers;
clusters of persons with pneumonia).

Reporting Criteria

Medical providers should ask all patients presenting with fever or respiratory

symptoms about recent travel history or exposure to someone who may have

SARS. Providers should immediately report to the LHD any patient who meets

the following reporting criteria:

GO Any patient meeting the reporting criteria listed for when there is no SARS
activity (e.g., healthcare workers hospitalized with radiographic confirmed
pneumonia; clusters of unexplained pneumonta)

OR
o Any patient meeting the following clinical criteria and epidemiologic criteria
s Clinical criteria (at least one of the following)
»  Fever >38°C (100.4°F)
OR
»  Tower respiratory infection (e.g., cough, shortness of breath,
difficuity breathing)
¢ Epidemiologic criteria (at least one of the following)
» Travel within 10 days of illness onset to an area with recent
local SARS transmission
OR
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*  (Close contact within 10 days of illness onset with a person with
known or suspected SARS infection.

o If SARS transmission that is unlinked to other SARS infections (i.e., the
source of infection is unclear) has occurred locally, consider SARS in the
differential diagnosis and management of all patients with fever or evidence
of lower respiratory infection, regardless of whether the patient has SARS risk
factors.

Hospital-Based Surveillance
In the presence of SARS anywhere in the world, hospitals should implement the
following hospital-based surveillance strategies based upon the level of SARS

activity:

Healthcare facility with no SARS patients:

*  Ask all patients presenting with fever or respiratory symptoms about
recent travel history or exposure to someone who may have SARS.

¢ Immediately report any patients meeting the above criteria to the
LHD.

¢ Infection control personnel, occupational health officials, and
providers should be alert for clusters of severe, febrile respiratory
illness among healthcare workers. Any clusters of severe, febrile
respiratory illness among healthcare workers with illness onsets
within the same 10-day period should be reported immediately to the
LHD.

Healthcare facility providing care for SARS patients who acquired
infection from the community or from other facilities: no evidence of
nosocomially acquired SARS-CoV infections:

*  Continue all recommended surveillance plans outlined for the
previous category.

e  Monitor daily all healthcare workers caring for SARS patients. If the
healthcare worker has either fever or respiratory symptoms, begin
SARS isolation precautions, notify the LHD and initiate preliminary
clinical assessment.

¢ IfSARS-CoV transmission is occurring in the surrounding
community, screen all patients, visitors, and employees upon entry
to the facility for fever, cough, or shortness of breath. Screen
symptomatic persons for SARS risk factors. [f risk factors are present,
the patient should be isolated and evaluated for both alternative
respiratory illnesses and SARS-CoV infection.

Healthcare facility treating a large number of SARS patients, or facilities
with nosocomially acquired SARS cases with clearly identified sources of
infection:
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Continue all recommended surveillance plans outlined for the previous
category.

Monitor all healthcare workers daily for fever, cough, or shortness of
breath. If present, begin SARS isolation precautions, obtain chest X-
ray, and initiate preliminary workup.

Begin inpatient surveillance; monitor daily for new or worsening
fever, cough, or shortness of breath. If one or more of these symptoms
are found, exposure to known or suspected SARS patients should be
investigated; if there is evidence of exposure, the patient should be
isolated and tested for alternative respiratory illnesses and SARS-CoV
infection.

Healthcare facility in which nosocomially acquired SARS-CoV

infection has occurred and at least some transmission is ynlinked to

other SARS infections (i, e.. source of infection is unclear):

Continue all recommended surveillance plans outlined for the previous
category.

Expand inpatient surveillance: if new or worsening fever, cough, or
shortness of breath is noted, test patient for SARS-CoV regardless of
whether an epidemiologic link to another SARS patient s found.
Consider surveillance for illness and absenteeism among healthcare
personnel.

2. Case Reporting

Medical Providers
Providers should report immediately by telephone to the LHD any patient
meeting the reporting criteria.
If there are difficulties reaching the LHD, the provider should contact
the NYSDOH. During business hours, call 518-473-4436; after
hours, call 1-866-881-2809.,
In New York City, contact the New York City Department of Health
and Mental Hygiene through the Provider Access Line at 1-866-
NYC-DOHI1 (1-866-692-3641). At all other times, call the Poison
Control Center at 1-212-764-7667.
The NYDOH SARS Case Report Form (Appendix 1C) should be completed
immediately and forwarded to the LHD.
After consultation with local/state health department, if SARS testing is indicated
the required laboratory testing paperwork should be completed and submitted
with the clinical specimens to Wadsworth Center, Three forms are required:
Wadsworth Center Virus History Form (Section 4, Appendix 4A),
Informed Consent for the RT-PCR assay,
Informed Consent for the EIA assay.
The RT-PCR and EIA assays have been released by the Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) under an Investigational Device Exemption and are
IRB-approved. Use of both assays requires completion of two informed
consent documents, one each for the RT-PCR and EIA assays.
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The forms are available as Appendices 4B and 4C or at the following
websites. http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/lab/rtpcr/consent.htm and
http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/lab/eia/consent.htm.

Note: If specimens have been collected prior to informed consent being obtained,
the Patient Information Form may be completed instead of the RT-PCR and EIA
informed consent forms. This form is available as Appendix 4D and at
www://cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/lab/rtper/participant.htm.

Local Health Departments

Any patients meeting the reporting criteria should be reported immediately to the
NYSDOH Regional Epidemiologist. If the Regional Epidemiologist is not
available, call the Bureau of Communicable Disease Control at 518-473-4436
during business hours; after hours, call 1-866-881-2809.

The NYSDOH SARS Screening Form When there is No SARS Activity
Worldwide (Appendix 1B) can be used to determine if the patient meets the
reporting criteria. If the patient does meet the reporting criteria, the NYDOH
SARS Case Report Form (Appendix 1C) should be completed.

The report should be initiated on the Health Information Network (HIN)
Communicable Disease Electronic Surveillance System (CDESS). If SARS testing
is indicted, the HIN identification number generated needs to be included on all
paperwork associated with the case, including the lab specimen submission form.

NYSDOH

If any patients meeting the surveillance criteria are reported by the medical
provider directly to NYSDOH, the information will immediately be reported to the
appropriate NYSDOH Regional Office and/or LHD.

If laboratory specimens are received on patients for which there is no HIN ID
included with the paperwork, Wadsworth Center will notify NYSDOH BCDC. If
the case has not been reported on the HIN, NYSDOH BCDC will notify the
appropriate Regional Office and/or LHD for follow-up.

NYSDOH will report case data to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
(CDC) through the Secure Digital Network.

3. Case Classification

SARS Case Definition

The SARS case definition distinguishes 1) cases of SARS-CoV disease that
may be classified as confirmed (i.e., clinically compatible illness that is
laboratory confirmed) or probable (i.e., severe respiratory illness with
epidemiologic linkage to a laboratory-confirmed case), from 2) other
SARS reports under investigation (patients whose illnesses are less severe
or whose exposures to SARS-CoV are not definitive). The SARS case
definition is provided in Appendix 1D. A summary of the SARS case
definition and classification is provided in Appendix 1E.
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SARS case definitions may be modified as more clinical and epidemiologic
information is obtained. Up-to-date versions of SARS case definitions are
available on the NYSDOH HIN or the CDC web site:
http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/.

Using case classification information provided by the LHDs, a statewide list of the
number of probable and confirmed SARS cases, by county, will be maintained and
posted on the NYSDOH public website. The site will be updated daily (Monday
through Friday) at 4pm.

e Ruling-out SARS-CoV Infection
The only conclusive rule-out test for SARS-CoV is a negative antibody result on a
serum specimen collected >28 days after onset. Thus obtaining a convalescent
specimen >28 days after onset will be critical to classify patients whose acute
specimens have been negative for SARS-CoV. LHDs should establish a tracking
system of SARS cases under investigation to ensure that appropriately-timed
convalescent specimens are obtained and submitted to Wadsworth. In all cases,
the Virus Reference and Surveillance Laboratory History form (DOH-1795)
should be used and informed consent obtained, per laboratory protocol (See
Section 4: Laboratory Diagnosis).

4. Roles and Activities for Surveillance of SARS Cases

Healthcare Providers and Facilities: no SARS activity

e Ask all patients being admitted to the hospital with radiographic evidence of
pneumonia or ARDS of unknown etiology about recent travel, employment
history and/or exposure to another person who was recently diagnosed with
pneumonia.

e Immediately report any patients meeting the reporting criteria to the LHD.

e [Infection control personnel, occupational health officials, and providers should be
alert for clusters of severe, febrile respiratory illness among healthcare workers.
Any clusters of severe, febrile respiratory illness among healthcare workers with
illness onsets within the same 10-day period should be reported immediately to
the LHD.

Healthcare Providers and Facilities: presence of SARS activity

e Ask all patients presenting with fever or respiratory symptoms about travel
history or exposure to someone who may have SARS.

e Immediately report any patients meeting the reporting criteria to the LHD.

e Implement the hospital-based surveillance strategies based upon the level of
SARS activity in the community and facility.

Local Health Departments

e Conduct active Emergency Department (ED) surveillance for potential SARS
cases as recommended by the NYSDOH (e.g., daily phone calls).

e Receive reports from healthcare providers of potential SARS cases.
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Obtain and review information needed to further assess reported cases to

determine if there is increased likelihood of SARS-CoV infection, including:

= ]I travelers who had contact with healthcare settings or persons hospitalized
for a respiratory infection while abroad.

» Clusters of unexplained pneumonia among any group of persons in which one
case is linked to travel to a previously affected area or to an ill healthcare
worker.

Report to the NYSDOH any patient who meets the SARS reporting criteria.

Review reports of persons who meet the reporting criteria to ensure that adequate

testing is done to rule out other infectious causes of pneumonia.

In conjunction with the NYSDOH, ensure that testing for SARS-CoV infection is

ordered only when appropriate.

NYSDOH

Provide guidance to healthcare providers, hospitals, and LHDs regarding SARS
surveillance (e.g., issuing health alerts; maintaining SARS sites on the NYSDOH
web site, Health Information Network, and Health Provider Network).

Receive, review and compile reports from LHDs of active ED surveillance.
Receive reports from LHDs of potential SARS cases, and provide consultation as
needed.

Develop and maintain electronic reporting systems to facilitate the timely
reporting of SARS cases and dissemination of surveillance information.

In conjunction with LHDs, ensure that testing for SARS-CoV infection is ordered
only when appropriate.

Report appropriate cases under investigation to the CDC.

C. Plan for Surveillance of Contacts of SARS Cases

Surveillance of contacts of SARS cases is essential to SARS control efforts. Through
rapid identification, evaluation, and monitoring of exposed contacts of possible or known
SARS cases, further transmission of disease may be prevented. Contacts who are found
to be clinically ill can be quickly isolated to avoid further SARS-CoV transmission.
Surveillance of contacts will be conducted by LHDs, with assistance from the NYSDOH
as needed. Initiate contact tracing on reports/cases as per the SARS Reporting, Case
Testing and Follow-up Table (Appendix 1F).

1. Definitions

Close Contact: A person who cared for or lived with a person with SARS or
having a high likelihood of direct contact with respiratory secretion and/or body
fluids of a person with SARS (during encounters with the patient or through
contact with materials contaminated by the patient), either during the period the
person was clinically ill or within 10 days of resolution of fever. Examples of
close contact include kissing or embracing, sharing eating or drinking utensils,
close conversation (< 3 feet), physical examination, and any other direct physical
contact between persons. Close contact does not include activities such as
walking by a person or sitting across a waiting room or office for a brief time.
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Infectious Period: Period of time from the onset symptoms to up to 10 days after
the resolution of fever and improving respiratory illness.

2. Case Interview

a. Pre-interview Preparation

A successful interviewing session is the product of numerous factors, including
thorough preparation. Disease intervention opportunities depend on the Interview and
Contact Tracing team (ICTT) knowing and skillfully using pertinent, available facts.
Preparation is important for each priority interviewing/counseling session.

Before the original interview/counseling session, the ICCT should review/analyze:
Existing case report information;

Other medical information, such as a medical record if available;

Available historical information pertinent to the current infection;

Existing case interview and investigative records for evidence of relationships
to other known cases.

[=

Case Interview Session

Successful disease intervention requires that diagnosed patients are isolated
during the infectious period and that all contacts are promptly identified,
monitored for signs of infection, and referred for appropriate medical attention if
indicated.

To achieve maximum disease intervention, the ICCT should conduct
interviewing sessions without delay after the case comes to program attention.
In conducting each interview session an ICCT should:

Communicate at the patient's level,

Confirm known information supplied by the patient:

- Complete home address and phone number (including cell phone,
email address, and fax number if pertinent);

- Emergency locating information;

- Work address and phone number;

- Symptom history including date of onset, type of symptoms, and date
of resolution;

- Likely source of infection (e.g. epidemiologic risk factors).

Explain that all work is performed in the strictest confidence.

Explain the purpose of the session, which is to assist with management of

this infection.

Emphasize contact tracing;

Persist tactfully to ensure all contacts are identified;

Pursue detailed information during the patient’s infectious period to

identify and locate known individual contacts by:
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3.
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- Obtaining travel, work and social history relevant to the infectious
period (from the date of first symptom onset to 10 days following
resolution). If the source of the infection is not known, the interview
pertod should also include the 10 days prior to onset. Information
should include dates, times, modes of transportation and
supervisor/organizer of the following activities:

o Work;
o Social settings (e.g., theater, restaurants, recreational events, etc.);
o Hospitalizations and/or visits to health care facilities.
- Obtaining for known contacts:
0 Identifying and demographic information:
« Name(s) (including nicknames);
» Address (including apartment numbers);
+ Telephone number(s);
« Employer and work telephone number(s);
¢« Age/Race/Sex/Marital Status;
« Physical description;
« Other locating information;
« Information regarding safety and other procedural concerns
about the partner's domicile, acquaintances, and demeanor.

- Nature of contact (i.¢., household, health care worker, community);

- HExposure history
a First and last date of exposure,

0 Frequency and duration of exposure, and whether the exposure is
ongoing;

a If other than household, determine the approximate distance and
details of the contact.

a Timing relative to infectious period of the index patient.

¢. Post-Interview Session and Analysis

Review and reinforce with case:

*  All components of the monitoring plan and infection control procedures;
*  Commitment to communicate information;

= Potential need for re-interview.

Evaluate:

* Any remaining patient concerns, needs;

»  Compliance regarding isolation of case;

= Potential difficulties with contact identification and symptom monitoring;
* Potential for ongoing exposure and risk for household or other contacts.
Investigative activity should be documented on the SARS Interview Record
and SARS Contact Record.

Contact Tracing

All close contacts should be located and contacted within 12 hours of the
case/contact repott.




* Use work and school contact numbers, telephone directories, voting lists,
neighborhood interviews, site visits, etc. to trace contacts when
information is unknown or incomplete.

* If having difficulty locating a contact, consult with STD, TB, HIV/AIDS
staff who have contact tracing experience.

If the contact can not be located, other sources of notification, such as the
media, may have to be considered.

If the contact has left the county and/or state, notify the N'YSDOH Regional
Epidemiologist.

4., Contact Evaluation

Notify contacts of their potential exposure to SARS.

Verify exposures.

*  Verify exposure to index case during the period of infectiousness.
*  Verify the type of exposure.

If initial contact is made through a home or workplace visit, the appropriate
personal protective equipment (PPE) should be utilized since the contact’s
health status is unknown.

Evaluate contact’s health status using the SARS Contact Record Form.

Identify any additional contacts who may not have been listed by the index
case.

Enter data from the SARS Contact Record Form on the HIN.

5. 11l Contacts

Section 1-Surveillance

If the contact is symptomatic with fever and/or respiratory symptoms, make
arrangements for a medical evaluation by a healthcare provider.,

* Ensure the facility is prepared to handle a suspect SARS case.

* Insure the facility and staff are aware that the patient may have been
exposed to SARS.

* Ensure the contact does not take public transportation, or any other type of
fransportation that may expose others, enroute to their medical evaluation.

* Advise the contact to remain at home until they are evaluated by a
healthcare provider.

11l contacts should be counseled, interviewed, and reported as a suspected
SARS case using the appropriate surveillance definitions, SARS Case Report
Form, and his/her contacts should be identified.




6. Well Contacts

¢ Initiate plans for ongoing symptom monitoring for 10 days after their last
exposure to a SARS case. Monitoring of contacts may be active (e.g., regular
workplace body temperature monitoring) or passive {e.g., contact monitors
their own symptoms and is contact by the local health department at least once
a day).

Determine the time period in which the contact must be monitored (10
days after last exposure or 20 days after that last day of fever in the index
case for those contacts with ongoing exposures).

Provide thermometers to any contacts who do not have one or would be
willing to purchase one.

Provide contact with a daily temperature/symptom log.
Enter contact monitoring/symptom data on the HIN.

A copy of the SARS Contact Daily Temperature Log Tracking Sheet is
provided (Appendix 1J) if the information collected cannot be
immediately entered on the HIN,

« Develop a plan for locating contacts who are lost to follow-up during the
monitoring period.

s Provide information on seeking medical care should the contact develop fever
and/or respiratory symptoms while they are being monitored.

Seek medical evaluation by a healthcare provider.
Notify the local health department.
Ensure the facility is equipped to handle a suspect SARS case.

Ensure the facility and staff are aware that the patient may have been
exposed to SARS.

Ensure the contact does not take public transportation, or any other type of
transportation that may expose others, enroute to their medical evaluation.
Advise the contact to remain at home until they are evaluated by a
healthcare provider.

111 contacts should be counseled, interviewed, and reported as a suspected
SARS case using the appropriate surveillance definitions, SARS Case
Report Form, and his/her contacts should be identified.

7. Healthcare Workers
¢ Exposed healthcare workers should be located, evaluated, counseled, and
educated.

o The healthcare worker’s employer should be notified of the SARS exposure.
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o Healthcare workers who are ill should be interviewed, and reported as a
suspected SARS case using the appropriate surveillance definitions, SARS
Case Reporting Form, and his/her contacts should be identified.

s If the healthcare worker had an unprotected high-risk exposure (e.g., the
healthcare worker is in the same room as a probable or confirmed SARS case
during a high-risk aerosol-generating procedure), they should be excluded
from duty for 10 days following the last high-risk exposure.

o Well healthcare workers, who did not have any unprotected high-risk
exposures, should be monitored for 10 days after their last exposure.

o Initiate plans for ongoing symptom monitoring:
*  Determine the time period in which the contact must be monitored (10

days after last exposure or 20 days after that last day of fever in the index
case for those contacts with ongoing exposures).

» Daily monitoring of the healthcare worker will be coordinated by the local
health department and the healthcare facility.

»  The healthcare worker’s employer may wish to institute procedures to
evaluate their employee’s health each day at the beginning of their shift.

»  Provide them with a daily temperature/symptom log.
»  Update contact monitoring/symptom data on the HIN.

" A copy of the SARS Contact Daily Temperature Log Tracking Sheet is
provided (Appendix 1J) if the information collected cannot be
immediately entered on the HIN.

*  Develop a plan for locating contacts who are lost to follow-up during the
monitoring period.

e Provide information on seeking medical care should they develop fever and/or
respiratory symptoms while they are being monitored.

» Seek medical evaluation by a healthcare provider.
» Notify the local health department.
= Ensure the facility is equipped to handle a suspect SARS case.

» Ensure the facility and staff are aware that the patient may have been
exposed to SARS.

» Ensure the contact does not take public transportation, or any other type of
transportation that may expose others, enroute to their medical evaluation.

»  Advise the contact to remain at home until they are evaluated by a
healthcare provider.

» il contacts/healthcare workers should be counseled, interviewed, and
reported as a suspected SARS case using the appropriate surveillance
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definitions, SARS Case Report Form, and his/her contacts should be
identified.
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Appendix 1B.
SARS SCREENING FORM
Use ONLY IF NO SARS ACTIVITY WORLDWIDE

First Name:
Hospital or Clinic or LHD Name:
Phone: () Pager: ( } Other: ()
First Name:

City of Residence: State of Residence:

Sc

4, CXR—conﬁrrhéd 'pneu.monia or acuté r;sbi.rétory. diétréss O Yes (If no, do not
syndrome (ARDS) of unknown etiology warranting hospitalization  complete form)

5. Do you have a history of recent travel (within 10 days) to a previously SARS-affected area or
close contact with ill person(s) who have traveled to these areas? If yes, area of travel:

a. Travel Area A: [0 Yes I No b. Travel Area B: 0O Yes {3 No
1 Mainland China [1 Singapore
0 Hong Kong 0 Hanoi, Vietham
{1 Taiwan 1 Toronto, Canada
If yes, was the ill traveler: If yes, was the ill fraveler:
0 Self 1 Close contact 0 Self 0 Close contact
If recent travel, did you have contact with a If recent travel, did you have contact with
healthcare setting? a healthcare setting?
(0 Yes [0 No O Yes 0 No
If recent travel, did you have close contact If recent travel, did you have
with a person who was hospitalized with a close contact with a person who was
respiratory illness? hospitalized with a respiratory iliness?
{!Yes [J No [0 Yes (1 No

Date Returned to U.S. f 7
mm dd yyyy

6. Are you employed in an occupation associated with a risk of SARS-CoV exposure (e.g., a
health care worker with direct patient contact or a worker in a laboratory that contains live SARS

Co-V)? [0 Yes O No

7. Do you have close contacts who have been told they have pneumonia?
(1 Yes [ No

ng
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Council of State and Territorial Epidemiologists
Position Statement

The following is an interim position statement adopted by the CSTE Executive Committee on 30
October 2003. (At the June 2003 annual meeting, CSTE modified its process for approval of
resolutions. An interim position statement is required to be ratified at the subsequent annual

meeting. See http://www.cste.org/pdffiles/Positionstatementprocess2003table.pdf.)

Committee: Executive Committee

Title: Revision of the CSTE case definition for Severe Acute Respiratory
Syndrome (SARS)

Statement of the problem:

In June 2003, CSTE passed a revised case definition for SARS. This first revised definition
divided the working case definition used by the World Health Organization to define and control
the original outbreak of SARS into two definitions: a) a sensitive, non-specific case definition for
SARS reports under investigation, and b) a more specific case definition for SARS-CoV disease.
At the time, CSTE recommended that these definitions be reviewed and changed as needed.

Since June 2003, SARS-associated coronavirus (SARS-CoV) has ceased circulation among
humans. In response to this, CDC has convened workgroups which have included CSTE
representatives to discuss surveillance to detect newly re-emerging SARS-CoV disease in people
and to be able to monitor and control spread of SARS-CoV if and when it re-emerges. During
these discussions, it has become apparent that the non-specific case definition for SARS reports
under investigation needs to be updated and broken into a number of distinct categories to fully
cover reporting needs in the range of epidemiologic situations that may occur. These situations
range from surveillance to detect the re-emergence of SARS to surveillance for monitoring and
control purposes where there is some activity in some parts of the world to situations where there
is already considerable SARS activity in a local community.

Statement of the desired action to be taken:
CSTE recommends that: the existing CSTE case definition for SARS be revised to include a
hierarchy of specific categories of reports under investigation.

Goals of surveillance:

1) Rapidly identify illness that could be SARS, to screen for SARS-CoV and monitor and contain
the potential for transmission; 2) rapidly recognize SARS-CoV disease outbreaks and geographic
areas with increased SARS activity; 3) identify areas of possible SARS transmission to implement
appropriate infection control practices in health care settings; 4) identify imported cases that may
serve as sentinels for SARS-CoV activity in other regions of the world; 5) improve our current
understanding of the epidemiology of this emerging disease; 6) assess the national public health
impact of SARS-CoV disease and monitor trends; and 7) demonstrate the need for public health
intervention programs and federal resources, and provide data to allocate resources.

Methods for surveillance:

Clinician and laboratory reporting. Core surveillance data for cases meeting the SARS-CoV
disease case definition will be reported to the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention's
(CDC's) National Notifiable Disease Surveillance Systems (NNDSS, a component of the
NPHSS), through the National Electronic Telecommunications System for Surveillance (NETSS).
Core records will be the official source of the SARS-CoV disease case count. Selected additional
clinical, epidemiologic, and laboratory data will be collected and linked to the core NNDSS data.
All surveillance data from persons meeting the definitions for SARS-CoV disease (i.e., core
NNDSS and clinical, laboratory, and case investigation data) will be reported to CDC using
electronic methods consistent with the NEDSS and Public Health Information Network (PHIN)
architecture. In particular, CDC will assure that the following actions be implemented:

e Establishment of a dedicated, secure Web-based data entry system for SARS.
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s Inclusion of 2 SARS module in the NEDSS bhase system, including electronic
transmission of laboratory test results.

s Establishment of an XML schema that states can use to transmit information related to
SARS cases to CDC, using the CDC secure data network.

States should be offered the options to choose the reporting method that fits their information
system best. CDC will work closely with the states to determine the method(s) and frequency of
data reporting.

In addition, CDC will work closely with the states to define a system outside the NPHSS to report
SARS cases under investigation and the method({s) and frequency of reporting these data.

Case definitions: See below.

Period of surveillance: Indefinite.

Backaround and justification:
See CSTE Position statement ID-03-12 and Statement of Probem above.

in the United States, public health officials at state and territorial health departments and CDC
collaborate in determining which diseases should be nationally notifiable. CSTE, in conjunction
with CDC, makes recommendations annually for additions and deletions to the list of nationally
notifiable diseases. As knowledge increases and diagnostic technology improves, some
definitions will change to reflect those trends. Thus, future revisions of surveillance case
definitions can be expected. In addition, surveillance case definitiocns are to be used for
identifying and classifying cases, both of which are often done retrospectively, for national
reporting purposes. For many conditions of public health importance, action to contain disease
should be initiated as scon as a problem is identified; in many circumstances, appropriate public
health action should be undertaken even though insufficient information is available to determine
whether cases meet the case definition. Thus, surveillance case definitions should not be used
as sole criteria for public health action.

Agencies for information:

(1) Mary E. Chamberland, MD, MPH
Deputy Director
Division of Viral and Rickettsial Diseases
National Center for Infectious Disease
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
1600 Clifton Road, NE
M/S A30
Atlanta, GA 30333

Phone: (404) 639-4350
Email: MChamberland@cdc.gov

(2) George E. Hardy, MD, MPH
Executive Director
Association of State and Territorial Mealth Officers
1275 K. Street NW, Suite 800
Washington, DC 20005
Phone: (202) 371-9090
Email: Ghardy@astho.org

(3) Rosemary Humes, MS, MT
Director, Infectious Disease Programs

REVISION OF CSTE CASE DEFINITION FOR SARS
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Association of Public Health Laboratories
2025 M Street, NW, #550

Washington, DC 20036-3320

Phone: (202) 822-5227

Email: Sbecker@aphl.org

(4) Gregory Wagner MD
Director, Division of Respiratory Disease Studies
CDC NIOSH
1095 Willowdale Rd, H-2900
Morgantown WV 26505
Phone: 304-285-5749

Email: grw3@cdc.gov

(5) Michael Tapper, MD
President, Society of Healthcare Epidemiology of America
19 Mantua Road
Mt. Royal, NJ 08061
Phone: 856-423-0087
Email: mtapper@lenoxhill.net

(6) James G. Masland
Executive Director, Association for Professionals in Infection Control and Epidemiology,
Inc.
1275 K Street, NW, Suite 1000
Washington, DC 20005-4006
Phone: (202) 789-1890
Email: jmasland@apic.org

Agencies for response:
(1) James M. Hughes, MD
Director, National Center for Infectious Disease
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
1600 Clifton Road, NE
M/S C12
Atlanta, GA 30333
Phone: (404) 639-3401
Email: JHughes@cdc.qov

(2) Sam Groseclose, DVM
Chief, Surveillance Systems Branch
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
Epidemiology Program Office, MS K-74
1600 Clifton Road, NE
Atlanta, GA 30333
Phone: (770) 488-8359
Email: SGroseclose@cdc.gov

Authors:
(1) James Hadler, MD, MPH
State Epidemiologist and Director, Infectious Diseases Division
Connecticut Department of Public Health
410 Capitol Ave. MS 11-FDS
P.O. Box 340308

REVISION OF CSTE CASE DEFINITION FOR SARS
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Hartford, CT 08106
Phone: (860) 509-7995
Email: james.hadler@po.state.ct.us

{2) Umesh Parashar, MD, MPH
Medical Epidemiologist
Division of Viral and Rickettsial Diseases
National Center for Infectious Disease
Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
1600 Clifton Road, NE
M/S G04
Atlanta, GA 30333

Phone: (404) 639-3577
Email: UParashar@cdc.gov

Clinical description:

SARS-CoV disease typically begins with a prodrome, often with fever, chills and rigors,
headache, malaise, and myalgias. After 3--7 days, a lower respiratory illness develops in most
cases with a dry, nonproductive cough or dyspnea, sometimes with hypoxemia. Diarrhea has
been described in ~20% of SARS patients, and has been an early and prominent feature in
some. Chest radiographs show evidence of focal or generalized interstitial infiltrates in most
patients; cavitation, lymphadenopathy, and pleural effusion are generally absent. Lymphopenia,
thrombocytopenia, and elevated lactate dehydrogenase levels are cornmon.

Clinical Criteria

Early illness

« Presence of two or more of the following features: fever (may be subjective); chills; rigors;
myalgia; headache; diarrhea; sore throat; rhinorrhea.

Mild to moderate respiratory ifiness

» Temperature of >100.4° F (>38° C)', and

+ One or more clinical findings of lower respiratory iliness {e.g., cough, shortness of breath,
difficulty breathing).

Severe respiratory ifiness
» Meets clinical criteria of mild-moderate respiratory illness, and
» One or more of the following:
- Radiographic evidence of pneumonia, or
- Acute respiratory distress syndrome, or
- Autopsy findings consistent with pneumonia or acute respiratory distress syndrome
without an identifiable cause.

Epidemiologic Criteria

Possible exposure fo SARS-CoV

One or more of the following exposures in the 10 days before onset of symptoms:

« Travel to a foreign or domestic location with documented or suspected recent local transmission
of SARS-CoV®

- Close contact? with a person with mild-moderate or severe respiratory illness and with history of
travel in the 10 days before onset of symptoms to a foreign or domestic location with documented
or suspected recent local transmission of SARS ~CoV®.

REVISION OF CSTE CASE DEFINITION FOR SARS
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Likely exposure to SARS-CoV

One or more of the following exposures in the 10 days before onset of symptoms:

« Close contact” with a confirmed SARS-CoV case.

« Close contact” with a person with mild-moderate or severe respiratory illness for whom a chain
of transmission can be linked to a confirmed SARS-CoV case in the 10 days prior to onset of

symptoms.

Laboratory Criteria
« Detection of serum antibody to SARS-CoV by a validated test (e.g., enzyme-linked
immunosorbent assay [ELISA]), or
« |solation in cell culture of SARS-CoV from a clinical specimen, and PCR confirmation using a
test validated by CDC, or
« Detection of SARS-CoV RNA by a reverse transcription-polymerase chain reaction (RT-PCR)
test validated by CDC from:
-One specimen tested on two occasions (different runs) using the original clinical
specimen on each occasion, or
- Two specimens from different sources (e.g., nasopharyngeal and stool), or
- Two specimens collected from the same source on 2 different days (e.g., 2
nasopharyngeal aspirates).

Exclusion Criteria

A person may be excluded as a Report Under Investigation, including as a CDC-defined probable
SARS-CoV case if any of the following apply:

« An alternative diagnosis can fully explain the iliness.”

. Antibgdy to SARS-CoV is undetectable in a serum specimen obtained >28 days after onset of
illness.

+ The case was reported on the basis of contact with a person who was subsequently excluded
as a case of SARS-CoV, then the reported case is also excluded, provided other epidemiologic
criteria or laboratory criteria are not present.

Case Classification

SARS reports under investigation (RUI):

Reports in persons from areas where SARS is not known to be active

o RUI-1: Patients with severe illness compatible with SARS-CoV infection in groups likely to be
first affected by SARS-CoV® should SARS-CoV be introduced from a person without clear
epidemiologic links to known SARS-CoV cases or place with known ongoing transmission of
SARS-CoV.

Reports in persons from areas where SARS activity is occuring

o RUI-2: Patients who meet the current clinical criteria for mild-moderate illness and
epidemiologic criteria for possible exposure (Spring 2003 CDC definition for suspect cases’).

o RUI-3: Patients who meet the current clinical criteria for severe illness and epidemiologic
criteria for possible exposure (Spring 2003 CDC definition for probable cases’).

o RUI-4: Patients who meet the clinical criteria for early or mild to moderate illness and
epidemiologic criteria for likely exposure to SARS-CoV.

SARS-CoV Disease Classification

» Probable SARS-CoV case: a person who meets the clinical criteria for severe respiratory illness
and who meets the epidemiologic criteria for likely exposure to SARS-CoV.

REVISION OF CSTE CASE DEFINITION FOR SARS



CSTE Position Statement page 6 of 8

» Confirmed SARS-CoV case: a person who has a clinically compatible iliness (early, mild,
moderate or severe disease) that is laboratory confirmed.

Summary Tables of SARS-CoV Case Classification by Laboratory Testing Status

Reports Prior fo Definitive Laboratory Testing

Clinical Criteria for Degree of lliness

Epi Criteria for Exposure Early Mild-Moderate Severe

Unknown - - RUIH

Possible - RUI-2 RUI-3

Likely RUI-4 RUI-4 Probable SARS-CoV
case

Classification of Reports Following Definitive Laboratory Testing
Laboratory Testing Results

Initial Reporting Category Negative* Positive Not Done
RUI1-4 Excluded Confirmed indeterminate
SARS-CoV case
Probable SARS-CoV Case Excluded Confirmed Probable
SARS-CoV case SARS-CoV
Case

* negative test as defined by a negative antibody titer taken > 28 days after the onset of
symptoms. A negative PCR test does not rule out SARS-CoV infection.

REVISION OF CSTE CASE DEFINITION FOR SARS
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Footnotes

1. A measured documented temperature of >100.4° F (>38° C) is expected. However, clinical
judgment may allow a small proportion of patients without a documented fever to meet this
criterion. Factors that might be considered include patient self-report of fever, use of antipyretics,
presence of immunocompromising conditions or therapies, lack of access to health care, or
inability to obtain a measured temperature. Initial case classification based on reported
information may change and reclassification may be required.

2. Close contact is defined as having cared for or lived with a person with SARS or having a high
likelihood of direct contact with respiratory secretions and/or body fluids of a person with SARS
(during encounters with the patient or through contact with materials contaminated by the
patient), either during the period the person was clinically ill or within 10 days of resolution of
fever. Examples of close contact include kissing or embracing, sharing eating or drinking utensils,
close conversation (<3 feet), physical examination, and any other direct physical contact between
persons. Close contact does not include activities such as walking by a person or sitting across a
waiting room or office for a brief time.

3. Transit through a foreign airport meets the epidemiologic criteria for possible exposure in a
situation with a suspected or documented community transmission of SARS in that location (i.e.,
when a CDC travel advisory is in effect for that location). The surveillance periods for
documented or suspected local transmission of SARS in specific locations are available at
http://mww.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/casedefinition.htm. Types of locations specified will vary, e.g.,
country, airport, city, building, or floor of building. The last date a location may be a criterion for
exposure for iliness onset is 10 days (one incubation period) after removal of that location from
CDC travel alert notice. The case-patient’s travel should have occurred on or before the last date
the travel alert was in place. For assistance in determining appropriate dates, see
http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/travel.htm.

4. Factors that may be considered in assigning alternate diagnoses include the strength of the
epidemiologic exposure criteria for SARS, the specificity of the alternate diagnostic test, and the
compatibility of the clinical presentation and course of illness for the alternative diagnosis.

5. Current data indicate that more than 95% of SARS patients mount an antibody response to
SARS-CoV. However, health officials may choose not to exclude a case based on lack of a
serologic response if reasonable concern exists that an antibody response could not be mounted.

6. Consensus guidance between CDC and CSTE on which groups are most likely to be first
affected by SARS-CoV should it re-emerge is currently in development. In principle, SARS-CoV
infection should be considered at a minimum in the differential diagnosis in persons hospitalized
with pneumonia or ARDS of suspected but unknown infectious cause who are in any of the
following groups: a) health care workers who provide direct patient care; 2) travelers to or
persons in close contact in the preceding 10 days with other ill persons who recently (within 10
days of their iliness) traveled to mainland China, Hong Kong, or Taiwan; 3) persons who are
affected by an outbreak of severe, atypical pneumonia. Dynamic guidelines for identification,
evaluation and management of these persons are available at
http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/sarsprepplan.htm

7. During the original Spring 2003 outbreak of SARS, the CDC case definitions were:
Suspect Case
» Meets the clinical criteria for mild-moderate respiratory illness and the epidemiologic
criteria for possible exposure to SARS-CoV, but does not meet any of the laboratory
criteria and exclusion criteria, or
* Unexplained acute respiratory iliness resulting in death in a person on whom an autopsy
was not performed and who meets the epidemiologic criteria for possible exposure to
SARS-CoV, but does not meet any of the laboratory criteria and exclusion criteria.

REVISION OF CSTE CASE DEFINITION FOR SARS
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Probable Case

» Meets the clinical criteria for severe respiratory illness and the epidemiologic criteria for
possible exposure to SARS-CoV, but does not meet any of the laboratory criteria and
exclusion criteria.

REVISION OF CSTE CASE DEFINITION FOR SARS
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Appendix [E.
Page 1

SUMMARY TABLE FOR SARS CASE CLASSIFICATION

SARS Epi Criteria Clinical Criteria for Degree of Illness
Activity Early: Two or Mild- Severe: Temperature
more of the Moderate: > 100.4°F AND
following: Temperature > At least one symptom
Fever (may be 100.4°F AND of mild-moderate
subjective), chills, | at least one of | Yespiratory illness
rigors, myalgia, the following: AND at least one of
headache, diarthea, | Cough, shortness | the following:
sore throat, of breath, X-ray evidence of
rhinorrhea difficulty prieumonia, respiratory
breathing, distress syndrome
hypoxia (RDS), autopsy
findings consistent
with RDS without
identifiable cause
No *Healthcare
activity worker OR
worldwide | *Within 10 days prior
to symptom onset
either: For hospitalized
(a) Travel to cases only
China, Hong Kong or
Taiwan -
(b) Contact with iil Rep().rt U_nder
persons who traveled Investigation — 1
to these areas OR (RUI"I)
*Close contact with
persons with
unexplained
pnewmonia
Possible Exposure:
Within 10 days prior to
symptom onset:
* Exposure to location _ _
with known SARS R RUI-2 RUI-3
transmission OR
*Close contact with
.. probable SARS case
Actnl/l]ty Probable
anywiere Exposure; Within
in the .
10 days prior to
world
symptom onset:
*Close contact with Probable SARS
either a confirmed RUIL-4 RUI - 4 Co-V case

SARS case QR with
person with respiratory
itlness who is epi-
linked to a confirmed
SARS case

Section I-Surveillance
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Page
Reports with Definitive Laboratory Testing
Initial Reporting Laboratory Testing Results
Category Negative* Positive** Not Done
RUI 1-4 Excluded ConﬁrmeSi?RS-CoV Indeterminate
Probable SARS-CoV Confirmed SARS-CoV | Probable SARS-CoV
. Excluded
Disease case case

* Antibody to SARS-CoV is undetectable in a serum specimen obtained > 28 days

after onset of illness

ok Detection of serum antibody to SARS-CoV by a validated test (e.g., enzyme-
linked immunosorbent assay [ELISA]
Or
Isolation in cell culture of SARS-CoV from a clinical specimen and PCR
confirmation using a test validated by CDC
Or
Detection of SARS-CoV RNA by a reverse transcription-polymerase chain
reaction (RT-PCR) test validated by CDC from:
*  One specimen tested on two occasions using the original clinical
specimen on each occasion
Or
» Two specimens from different sources (e.g., nasopharyngeal and
stool)
Or
»  Two specimens collected from the same source on two different
days (e.g., 2 nasopharyngeal aspirates)

Section 1-Surveillance




SARS Reporting, Case Testin

and Follow-Up

Appendix 1F.

SARS Activity Clinical Epi Criteria Follow-up* Lab Testing
Criteria
Severe - (a) Healthcare worker (a) Review facility **Initiate SARS
hospitalized HCW surveillance testing for
(b) Travel to China, Hong | (b) At a minimum, reported case and
Kong, Taiwan Standard Respiratory | for other epi-
Precautions after linked persons
No Activity discharge with unexplained
pneumonia
fc) Identify other ill
persons, assess for
{¢) Cluster of unexplained | risk factors
prneumonia
Severe Same as No Activity — Same as No Activity | Same as No
travel is not to an area — consider voluntary | Activity
with current or recent home isolation
activity
Early, mild- {a) Travel to or (b) Isolate case until 10 Initiate SARS
moderate or contact with an ill person | days after fever testing
- severe who traveled to an area resolution
Sﬁﬁfﬂég‘;‘;ty wit_h _current or recent AND_ .
Anywhere; No activity Identify and monitor
2 (¢} Epi-linked to a contacts daily
Loecal Activity confirmed case
Early, mild- N/A Isolate case until 10 N/A
moderate or days after fever
severe resolution
AND AND
SARS Co-V + [dentify and monitor
contacts daily
Severe Same as No Activity — Same as No Activity | Same as No
travel is not to an area Activity
with current or recent
activity
Early, mild- (a) Travel to or contact Isolate case until 10 Initiate SARS
moderate or with an ill person who days after fever testing
severe traveled to an area with resolution
current or recent activity AND
{b) HCW at a facility with | Identify and monitor
- nosocomial transmission | contacts daily
SARS t‘;‘ii;:(‘]"fy (c) Epi-linked to (b) and (¢) Possible
Locally confirmed case quarantine of
contacts
Early, mild- N/A Isolate case until 10 N/A
moderate or days after fever
SGVere resolution
AND AND
SARS Co-V + identify and monitor

contacts daily
AND

Possible quarantine
of contacts

* This is a guide to assist with identifying basic activities. Individual case follow-up may require additional
consultation with the medical provider, LHD and NYSDOH.
** Based on lab capacity, the CDC recommendation of testing if no alternative diagnosis in 72 hours may be

implemented.
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County: Case Serial No.

Appendix 1G

Source Case Serial No.

SARS Case Interview Record

Symptom History:

Date of Symptom Onset: Date of Fever Resolution:
Case Status: CDC Classification: Investigation Close Date:
Report Source:
Assigned To: Supervisor; Interviewed By:
Date: {nterview Method:
Surrogate Interview? Source of Infection Known?
Infections Period (From 24 hours prior to symptom onset to 10 days after symptom resolution:  / / to [/ [
SRS CTe EFAVEREHT Ty
Depart Date Depart Location Arrive Date Arrive Location Transport Type
1.

Transportation Company/Follow up information:

[t

Transportation Company/Follow up information:

QUELKILIVHECAE LI Viel, ik ]

Activity Description: (including location) Start Date End Date # People Present County
L

Event Organizer/Supervisor/Follow up information:
2.

Event Organizet/Supervisor/Follow up information:
3.

BEvent Orpganizer/Supervisor/Follow up information:
SARS Contact List

Dates of Closest

Name Exposure Distance Frequency Tvpe Exposure County
1.

Address: Phone:
2.

Address: Phone:
3.

Address: Phone:

Section 1 - Surveiltance



County: Appendix 1H
Source Case Serial No:
SARS Contact Record
Name:
Sex: DOB: Race/Ethnicity:
Pregnant: Undertying Medical Conditions:

Contact Information:

Home Address: Work Address:
Phone: Phone:
Cellular Phone:

EXposurc HISory:

First Exposure:

Frequency/Duration:

Last Exposure:

Exposure Ongoing?

Type of Exposure:

Closest Distance:

IFOCW, facility Name:

Exposure Timing:

If HCW and/or exposed to an aerosol I

generating procedure, list PPE Used:

Eye Protection: Y /N/Unk
Respiratory

N95: Y /N/Unk
Other mask: Y /N/Unk
Gown; Y /N/Unk
Gloves: Y/ N/ Unk

If HCW, exposure to an Acrosol Generating Procedure? Y /N/Unk. If yes, describe:

Outcome.
Symptoms Present? Y /N / Unk

If Yes, Date of Onset: Symptoms: Date of Resolution:
Medical Exam? If Yes, Date of Exam:
MD Name: MD Telephone No.
Isolation; Start date: End date:
If Contact under Quarantine: Start date: End date:
RARS AdTmmisrative pata:
Initiating Agency: Investigating Agency:
Assigned To: Supervisor:
Date Notified: Disposition: Disposition Date:
SARSDx. Y/N/Unk Ifyes, Dx. Date: HIN Serial #:

Section 1-Surveillance
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PDOM . : oF new voRrK a
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Corning Tower The Governor Nelson A. Rockefeller Empire State Plaza Albany, New Yark 12237

Antonia C. Novello, M.D., M.P.H., Dr.P.H. Dennis P. Whalen
Commissioner Executive Deputy Commissioner

SEVERE ACUTE RESPIRATORY DISEASE SYNDROME (SARS)
CONTACT DAILY TEMPERATURE LOG

Name: Date of Birth:

Since you may have been exposed to severe acute respiratory syndrome (SARS) through either foreign travel or
close contact to someone who is ill with SARS, you need to monitor you temperature twice a day. This should be
done for the 10 days following your exposure (date of return from travel or date of last close contact with SARS
patient). Your local health department will provide you with the exact dates. You have been provided this chart,
the recommended infection control precautions for SARS patients and a supply of facial masks.

The attached chart is to record your temperature daily and any respiratory symptoms, should they occur. If you
develop a fever (greater than 100.4) OR any respiratory symptoms, such as cough or shortness of breath:

¢ Notify your health care provider immediately.
¢ [Ifyou are able, contact your local health department.
s Before leaving your home to seek medical attention, place a mask on your face.

The local health department will be contacting you daily to monitor your temperature and any symptoms. If you
have any questions about monitoring for symptoms, please contact at

You may wish to enter your health care provider’s name and telephone below for easy reference should you
become ill.

Health Care Provider:

Telephone Number:

Section 1-Surveillance
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Page 2
SEVERE ACUTE RESPIRATORY DISEASE SYNDROME (SARS)
CONTACT DAILY TEMPERATURE L.OG
Name: Date of Birth:
Date Morning Evening Cough | Shortness | Other Symptoms
Temperature | Temperature of Breath (Describe)
Y
Y

e s e e e e e e e e L e e e e e e e L e e e e e e e A e A B R B

Z|\Z\Z\Z21Z|Z2|2|Z2|Z2 |2 Z 2|2\ 2|2\ Z|Z|Z|Z|Z2 Z|\Z|Z2|\Z2|z2|Z2|Zz |2 /2 2\ z|2|z|Z|Zz|Z|Z

e I I L L L B B N s e B B L e N BN S B e e M S B B B e B Ea B R B R e
Z\Z\ 22\ 2\ Z\ 2V 2\ 2\ 2| 2| Z |2\ 2 Z Z|Z\|\ 2|\ Z | Z| 4|2 Z|Z|Z|Z|Z | 2| 2| 22| Z|Z | Z|ZZ|Z
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Original Patient Serial No.

Contact 1D No.

SEVERE ACUTE RESPIRATORY DISEASE SYNDROME (SARS)
CONTACT DAILY TEMPERATURE LOG TRACKING SHEET

Appendix 1J.

Name; Date of Birth: Telephone No.
Date Morning Fvening Cough | Shortness Other Unable | Person
Temperature | Temperature of Breath | Symptoms to Who
{Describe) | locate | Conducted
Follow-up
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2. Clinical Guidance
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B. Guidance for Infection Control
1. Background
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3. General Guidance
4. Infection Control Preparedness Planning for the Re-Emergence of SARS
5. Specific Triage Guidance
a. No SARS transmission identified worldwide
- Standard Respiratory Precautions for Healthcare Facilities
b. SARS re-emerges in the world without local transmission
¢. SARS re-emerges in the world with local transmission
6. Specific Infection Control Guidance
a. No SARS transmission identified worldwide
b. SARS re-emerges in the world without local transmission
¢. SARS re-emerges in the world with local transmission
d. SARS re-emerges in the world without local transmission, with
nosocomial {ransmission
e. SARS re-emerges in the world with local transmission, with nosocomial
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C. Clinical Evaluation of Patients
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2. Evaluation of Patients
a. No SARS identified worldwide
b. SARS identified in the world without local transmission
¢. SARS identified in the world with local transmission
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2. Ciinical Guidance

A. GENERAL DISEASE BACKGROUND

In mid-February 2003, reports of an outbreak of an atypical pneumonia of unknown etiology referred to
as Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) emerged in Asia. Because exposed and infected
travelers increase the rate of disease spread, SARS rapidly migrated from its origins in Guangdong
Province, China to Singapore, Vietnam, Hong Kong, Taiwan and Toronto, Canada. A smaller number of
cases were also reported in the United States and Europe. In April 2003 an unrecognized coronavirus,
called SARS-associated coronavirus (SARS-CoV), was identified as the cause of SARS. The syndrome
is characterized as a febrile severe lower respiratory illness with symptoms of headache, myalgia, cough,
shortness of breath, difficulty breathing and sometimes diarrhea.

In July 2003, SARS cases were no longer being reported, and the SARS outbreaks worldwide were
considered contained yet the possibility of SARS re-emerging continues to be of concern. There was
one isolated case of SARS confirmed in a laboratory researcher in Singapore in September 2003, It was
concluded that the researcher most likely acquired the infection in the laboratory where he had worked.

It is essential that our local and statewide public health efforts continue with its SARS
epidemiological surveillance and prevention activities in order to monitor reports of respiratory
illness that might be linked to SARS even while there in no SARS activity in the world. The
following is a guidance document for the identification, evaluation and prevention of
transmission of SARS in the healthcare and community settings.

B. GUIDANCE FOR INFECTION CONTROL,

1, Background:

Information from the SARS outbreaks worldwide during the spring of 2003 suggests that SARS
is transmitted through close contact with infected persons. SARS is most likely spread by
droplet transmission, however, the possibility of airborne transmission and spread through
fomites cannot be ruled out. Healthcare procedures that produce aerosols (e.g. nebulized
respiratory treatments, intubation/extubation and deep tracheal suctioning) appear to have an
impact on the transmissibility of SARS.

The investigations of the SARS outbreaks in Asia and Canada have illustrated the importance of
strict adherence to infection control practices. Focused infection control measures for the
prevention of transmission of all respiratory infections of unknown etiology is essential to
prevent outbreaks of respiratory illnesses, including SARS. In the absence of identified SARS
cases in the world, implementing the infection control strategies of Standard and Droplet
Precautions for respiratory infections of unknown etiology with the additional incorporation of
Standard Respiratory Precautions principles will control transmission without overburdening the
healthcare system. Implementation of this strategy will likely impact the transmission of
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seasonal circulating infections that are transmitted by respiratory spread (e.g. influenza,
adenovirus, respiratory syncytial virus, and Mycoplasma pneumoniae).

2. Purpose:

Guidance for infection control and prevention for SARS will be dependant on the emergence of
SARS worldwide, nationwide, statewide, and/or locally. Approaching infection control
measures according to the level of known SARS activity will enable healthcare facilities to
maintain an environment that is safe for the prevention of communicable disease outbreaks,
while not overtaxing the healthcare system with intensive isolation procedures and public health
notifications. The intention of this document is to assist healthcare facilities in the planning for
SARS cases and to provide specific infection control guidance for the following scenarios: no
SARS transmission has been identified in the world; SARS transmission identified in the world,
but no transmission locally; SARS transmission identified locally; and nosocomial SARS
transmission identified. Under conditions where there is no SARS in the world, there is no need
for enhanced surveillance of mild respiratory discase. If SARS does re-emerge, subsequent
infection control and surveillance guidance follows, according to the level of SARS activity
identified.

3. General Guidance:

Early and adequate triage of all patients with respiratory symptoms at all entry points of the
healthcare delivery system is a key strategy in preventing outbreaks of respiratory infections.

The triage principles for respiratory symptoms should be uniform, regardless of where the patient
accesses the system. We appreciate that there are healthcare personnel with varying levels of
education that are the first points of contact for patients, depending on the type and size of the
facility. Triage of patients with respiratory symptoms utilizing the Standard Respiratory
Precautions is integral in preventing the transmission of respiratory infections, including SARS.
If the re-emergence of SARS is documented in the United States or abroad, the likelihood that
persons with respiratory infections may be infected with SARS will increase significantly. In the
presence of SARS worldwide, locally and within healthcare facilities, healthcare facilities must
ensure that intake and triage staff are updated regularly on the current status of SARS. Triage
and intake staff should be educated to the signs and symptoms of and trained to assess for current
risk factors for SARS. At all times intake and triage staff must continue to utilize Standard
Respiratory Precautions as described in this document, as it is integral in preventing transmission
of respiratory infections, including SARS.

4, Infection Control Preparedness Planning for the Re-emergence of SARS:

a. Develop strategies for triage and admission that minimize the risk of transmission to
staff, patients and visitors.

1. Determine how possible SARS patients will be triaged, evaluated, diagnosed, and
isolated.

2. Review admission procedures, and determine how the process can be streamlined
to limit the number of patient encounters by healthcare personnel.
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3. Develop a plan fo screen facility employees and visitors before entering the
facility, to be implemented, with guidance from NYSDOH and the local health
department, if local or nosocomial transmission of SARS was identified.

b. Develop a patient transport plan to safely move SARS patients within the facility.

1. Identify appropriate paths for entry and movement of SARS patients in the facility
that are segregated from main traffic routes.
2. Educate transportation staff on the general principles of infection control.

¢. Reinforce infection control education and training of healthcare personnel.

1. Determine how training and education will be provided for all hospital personnel
that may be affected by SARS.

2. Educate healthcare personnel about the importance of strict adherence to infection
control measures, especially hand hygiene, standard and transmission-based
precautions, correct sequence of and methods for donning and removing personal
protective equipment, and Standard Respiratory Precautions.

3. Educate on the proper use of personal protective equipment (PPE) as per Standard
and Transmission-based Precautions, including donning, removing and disposing
of PPE (Guidance from CDC in development).

4. Educate personnel on SARS, including the signs and symptoms, epidemiology,
and transmission. Include the risks of transmission involved with procedures that
produce aerosols (e.g. bronchoscopy, intubation/extubation, nebulized
respiratory treatments, and deep tracheal suctioning).

5. Educate healthcare workers on your facility’s procedure for reporting employee
CXPOSUres.

6. Assure respiratory fit-testing program is in compliance with OSHA guidelines and
sufficient numbers of staff have been fit-tested and trained in fit-checking before
use. Establish methods to easily identify those employees, patients and/or visitors
that had contact with a case of unexplained pneumonta.

7. Develop a strategy for regularly updating clinicians and screening/triage staff on
the current status of SARS, including changes in the case definition.

5. Specific Triage Guidance

a. No SARS Transmission Identified Worldwide:
1. Initial presentation into the healthcare delivery system:

a. The Standard Respiratory Precautions detailed below should be utilized at all
points of entry into the healthcare delivery system:
» emergency departments;
» outpatient clinics;
» physician offices.
b. Early detection of patients with respiratory symptoms can take place at triage
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areas, reception areas or during the scheduling of appointments.
¢. Health care providers and non-licensed personnel will play an important role
in early identification and should all be familiar with and incorporate Standard

Respiratory Precautions into their practice.

Standard Respiratory Precautions for Healthcare Facilities

Provide surgical masks to all patients with symptoms of a respiratory illness.
Provide instructions on the proper use and disposal of masks.

For patients who cannot wear a surgical mask, provide tissues and instructions on
when to use them (i.e., when coughing, sneezing, or controlling nasal secretions),
how and where to dispose of them, and the importance of hand hygiene after handling
this material.

Provide hand hygiene materials in waiting room areas, and encourage patients with
respiratory symptoms to perform hand hygiene.

Designate an area in waiting rooms where patients with respiratory symptoms can be
segregated (ideally by at least 3 feet) from other patients who do not have
respiratory symptoms.

Place patients with respiratory symptoms in a private room or cubicle as soon as
possible for further evaluation.

Implement use of surgical or procedure masks by healthcare personnel during the
evaluation of patients with respiratory symptoms.

Consider the installation of plexiglass barriers at the point of triage or registration to
protect healthcare personnel from contact with respiratory droplets.

If no barriers are present, instruct registration and triage staff to remain at least 3 feet
from unmasked patients and to consider wearing surgical masks during respiratory
infection season.

Continue to use droplet precautions to manage patients with respiratory symptoms
until it is determined that the cause of symptoms is not an infectious agent that requires
precautions beyond standard precautions.

2. Admissions into the healthcare delivery system:

The focus of SARS surveillance in the absence of SARS worldwide is aimed at
early detection of cases and clusters of respiratory infections that might signal the
re-emergence of SARS. Certain characteristics have been gathered from the
epidemiology of SARS, and will signal sentinel events that should be reported to
public health. Facilities should anticipate all the varying ways patients are
admitted to their hospital (e.g. direct admissions, emergency room, and from other
facilities) and target those modes of admission for further screening. All
healthcare providers must be trained to utilize the following screening tool to
screen all patients hospitalized with pneumonia at all points of entry into the
healthcare delivery system:
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Screening Tool fox Patients Hospitalized with Pnewmonia

Screen all patients who require hospitalization for radiographically confirmed pneumonia or
acute respiratory distress syndrome without identifiable etiology and who have one of the
following risk factors in the 10 days before onset of illness:

» Travel to mainland China, Hong Kong, or Taiwan, or close contact
with an ill person with a history of recent travel to one of these areas,
OR

» Employment in an occupation associated with a risk for SARS-CoV
exposure (e.g. healthcare worker with direct patient contact; worker in
a laboratory that contains live SARS-CoV), OR

» Part of a cluster of cases of atypical pneumonia without an alternative
diagnosis.

>

If the patient answers yes to any of the three screening questions, providers should:

% Continue Droplet Precautions (note: as per Standard Respiratory
Precautions, all patients with respiratory infections of unknown
etiology should be placed on Droplet Precautions);

» Notify their local health department

» Evaluate according to the Algorithm in Appendix 2D.

Additional factors that increase the likelihood of SARS-CoV infection:
» While traveling, visited a healthcare setting.
» While traveling, had close contact with a person with pneumonia of
unknown etiology.
» Part of a cluster of unexplained pneumonia in which one case is linked
to a previously SARS-affected area or to an ill healthcare or lab
worker.

Risk factors from previously SARS affected areas:
» Although less likely, SARS may re-emerge from Hanoi, Singapore or
Toronto.
» Ifill travelers from these areas are highly suspected to have SARS,
providers should evaluate and report.

Infection Control practitioners and other healthcare personnel should also be alert for clusters of
preumonia among two or more healthcare workers who work in the same facility.

Screening of persons requiring hospitalization for radiographically confirmed pneumonia for risk
factors suggesting SARS-CoV exposure should be limited to adults, unless there are special
circumstances that make the clinician and public health personnel consider a child to be of
potentially high risk for having SARS-CoV disease.
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3. Key points for admission:

a. The Standard Respiratory Precautions is the first line of defense for the
prevention of transmission of respiratory infections;

b. If a physician is admitting a patient directly to a hospital, they should follow
Standard Respiratory Precautions, including giving the patient a surgical mask
to wear, if they can tolerate;

c. All healthcare workers can implement Standard Respiratory Precautions for a
patient admitted with respiratory symptoms;

d. If the patient is being admitted with a diagnosis of a respiratory infection of
unknown etiology, Droplet Precautions are to be instituted until the infection
is deemed non-communicable.

b. SARS Re-emerges in the World without Local Transmission:

1. Continue to utilize Standard Respiratory Precautions as described earlier.

2. Continue to screen as in Section 2 above. In addition, screen all patients
presenting to a health care facility (emergency room, outpatient clinic, or
physician office) with a fever or respiratory symptoms (cough, shortness of
breath, difficulty breathing) for SARS risk factors within the10 days prior to
symptom onset. Qutpatient clinics and physician offices should screen patients at
the time of scheduling appointments and again when they arrive to the
clinic/office.

SARS risk factors include:

* A history of foreign travel (or close contact with an ill person with
a history of travel) to a location with documented or suspected
SARS-CoV, or

e Exposure to a domestic location with documented or suspected
SARS-CoV (including a laboratory that contains live SARS-CoV),
or close contact with an ill person with such an exposure history.

¢« Employment as a healtheare worker, or

¢ Close contact within 10 days of illness onset with a person with
confirmed or probable SARS-CoV or SARS-CoV report under
investigation.

3. If a patient with a fever or respiratory infection has a SARS risk factor(s):

a. Place on Airborne and Contact Precautions.

b. Place the patient in an airborne isolation room (AIIR) or consider cohorting
patients if airborne isolation rooms are not available in the facility (see
Infection Control Guidance).

c. In outpatient clinics and physician offices where AIIR may not be available,

| immediately place patient in private exam room, and

| d. Notify your local health department
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Persons with such an exposure history should be evaluated for SARS-CoV
disease according to the algorithm in Appendix 2E.

¢. SARS Re-emerges in the World with Local Transmission:

—_

Continue to utilize Standard Respiratory Precautions as described earlier.
Screen ALL patients, visitors and employees entering the facility for fever or
respiratory symptoms (cough, shortness of breath and difficult breathing).

If fever or respiratory symptoms are present, screen for SARS risk factors.

If a patient with a fever or respiratory symptoms has SARS risk factor(s):

a.

b.

C.

d.

Keep patient masked as per Standard Respiratory Precautions, and institute
Airborne and Contact Precautions

Place in an airborne isolation room (AIIR) or consider cohorting patients if
airborne isolation rooms are not available in the facility (see Infection Control
Guidance)

In outpatient clinics and physician offices where AIIRs may not be available,
immediately place patient in a private exam room, and

Notify your local health department for further guidance.

If an employee with a fever or respiratory symptoms has SARS risk factors, refer
to Employee Health Surveillance Guidance Part D of this document.

If a visitor with a fever or respiratory symptoms has SARS risk factors, refer to
Vistor Guidance Part E of this document.

6. Specific Infection Control Guidance

a. No SARS Transmission Identified Worldwide:

1.

2

Follow the Standard Respiratory Precautions described previously for all patients
who present with respiratory symptoms of unknown etiology.
Reinforce compliance with hand hygiene by:

a.

Educating on the importance of hand hygiene for the prevention of
transmission of infectious agents;

Providing easy access to hand hygiene products at the point of care.
See CDC Guideline for Hand Hygiene in Health Care Seftings
(http://www.cdc.gov/handhygiene/) for more details on guidance and

suggestions for improving adherence.

Assure adequate cleaning of the patient care environment by:

a.

b.

Assuring the product used for daily routine and discharge cleaning of patient
areas is an Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) registered low- or
intermediate-level disinfectant and it is used as per the manufacturer’s
instructions.
Assessing the protocols used by your facility for daily and discharge cleaning
to assure adequacy. They should minimally include:

» Daily cleaning of:

o horizontal surfaces (e.g. over-bed table, night stand);

o frequently touched surfaces (e.g. bed rails, phone);
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lavatory surfaces.

Discharge cleaning of:

surfaces described above;

visibly soiled vertical surfaces (e.g. walls, curtain dividers);
frequently touched surfaces such as light switches and door knobs.

c. Assess compliance with discharge cleaning by identifying a person in the
facility to perform daily rounds to inspect cleanlinesss.

d. See CDC Guideline for Environmental Control in Health-Care Facilities,
2003 (http://cdc.gov/ncidod/hip/enviro/guide.htm) for specific guidance for
maintaining a safe environment for patients.

4. Reinforce the Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) regulation
of no eating and drinking in patient care areas.

000 VO

b. SARS Re-emerges in the World without Local Transmission:

1. Follow the recommendations in Specific Infection Control Guidance — No SARS
Transmission Identified Worldwide.

2. Assign a point person to regularly access CDC Website to obtain updated
information on the epidemiology of SARS, and to share the up to date case
definition with clinicians and screening/triage personnel.

3. Screen all patients at all points of entry to the facility for fever, respiratory
symptoms, and SARS risk factors.

4. For Patients meeting the established SARS case definition:

a. Utilize Airborne, Contact, and Standard Precautions, including approved eye
protection (e.g. face shield or goggles) for all patients who meet the case
definition for suspect or probable SARS.

b. When possible, admit patients meeting the SARS case definition to airborne
infection isolation rooms (AIIR). Perform a smoke test before admitting to
the AIIR to assure negative air flow. See CDC Guideline for Environmental
Control in Health-Care Facilities, 2003
(http://cde.gov/ncidod/hip/enviro/guide.htm) for detailed specifications for
AlIR.

c. Ifan AIIR is not available, place the patient in a private room, wear personal
protective equipment as per Airborne, Contact and Standard Precautions, and
contact your local health department for further guidance on patient
placement.

d. Patient procedures:

» Perform high risk procedures that increase aerosolization (nebulized
treatments, deep tracheal suctioning, intubation/extubation only if
medically necessary);

» Perform high risk procedures on AIIR only with staff who have been
fit-tested for an N95 respirator or higher protection, and with staff that
have received enhanced infection control training on the prevention of
transmission of SARS;
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> Avoid transport out of the patient’s room for procedures (except as
above). If transport is necessary, choose a route that will come in
contact with the minimum numbers of individuals.

5. If the numbers of suspect or probable SARS cases exceed the availability of

AlIRs, a SARS unit may be designated:

a. Provide enhanced infection control education to direct patient care staff and
assure all staff are fit- tested for and utilize an N95 respirator;

b. Consider cohorting suspect or probable SARS cases in private rooms on the
same unit;

c. Consider adapting the airflow of cohorted unit to negative pressure (with
guidance from an engineer specialized in air handling);

d. If cohorting as above, AlIRs are still preferred for:

» Patients who are known to have transmitted SARS to other persons;
> Patients in whom the risk of SARS is being assessed (to avoid placing
non-SARS affected patients on a SARS unit).
6. Environmental Guidance for rooms occupied by SARS cases:

a. Airborne and Contact Precautions (including eye protection) are to be
maintained during cleaning by environmental services personnel
(housekeeping). Provide training on how to appropriately don and remove
personal protective equipment (PPE) and perform hand hygiene.

b. Frequently touched surfaces are to be wiped down with an Environmental
Protection Agency (EPA) registered low — or intermediate- level
disinfectant and allowed to dry as per manufacturer’s recommendations.

c. Inpatient rooms are to be cleaned and disinfected daily and at the time of
patient discharge. Surfaces include:

» Surfaces to be cleaned daily include:
o Horizontal surfaces (e.g. over-bed table, night stand)
o Frequently touched surfaces (e.g. bed rails, phone);
o Lavatory facilities.
» Surfaces to be cleaned following transfer or discharge include:
o Surfaces described above;
o Obviously soiled vertical surfaces;
o Frequently touched surfaces such as light cords, switches
and door knobs;
o Curtain dividers should be changed and laundered.

d. Solutions used for cleaning should be discarded after use. Thoroughly rinse

and clean housekeeping equipment after use after use and allow to dry.

c. SARS Re-emerges in the World with Local Transmission:

1. Follow the recommendations above for Specific Infection Control Guidance — No
SARS Transmission Identified Worldwide and SARS Re-emerges in the World
without Local Transmission.

2. Designate an area as a SARS evaluation area. These areas should be further
divided into patients, visitors and employees.
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10.

11.

Have hand hygiene products available on entrance and instruct all person being

screened to de-germ hands.

Actively screen all persons entering the facility for fever or respiratory symptoms

and epidemiological risk factors (linked transmission) and fill out screening tool

(see appendices 2A and 2B).

All personnel at patient evaluation areas should wear gloves, gowns, fit-tested

N95 respirators, and face shields for evaluation of patients, visitors and staff.

Hand Hygiene is to be performed between contacts.

All personnel at visitor and employee evaluation areas are to wear fit-tested N95

respirators and to perform hand hygiene between contacts (rationale: minimal

direct contact should occur at these check points).

For patients with fever or respiratory symptoms:

a. Place a surgical mask on the patient;

b. Evaluated need for admission to the hospital;

¢. If patient is being hospitalized, admit to AIIR (or SARS unit as per [.5) on
Airborne and Contact Precautions;

d. If patient does not meet the criteria for admission, consult your local health
department regarding need for home isolation (note: patient may require
admission if home isolation is not possible).

For employees who present with fever or respiratory symptoms, see Employee

Health Surveillance (part D).

For visitors who present with fever or respiratory symptoms, see Visitor Guidance

(part E).

Designate personnel who have received enhanced infection control training to

screen/triage patients, visitors and employees and perform direct patient care with

SARS cases.

Designate specific SARS patient-flow routes that minimize contact with

employees, visitors and other patients.

d. SARS Re-emerges in the World without Jocal transmission, with Nosocomial
Transmission:

1.

L

Follow the recommendations above for Specific Infection Control Guidance — No
SARS Transmission Identified Worldwide and SARS Re-emerges in the World
without Local Transmission.

Fax an Infection Control Report form DOH 4018 to the NYSDOH Central Office
at 518- 474-7381 and call your NYSDOH Regional Epidemiologist.

Screen all inpatients for symptoms of SARS (see appendix 2C).

Collaborate with NYSDOH and the local health department on specific infection
control measures, including cohorting and patient restrictions.

Plan cohorting in the following manner:

> If the nosocomial fransmission can be clearly linked, designate the
following cohorts:
o Cohort known, suspect and probable SARS patients in
private rooms on one unit;
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*  Modify existing rooms to achieve negative pressure
(collaborate with facility engineer and NYSDOH);

» [frooms cannot be modified, have patients wear
surgical masks, if tolerated;

* Designate staff for cohort.

o Cohort patients exposed to known SARS cases, with febrile
or respiratory symptoms in private rooms on one unit,

» If the nosocomial transmission cannot be clearly linked, designate the
following cohorts:

o Afebrile and asymptomatic patients with no close SARS
contact discharge as soon as medically indicated;

o Afebrile and asymptomatic patients with close SARS
contact — discharge with contact restrictions and local
health department follow-up;

o Febrile or symptomatic patients not meeting the case
definition;

o Patients meeting the case definition.

e. SARS Re-emerges in the World with local transmission, with Nosocomial
Transmission:

1. Follow the recommendations above for Specific Infection Control Guidance
SARS Re-emerges in the World with Local Transmission (6¢.), and 6d.2-5.

C. CLINICAL EVALUATION OF PATIENTS:

1. General Information:

Since Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) emerged during the winter of 2002 through
the spring of 2003, the diagnosis of unexplained pneumonia has become an issue. The clinical
assessment of the patient with severe pneumonia will now add emphasis on epidemiologic risk
factors. The likelihood of a patient being infected with SARS approaches zero unless certain
clinical and epidemiologic risk factors are present. However, to date, there are no specific
clinical or laboratory findings that can distinguish SARS with certainty. Therefore, approaching
all respiratory illness with appropriate respiratory infection control measures from the initial
presentation of the patient becomes critically important. This approach has the added benefit of
preventing the transmission of other respiratory diseases as well.

2. Evaluation of Patients

a. No SARS Identified Worldwide:

I. The approach to the patient with respiratory illness when there is no documented
SARS in the world will focus on patients who require hospitalization for
radiographically confirmed pneumonia or acute respiratory distress syndrome
without identifiable etiology with the following criteria:
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.....................................................

..............................................................................................

> Suggestive clinical presentation with radiographically confirmed
pneumonia or acute respiratory distress syndrome of unknown etiology
»  TFever, cough, dyspnea and infiltrates on CXR

And

» Epidemiologic features suggesting possibility of exposure to SARS-

CoV:

= Travel to mainland China, Hong Kong, or Taiwan, or close
contact with an iil person with a history of recent travel to one
of these areas, OR

»  Employment in an occupation associated with a risk for SARS-
CoV exposure (e.g. healthcare worker with direct patient
contact; worker in a laboratory that contains live SARS-CoV),

OR

»  Part of a cluster of cases of atypical pneumonia without an
alternative diagnosis.

...............................................................................................

2. When there is no documented SARS in the world, a careful history of the patient
hospitalized with severe pneumonia is key. Droplet precautions should become
routine when evaluating a patient with pneumonia (see appendix 2D).

3. Utilize the screening tool in the triage section above for patients admitted with

pneumonia,

a. If the answers to questions in the screening tool are no, continue the
evaluation for community-acquired pneumonia and treat clinically.
b. If the answer is yes to one of the three questions in the screening tool:
o Notify the local health department

and

o Consider the following in the work up and diagnosis:
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CBC with differential

Pulse oximetry

Blood cultures

Sputum Gram’s stain and culture

Testing for viral respiratory pathogens such as
influenza A and B, respiratory syncytial virus
Creatine phosphokinase levels, lactate
dehydrogenase levels

Specimens for legionella culture and urinary antigen
Specimen for pneumococcal urinary antigen
Transaminase levels

aPTT

C-reactive protein




4. 1f the health department and clinician have a high suspicion for SARS, institute
Airborne and Contact Precautions and call the New York State Department of
Health Regional Epidemiologist for your area.

5. If after seventy-two hours there is an alternative diagnosis, treat as clinically
indicated. If there is not an alternative diagnosis, and the patient is part of a
cluster of pneumonia or there is a high index of suspicion of SARS, continue
treating pneumonia and consult with the local health department for consideration
of SARS-CoV testing.

b. SARS Identified in the World without Local Transmission:

If there has been no exposure to settings with current SARS activity, the risk of disease is still
very low. A higher index of clinical suspicion occurs with a patient hospitalized with
pneumonia with a travel history to a previously SARS-affected area, clustering, or with a
healthcare association, However, exposure to settings with documented SARS activity poses
a significant risk and a lower threshold for clinical suspicion for SARS should be maintained.

1. Any patient with either fever OR respiratory systems should be asked about:
> Recent exposure to a SARS-affected area or close contact with ill
persons with exposure to such areas (foreign or domestic)
> Recent exposure to a person suspected of having SARS

2. SARS should be considered among patients with both:
» EBarly clinical features compatible with SARS (i.e. fever OR
respiratory symptoms)

AND

» Evidence suggesting potential exposure to SARS CoV
o Exposure to areas currently affected by SARS (foreign or
domestic)
OR
o Close contact to a suspected SARS case

3. When SARS is being considered, institute Airborne and Contact Precautions and
notify the Local Health Depattment.

4. Diagnostic testing should include the tests previously described in the work up of
community-acquired pneumonia (see Appendix 2E). In patients who have
radiographic evidence of pneumonia with a possible exposure, initiate SARS-CoV
testing.

SARS-CoV testing includes: (See Laboratory Guidelines for guidelines for
collection of specimens; review infection control precautions before collection)
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» Blood: (Serum or plasma) RT-PCR testing — should be obtained
within 1 week of symptom onset for best results; however, may be
useful until day 21 post symptom onset

» NP swab plus OP swab: RT-PCR testing-During the first week of
iliness and serial specimens thereafter

> Stool: Begin collecting stool early in the illness but most likely
positive after the first week; may be positive as long as 1 month

5. SARS CoV testing must be done in consultation with the Local and State Health
Departments. It will be preferable to collect multiple specimens from different
sites and at different times during the illness to accurately make a diagnosis.

6. Ifthere is no radiographic evidence of pneumonia with a possible SARS
exposure:
a. Begin Airborne and Contact Precautions and follow for 72 hours.
b. If no improvement, re-evaluate and consider SARS testing continuing
isolation precautions.
¢. If radiographic evidence of pneumonia, follow procedures as above. (See
appendix 2F)

7. Elderly patients or those with underlying chronic illness may not present in the
same manner as other patients. Also the presentation of children may be
different. These populations with SARS risk factors must be considered with a
high index of suspicion for SARS. Discussion with public health should be
initiated early in the evaluation.

¢. SARS Identified in the World with Local Transmission:

1. In the midst of local fransmission, if occurring in well-defined settings with all
cases linked to other cases, continue as above and consider a diagnosis of SARS
in all persons with radiographic evidence of pneumonia (even if not hospitalized)
if they:

a. Have close contact with a person with documented pneumonia, or

b. Have had exposure to hospitals or outpatient clinics in the 10 days prior to
symptom onset (includes both healthcare workers and non-healthcare
workers).

2. In the midst of a community outbreak in which the transmission is widespread
and epidemiologic linkages between cases are not well defined, consider SARS in
any patient presenting with fever or respiratory illness.

d. SARS Identified in the World with Nosocomial Transmission:
In hospitals known to or suspected of having nosocomial transmission of SARS, clinicians

and public health officials must be particularly vigilant about evaluating fever or respiratory
symptoms among inpatients.
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D. EMPLOYEE HEALTH SURVEILLANCE and EXPOSURE FOLLOW UP:

1. General Information:

The information gained from the study of SARS clusters worldwide clearly illustrates that health
care facilities play a major role in the epidemiology of SARS, and that healthcare workers were
at increased risk for acquiring the disease. It is important to prepare for possible re-emergence of
SARS during the period of time when there are no SARS cases. Containment depends on early
identification of cases, and it is healthcare workers that will be the first to both recognize new
cases and to be exposed to SARS.

For this reason it is important to conduct surveillance activities among healthcare workers
(HCW) to ensure the rapid identification and treatment of potential SARS cases. The healthcare
community must be vigilant in identifying “sentinel” cases. Sentinel cases would include petsons
from high-risk groups that are hospitalized for unexplained pneumonia. These high-risk groups
include healthcare workers, travelers to areas previously affected by SARS, and any cluster of
persons with pneumonia of unclear etiology. When SARS has been identified in the world it is
important to maintain an increased awareness among healthcare workers.

2. Surveillance of Health Care Workers

a. No SARS identified worldwide:

The purpose of monitoring health care workers would be to identify any cases of unexplained
pneumonia, either single cases or clusters that may signify a new suspect case of SARS. Both
hospitals and outpatient facilities need to establish systems for monitoring personnel for
respiratory illness by instituting the following:

1. Designate those responsible for the monitoring of employee health concerns in
regard to respiratory infections. The most appropriate entity would be an
employee health service. If such a service is not available, then a medical director,
infection control professional, or other appropriate person should be designated.

2. Instruct all healthcare workers to report respiratory infections with pneumonia to
their physician and facility designate.

3. Establish a means performing active surveillance of employee infections to
identify clusters of unexplained pneumonia.

b. SARS identified worldwide, without local transmission:

Both hospitals and outpatient facilities need to continue activities initiated when there was no

SARS in the world.
1. Include the same surveillance activities instituted when there was no SARS in the
world, plus
2. Establish a means of performing active surveillance of employee infections to
identify any case of unexplained pneumonia.
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¢. SARS identified in the local community, not in the facility:

Maintain surveillance activities as above, plus the following:
Actively Screen: (see appendix 2A)

1. All HCWs with direct patient contact should be monitored daily for fever and
respiratory symptoms. All those with respiratory symptoms and/or fever >
100.4°F should be furloughed and evaluated according to the SARS algorithm (or
other finalized document).

2. HCWs should be monitored daily in regard to possible contact with a SARS
patient in another healthcare facility or in the community. If an unprotected
contact occurs, the worker should be furloughed and monitored daily for possible
symptoms.

3. HCW illness and absenieeism should be monitored and evaluated for links to
known SARS cases.

4. A sign-in procedure/log book for all HCW who come in contact with SARS cases
should be initiated to track contacts. (see appendix 2F)

d. SARS identified in the facility:

Maintain surveillance activities as above, plus the following:

1. All staff, including those that are not HCWs, should be monitored daily for fever
and respiratory symptoms. Those with either fever or respiratory symptoms
should be furloughed and evaluated according to the SARS algorithm (or other
finalized document).

2. Any staff member that has a possible unprotected exposure to a SARS case
should be furloughed and evaluated according to the SARS protocol (or other
finalized document).

3. All absent employees should be contacted directly and questioned about their
symptoms.

4. Consider home/work restriction of movement for all HCWs or for HCWs that
have worked in the area of transmission.

3. Exposure of Healthcare workers-Policy and Procedure:

a. Exposure Policy and Procedure:

1. Establish an exposure reporting process that includes methods for identifying
exposed personnel (e.g. self-reporting by employees, logs of personnel entering
SARS patient rooms).

2. Establish procedures for managing unprotected high-risk exposures. These
exposures occur when a healthcare worker is in the same room as a probable
SARS patient during an aerosol-generating procedure and infection control
measures are either absent or breached. The policy for exposure to high risk
procedures should include:

Section 2-Clinical Guidance
2-18




» The HCW is be furloughed from work for 10 days following the date
of last exposure;

» The HCW need not limit activities outside of the home if
asymptomatic;

» The HCW is to be counseled on the symptoms of SARS and instructed
to record symptoms (e.g. temperature/respiratory symptoms twice
daily).

» The HCW is to report to employee health or designate once a day on
health status, or immediately at the onset of symptoms

3. Establish procedure for unprotected exposures that are not high risk. This policy
should inchude:

»  Asymptomatic healthcare workers
o Need not be excluded from duty or limit activities outside the

healthcare setting;
o Should undergo active surveillance for the development of fever
and/or respiratory symptoms;
o Should report daily to employee health or designate
4, Establish procedures for managing symptomatic healthcare workers. Any
healthcare worker who has been exposed to a SARS patient and develops
symptoms within 10 days of exposure should immediately:

» Contact employee health or designate;

> Report to predetermined location for a clinical evaluation and wear a
surgical mask;

> Contact local health department for further guidance.

4. Mental Health of Healthcare Workers

Mental Health concerns of all healthcare workers needs to be considered in planning for a SARS
outbreak. Working with the threat of a highly contagious and dangerous disease can be
extremely stressful for all involved. The necessity of working while wearing PPE and the
possibility of quarantine also can take a toll. Preparations need to be made for the possibility of
rotating staff whenever feasible, of breaks from patient care and PPE, and the availability of
counseling when needed. Once SARS is identified in the world staff concerns may be
heightened. Psychological support and mental health services must be available for all HCW.

E. VISITOR GUIDANCE:

1. General Guidance;

A visitor is anyone entering a health care facility site to visit a patient or staff member, attend a
meeting or event, or accompanying an individual accessing health care treatment, assessment,
examination or investigation. Visitors have a responsibility to behave in a manner that does not
put others at risk, and to respond to staff's requests and hospital regulations for the protection of
themselves and others.
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Guidance for the notification, surveillance and/or restriction of visitors is dependant on the level
of SARS activity on the world, national, state and local levels. Healthcare facilities should
prepare for each level of SARS activily to assure they can have systems in place quickly in the
event access to the facility would need to be monitored and/or restricted.

2. Policy Development/Review:

All healthcare facilities should review or develop visitation policies to assure that visitors,
patients, healthcare workers and the general public are protected from the transmission of
communicable diseases. The following areas should be covered in the aforementioned policy:
a. Delinecation of where visiting is allowed and visiting hours.
b. Precautions a visitor must take if visiting a patient in a high-risk area, on
transmission-based precautions, or if being trained to assist in providing care.
c. Identification and exclusion of visitors with communicable diseases.
. Instructing visitors to practice hand hygiene.
e. Reinforcing Standard Respiratory Precautions for those visitors with an upper
respiratory infection who must enter the facility.
f. Post signage in strategic locations in the facility and at entrances enforcing
key points of your visitor policy (e.g. hand hygiene, Standard Respiratory
Precautions, exclusion of visitors with communicable diseases).

3. Preplanning — Facility Protocols and Procedures Relating to Visitors:

The level of intensity for the identification and screening of visitors will be dependant on the
SARS activity identified worldwide, nationwide, statewide and/or locally. Facilities will need to
proactively devise a plan to both identify visitors who enter the facility, and screen them for
symptoms of respiratory infections. Since the organizational and physical structure of each
facility varies, facilities will need to devise their own plan. This plan should minimally include
the following elements:

a. Develop a system in which visitors entering the facility can be traced in the
event that they need to be contacted due to an exposure. This can be in the
form of written or computerized logging. The information recorded should be
specific, designating the area or patient visited, to allow for adequate contact
tracing.

b. Identify one area in the facility where visitors can have access in the event
active screening of symptoms must take place. Make provisions for security
of the area.

¢. Devise a plan to screen all visitors who enter the facility for symptoms in the
event the NYSDOH deems this a necessary precaution.

4. Visitor Guidance

a. Re-emergence of SARS in the World, no local Transmission:

1. Place signs (bi or multiligual depending on facility’s patient population) at all
entrances and strategic locations detailing the symptoms of and any current
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2.

3.

epidemiological risk factors for SARS. These signs should designate visitors who
have SARS risk factors and symptoms to don a surgical mask and go to a
designated screening area (e.g, Urgent Care or Emergency Department).

Visitors who are ill should NOT visit the facility and should be directed to

seek appropriate care.

Facility staff should be on heightened alert for any visitors who may appear

ill and should question the visitor to confirm that they have been screened for
SARS.

b. Re-emergence of SARS in the World, with local Transmission:

1.

w

Signs alerting visitors to the need for implementing SARS screening should be
posted in strategic locations throughout the facility, at entrances, and at the visitor
check-in point. Written notification about the need for SARS screening may also
be handed out with visitor passes/badges. Signs should also advise visitors to
self-screen for a fever or respiratory illness such as a new cough or shortness of
breath. (see appendix 2G)

The facility should designate entrances that will remain open and those that will
be closed.

Visitors should be limited (e.g. one per patient per day).

All visitors must complete a SARS visitor entry screening tool/questionnaire at a
check-in site prior to each entry into the health care facility using the visitor entry-
screening tool. (see appendix 2B)

Visitors who meet the SARS criteria and are identified as a health risk on SARS
screening may be refused entry to the facility and should be given a surgical mask
to wear and directed to contact their health care provider immediately or triaged
to an area for further evaluation.

The facility should have sufficient security to ensure the safety of patients and
visitors and be available to respond to any disruptions that may occur due to
concerns about the need for SARS screening and the refusal of entry. If they
continue to refuse to leave the local police should be called for assistance.
Visitors who are asymptomatic after screening, may enter the facility upon
registering at the patient’s unit (or other designated area). (See appendix 2H)
Visitors who are asymptomatic and allowed to visit a suspect or probable SARS
patient must have received education about contact and airborne precautions,
Standard Respiratory Precautions and hand hygiene, as well as their responsibility
for adherence to them by a facility designate responsible for education.

Visitors must wear personal protection equipment {i.e. gloves, gown, eye
protection and N95 respirator - instructions on donning the N95 respirator will be
provided, but fit testing will not be required for visitors). The facility staff will
need to assist any visitors with correct removal of personal protection equipment.

¢. Re-emergence of SARS in the World, with Nosocomial Transmission:

1.

If nosocomial transmission with clearly identified source:
a. Visitation should be limited (e.g. one per patient per day);
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b. Maintain a log of visitors to SARS patients to aid in contact tracing (see
attachment #8);

¢. All visitors should have a fever check and perform hand hygiene upon
entering and leaving;

d. All visitors should be instructed on the use of personal protective
equipment to prevent and exposure.

2. If nosocomial transmission without clearly identified source:
a. No visitors allowed in the hospital unless necessary (e.g. parents or
translators);
b. Visitors must receive infection control training

Section 2-Clinical Guidance
2-22




@eq

STUEPINE eS¢ UoIsSy

‘aneubis (jund) euleN

‘any sl joo] Bulusalog Yy syl Bunsidwon jo ssodind ay) o) papiacsd aABy | JBU) UoneuLIoj ey abpsimouy AW JO 1S8q aU) 0] 18U} SJejoap |

‘sjeudoidde 1 ' 1sjuen uoneneas pajeubisep Jo ‘yeey salojdws Japiaald areaud yim dn mojio)

‘aHT R Bulchuowl ainjeiadulal Airep 221 pue LUONR|OSI-HES YIM siney 7/ o) dn Jo) sWoH «— S$9A 51 D I0 g Auo J]
{suonnesaud Je[dolp) uonen|eAs [edjUl|D €— S3A Yjog aie 5 0NV 8 GNV ON SIV §

‘peESYE |[BD ~(2iU|D SHYS o) Juswpedaq fousbiawy <€— SeA SI D10 g ONV S9A SV §

uogen|eas 1o} YiesH olldnd AlloN €= saAsiy Aluo s |y o

L]

leliou s1 einjesadils) pue g pue v SUoieS 0} ON Sl esucdsey  QQYd

[]

[] s3aa

ON (¢ o 001 2A0QE auneladwa) ay) 1) Fo einjesadwel
ainjeredws) sy} piodey ) NOILDAS

[] s3i

3IN0Y $ IS8 8U} Ul 9||IY2 J0 SSHBYS PRY ‘USLoAD) Buljes

HO (noA JoL [eLliou i JeyM LEL? 9SI0M) LJBSIY [0 SSTULOUS

”O (shep / uiypm josuo) ybnoD

H0 (Bnsn uey; esiom).syoepeal Jareg

[1 ON HO (Buiea; ||amun Jo ssaupal) slenaes) asiejell pauledxaun
HO  (ssyoe gppsnw) eifjeAw paue|dxaun

¢swoydwis Buimolioy sy jo ATE Bupusiedxe nok aly g NOILD3S

HO wva@E:oov U3aq SBY SHYS JO UOISSILLSURL laym Allj0B) 8180 Y)eay & Ul usag nok aaey SAep | 15B] 8Ul UILIAA 2
HO (SHYS 1sueBe uonosjold Buneem jou sjym sAep 0} 1SE| BU} Ul SHYS UM Uosiad B 10} PeiBd/ulim JOBJUOD PRy nok sAeH *|

[l s3a [] ON

‘V NOLLDIS

nuswaedaq/eus HIop jediduld O 44V1S

vz xipueddy SHIAMHOM THVOHLIVIH 10} 1001 ONINTFYOS (dwolpuig Alojeiidsay 9)ndy 918A98) SHVS



Appendix 2B
SARS Screening Tool for Visitors to Healthcare Facilities
To protect the health of others, please answer the following questions. You will not be permitted to enter
the facility unless screening has been completed. This information is necessary to prevent the spread of

disease. All of the information collected will be kept confidential and will be disposed of after 45 days.

All visitors with fever or respiratory illness such as a cough or shortness of breath, and/or diarrhea should
not enter the facility and should seek appropriate medical care. Do not leave any questions blank.

Name of Visitor Name of Patient

Visitor Address:

Visitor Telephone No. Cell Phone No.

Please put a check as appropriate to the following questions:

Relationship to the patient? H family member L1 retative [ friend
1. Do you have any of the following symptoms?

. Feeling feverish ] No L] ves
. Cough 1 No [ Yes
. Diarrhea L] No [ Yes
. Muscle Aches L] No [] Yes
. Shortness of breath 1 No [ Yes

2. Have you recently traveled to a foreign country within the last 10 days? [ ] No [ ves
If YES, where did you travel?

3. Have you been in contact with someone diagnosed with SARS within the last 10 days? LInNo [ ves
4, Have you been in a health care facility where SARS was documented? CINo [ ves

RECORD TEMPERATURE: “F Is temperature above 100.4°F? [ 1No [ Yes

Visitor Signature:

Approved to enter facility? [INo [ Ves

Reviewer Signature: Date:
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DAILY INPATIENT SCREENING FORM

Appendix 20

Patient Name:

Patient 1D #:

Room #:

|

|

if fever (>100.4°F) or symptoms of respiratory iliness are new onset, institute SARS precautions

Significant
Temperature change in
{highest in Shortness| Difficulty | respiratory
DATE Fever |last24 hours})| Cough | of Breath | breathing rate Notes
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o Algorithm for evaluation and management of patients hospitalized with
radiographic evidence of pneumonia in the absence of SARS-CoV transmission

worldwide
Radiographic evidence of pneumonia requiring hospitalization?
Yes No

Continue droplet precautions and treat as clinically indicated

Treat as clinically
for communty-acquired pneumonia?

indicated

The clinician should ask the patient about the following: -

A. Recent travel (within 10 days) to mainland China, Hong Kong, or Taiwan3or close
contact with ill persons with a history of travel to such areas |

B. Employment in an occupation at particular risk for SARS-CoV exposure, including
a healthcare worker with direct patient contact or a worker in a laboratory which
contains live SARS-CoV

C. Close contact with others who have been told they have pneumonia

Yes to one of three questions No to three questions

Treat as clinically
indicated

1. Notify the local health department

2. Evaluate for alternative diagnosis as clinically indicated.
This work up may include the following:

A. CBC with differential

B. Pulse oximetry

C. Blood cultures

D. Sputum Gram's stain and culture

E. Testing for viral respiratory pathogens such as influenza
A and B, respiratorysyncytial virus

F. Specimens for legionella and pneumococcal urinary
antigen

3. The health department and clinicians should look for
evidence of clustering of patients with radiographically-
confirmed pneumonia without alternative diagnoses (e.g.,
while traveling, exposure to other cases of pneumonia,
clusters of pneumonia among healthcare workers).

4, NOTE: If the health department and clinician have a high
suspicion for SARS-CoV infection, consider SARS isolation
precautions and immediate initiation of the algorithm in
Figure 2

After 72 hours, alternative diagnosis?
Yes No
Treat as clinically indicated If part of a cluster of pneumonia (or there are other
reasons to consider at higher risk for SARS-CoV
disease), consider SARS-CoV testing in consultation

with health department. Continue treating
pneumonia as clinically indicated.

10r Acute Respiratory Distress Syndrome (ARDS) of

unknown etiology

2 Guidance for the management of community-acquired

pneumonia is available from the Infectious Diseases
Society of America (IDSA) and can be at
http://www.journals.uchicago.edu/IDSA/guidelines/.

3 The 2003 SARS-CoV autbreak likely originated in

mainland China, and neighboring areas such as
Taiwan and Hong Kong are thought to be at higher
risk due to the high volume of travelers from mainland
China. Although less likely, SARS-CoV may also
reappear from other previously affected areas.
Therefore, clinicians should obtain a complete travel
history. If clinicians have concerns about the
possibility of SARS-CoV disease in a patient with a
history of travel to other previously affected areas
(e.g., while traveling abroad, had close contact with
another person with pneumonia of unknown etiology
or spent time in a hospital in which patients with
acute respiratory disease were treated), they should
contact the health department.



Appendix 2E

2Exposure history for SARS: Once SARS-CoV transmission is documented in the world:

. In settings of no or limited local secondary transmission of SARS-CoV, patients are
considered exposed to SARS if, within 10 days of symptom cnset, the patient has:
o} Close contact with someone suspected of having SARS, OR
0 A history of foreign travel {or close contact with an iil person with a history of
travel) to a location with documented or suspected
SARS, OR
0 Close contact to a domestic location with documented or suspected recent
transmission of SARS.
. In settings with more extensive transmission, all patients with fever or respiratory

symptoms shouid be evaluated for possible SARS, since the ability to determine
epidemiologic links will be lost.

3Work up: Initial diagnostic testing for suspected SARS patients may include:

* Chest radiograph

* Pulse oximetry

* Blood cultures

* Sputum Gram's stain and culture

» Testing for viral respiratory pathogens, notably influenza A and B and respiratory syncytial
virus {RSV)

* Legionella and pneumococcal urinary antigen testing if radiographic evidence of pneumonia.

An acute serum sample and other available clinical specimens (respiratory, blood,
and stool) should be saved for additional testing until a specific diagnosis is made.

SARS testing may be considered as part of the initial workup if there is a high level
of suspicion for SARS based upon exposure history. For additional details on
specialized laboratory testing options available through the health department and
laboratory response network (LRN), see Supplement F.

aAlternative diagnosis: An alternative diagnosis should be based only on laboratory
tests with high positive predictive {e.g., blood cuiture, viral culture, Legicnella
urinary antigen, pleural fiuid culture, transthoracic aspirate). The presence of an
alternative diagnosis does not necessarily rule out co-infection with SARS-CoV. In
some settings, PCR testing for hacterial and viral pathogens can also be used to help
establish alternative diagnoses.

sRadiographic testing: Chest CT may show evidence of an infiltrate before a chest
radiograph (CXR). Therefore, a chest CT should be considered in patients with a
strong epidemiologic link to a known SARS case and a hegative CXR 6 days following
onset of symptoms. Alternatively, the patient should remain in SARS isolation and
the CXR should be repeated on day 9 after symptom onset.

sPiscontinuation of SARS isolation precautions: SARS isolation precautions should be
discontinued only after consultation with local public health authorities and the
evaluating clinician. Factors that might be considered inciude the strength of the
epidemiologic exposure to SARS, nature of contact with others in the residential or
work satting, strength of evidence for an alternative diagnosis, and evidence for
clustering of pneumonia among close contacts. Isolation precautions should be
discontinued on the basis of an alternative diagnosis only when the following criteria
are met:

. Absence of strong epidemiologic link to known cases of SARS
. Alternative diagnosis confirmed using test with high positive predictive value
. Clinical manifestations entirely explained by alternative diagnosis
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. No evidence of clustering of pneumonia cases among close contacts (unless

>1 case In the cluster confirmed to have the same alternative diagnosis)

. All SARS cases identified in surrounding community can be epidemiologically

linked to known cases or locations in which transmission is known to have
occurred.

L
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SARS Patient Contact Log

Appendix 2F

Patient Name Room No. Bed No.
Date | Time Name of Service Main Activity Time
In Healthcare/Staff (i.e. nursing, Out
Person housekeeping,
therapist)

Main Activity: direct patient care, respiratory therapy, physical evaluation, laboratory specimen collection
for blood, respiratory etc., housekeeping, change bed, assist with feeding, medication administration.

Healthcare/Staftf Person: An employee or member of the hospital staft including patient care,
housekeeping, ancillary services. Does not include visitor or family/household member of the patient.
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Visitor Notification
Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS)

SARS is an unexplained severe respiratory illness that has been identified in the
community/facility. This disease has caused outbreaks of illness among close
contacts of SARS patients and to persons working in healthcare setting. As a result
of the re-emergence of SARS, it is necessary for our Hospital to institute
precautionary measures to epsure that our hospitals are as safe as possible for our
patients, their family and friends as well as our healthcare workers. For the safety of
our visitors as well as our patients and staff, we will be taking the following
measures:

Visiting hours will be strictly enforced 7 days a week:

Restriction on visitors
- Each patient will only be allowed 1 registered visitors;
- Children under the age of 12 are generally not allowed into the patient care area;
- Pregnant women are strongly discouraged from visiting the hospital,
- Visitors are not permitted to visit any patient who is under quarantine or in
isolation, unless exceptional circumstances and prior approval has been oblained,
Exception
- Exception can be made on compassionate ground, such as immediate family members
of critically ill patients, fathers of new born, parents of small children.

Visitors entrance and exit
- Please use the designated SARS screening site locate to enter and exit the hospital.

Visitors screening

i) Self-screemning before visiting hospitals
Please do not come to visit the hospital if you are not feeling well or have an illness
that can be transferred to our patients. If you are not sure, please check with your
family doctor,

i) Screening before entering the wards
You are required to complete a vistor’s entry screening questionnaive asking if you
have fever, cough and diarrhea. Those who answer positively to the above shall not
visit the ward and are advised to see medical attendance.

Visitors registration
- You will be required to sign a vistor’s record designed to track patient visit in the
hospital .
~ A visitor pass will be provided from the registration desk and to be returned there
following the visit.

Section 2-Clinical Guidance 1



Appendix 2G

Visitors responsibilities:

Observe the visiting hours for the area you are visiting;

Patients are not allowed to leave the ward during the hospital stay unless permitted;
Family and visitors are advised not to gather in groups in hospital premises;

You are asked to stay in the patient or visitor room as much as possible, for the
duration of the visit. Please be advised against moving around to other patients and
sitting on patient’s bed,;

You must wash/sanitize yowr hands upon entry to the hospital, before and affer any
contact with any patient, and prior to leaving the hospital;

We thank the visitors and the community in advance for its continued compliance with
these precautionary measures.
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VISITOR REGISTRATION LOG

Appendix 2H

Patient Name Room No. Bed No.
Date Time Name of Visitor Visitor Telephone | Relationship Time
In No. Out
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Appendix 21

New York State Department of Health
Environmental Control Measures for
Airborne Infection Isolation Surge Capacity Planning
in Health Care Facilities for
Smallpox, SARS or Other Infections
Potentially Transmitted via Airborne Droplet Nuclei
December 18, 2003

This Environmental Control Measures guideline has been developed to assist infection
control and plant management/engineering staff in health care facilities prepare for a natural
or terrorist event involving an infectious agent capable of being transmitted via airborne
droplet nuclei (smallpox, SARS, M. tuberculosis, etc.). Although the epidemiology and
transmission of SARS has not been fully elucidated, current CDC recommendations call for
airborne infection isolation precautions when caring for suspected SARS cases, in addition
to standard and contact precautions, to ensure the greatest degree of safety for patients,
healthcare workers and the community.

The control of communicable disease outbreaks (natural or intentional) requires prompt
identification, appropriate isolation and treatment of affected individuals, strict adherence to
infection control measures, monitoring and evaluation of control measures and ongoing
education and training of staff. The focus of this document, environmental control
measures, is only one component of the hierarchy of control measures. Therefore, these
measures should be integrated into the facility’s overall infection control and disaster
response plans,

Goals/Objectives

1. Provide environmental control measure guidelines to assist healthcare facilities
prepare for a bioterrorist event or naturally occurring outbreak involving a large
number of persons requiring airborne infection isolation.

2. Ensure the provision of essential healthcare services while minimizing the risk of
transmission to others, especially in acute care facilities where individuals at
greatest risk of severe morbidity and mortality receive care.

Definitions of an Airborne Infection Isolation Room and Unit

Throughout this document, an Airborne Infection Isolation Room (AIIR) is defined as a
patient room meeting the following criteria'”;

e Private room,

e Negative directional airflow from common areas into the room,

e A minimum of 6-12 air exchanges per hour [supplement with high efficiency
particulate air (HEPA) filtration system or ultraviolet germicidal irradiation (UV), if
insufficient dilutional ventilation]; and

¢ Direct exhaust to the outside of the building > 25 feet from an air intake or exhaust
through a HEPA filtration system.
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An Airborne Infection Isolation Unit (AII Unit) is defined as a separate, dedicated area
to care for patients suspected or confirmed to have an infection capable of being transmitted
via airborne droplet nuclei. See the section entitled Surge Capacity Planning for
Airborne Infection Isolation — Establishment of Airborne Infection Isolation (All)
Unit for environmental control measures to establish these units.

STEPS ALL FACILITIES SHOULD TAKE IN PREPARING TO RESPOND
EFFECTIVELY TO AN AIRBORNE COMMUNICABLE DISEASE CASE OR
OUTBREAK

I. Perform a Facility Assessment (Building Survey)”

Assumptions regarding current facility design:

s Most buildings are designed to supply a combination of fresh and recirculated air

e Most buildings have multiple heating, ventilating and air conditioning (HVAC)
zones with each zone having an air handler and duct system

¢ Isolation of zones requires full-height walls or barriers between each zone and its
adjacent zones, including hallway/entry doors

o Elevators, stairwells and hallways can affect airflow and dispersion of contaminated
air to other zones

s Construction or renovation can affect air flow patterns

1. Assess the current ventilation system(s) of the facility

A. Determine and document the number and location of the different HVAC zones
and their air handling units

B. Determine and document areas served by each zone/system

C. Document smoke compartments [based upon physical barriers (e.g., doors) and
ventilation (e.g., dampers)]

D. Document location of air intakes, exhausts, and switches for each
system/zone/compartment

I:. Determine arcas with smoke purge fans and record the location of controls or
switches, if applicable

F. Ensure all systems are functioning as designed and/or document current
functioning of each zone/system including checking the integrity of all ducts

2. Identify all AlIRs throughout the facility [emergency department (ED), inpatient, etc.]
and ensure they are functioning properly

A. Create and maintain a current list of all AIIRs

B. Monitor each room with smoke test (or other visible method) daily when in use for
airborne isolation, regardless of the presence of a continuous monitoring system or
device

C. Monitor monthly with smoke (or other visible method) when not in use for
airborne isolation

D. Maintain a record of all monitoring
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II. Surge Capacity Planning for Airborne Infection Isolation — Establishment of
Airborne Infection Isolation (AIl) Units

Using the information compiled in the facility assessment, infection control and plant
management/engineering should identify an area or areas that can be quickly converted to
cohort patients with the same infectious agent. If the infectious agent has the potential to be
transmitted by airborne droplet nuclei, the areas for cohorting need to have negative
directional airflow relative to other areas and air should be directly exhausted to the outside
and not recirculated to other areas. Develop contingency plans for increasing numbers of
patients requiring isolation.

1. Identify units, floors, wings or buildings with separate air handling systems, separate
HVAC zones, or smoke compartments to create an All Unit
A. Tdentify areas where air will not recirculate to other parts of the facility
B. Identify areas that can be physically separated from other patient care areas
1) Consider smoke compartments that are physically separated with doors or
arcas in which a temporary barrier can be constructed to minimize the
migration of air to other patient areas
2) Select areas with no flow through traffic
C. The directional air flow on the units should be able to remain negative relative to
other patient care areas or areas with potential exposure to others
D. The air from the units should be directly exhausted to outside of the building more
than 25 feet from an air intake or pass through a HEPA filtration system and not
recirculated to other areas
E. If the above criteria cannot be met, consider portable HEPA units, UV units or
other mechanisms to achieve supplemental air disinfection
F. ldeally, the isolation units would contain all private rooms
2. If there is not a unit, floor, wing or building with a separate air handling
system/zone/smoke compartment, evaluate HVAC control options to minimize spread of
an infectious agent. Consider the following environmental control measures that can be
implemented in the event of a surge in cases requiring airborne infection isolation:
A. Decrease supply or increase exhaust to modify directional air flow on unit or in
ro0ms
B. Minimize proportion of air that is recirculated
C. Increase filter efficiency
1) HEPA filtration — high efficiency particulate air filtration (99.97% @ 0.3
microns) but consider the following concerns with HEPA:
1. May adversely affect directional air flow due to increased
resistance
2. Tncreased static resistance can result in increased load on
motor/fan units
Increased energy consumption
Increased likelihood of motor/fan failure/burnout
Cost to design or retrofit the entire air handling system
Proper installation, maintenance and monitoring are critical

Sk
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2) Consider filters with higher minimum efficiency reporting value (MERYV)
rating, [e.g. MERV > 13]
D. Create a physical separation from other patient units
1) Establish negative air flow on the designated unit
1. Consider use of portable or fixed HEPA units vented to the
outside
2. Venting portable HEPA units to the outside through corridor
windows may be able to create negative directional air flow
from the hallways on the unit to the outside
3. Venting HEPA units to the outside through window/wall in
patient rooms may be able (o create negative directional air flow
in the patient rooms relative to the corridor
4. Use exhaust fans in windows, if HEPA units are not available,
and if there is no potential for air re-entry or exposure to persons
outside the window
2) Consider effect of stairwells and elevators
1. Weather strips can minimize uncontrolled air infiltration
3) Consider use of facility’s smoke-purge systems, if feasible
4) Document optimal HVAC control settings for normal use and the steps
necessary to modify the system(s) in the event of an emergency
5) Ensure staff are trained to properly maintain the system(s) under normal
conditions and to modify the system(s) in the event of an emergency
6) Document and ensure that there is an effective communication plan between
clinical staff, infection control and plant management/engineering to initiate
system modifications
7) Hold drills to ensure effective communication and to measure the effects on
the ATl Unit and other building systems and areas
8) Evaluate building operations after any system modification to ensure
there is not a detrimental effect on building systems or the building
occupants

Please note:

NYSDOH Bureau of Architectural and Engineering Facility Planning (BAEFP) will allow
temporary modification to existing facilities without prior approval to respond to a biologic
event or outbreak. Permanent changes or modifications (renovation and new construction)
must comply with the American Institute of Architects/Facility Guideline Institute
(AIA/FGI) guidelines as required by NYSDOH code.

III. Emergency Department Guidelines

1) Place signs at all enfrances to minimize exposure in all outpatient waiting areas
a) Provide directions for patients with febrile rash or febrile respiratory conditions to
mask and report symptoms immediately to triage staff
b) Ensure surgical masks, tissues, and alcohol-based handrubs are readily available for
symptomatic patients, including at the entrance near the signs
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i} Mask patients and family members/friends, if symptomatic to prevent
acrosolization of infectious particles
i1) Have tissues, waste containers and alcohol-based hand rubs available in waiting
areas
¢) Promptly mask and triage patients with febrile rash or febrile respiratory illness and
place in pre-designated AIIR or other appropriate room (see below)
d) Limit visitors or other persons accompanying the patient
2) Registration areas should have barriers (e.g., plexiglass) to separate patients from each
other and staff
3) Waiting areas
a) Separate persons with febrile rash or febrile respiratory illnesses from others
b) Establish air flow patterns that will minimize exposure, if possible
i) For example, directional/downward airflow pattern
¢) Enhance dilutional ventilation (increased air exchanges) while maintaining
appropriate directional air flow, if feasible
i) Increased air mixing may pose an additional risk if not diluted and directed
properly.
i) Do not increase air mixing if it will increase exposure to others
d) If air is recirculated, consider supplemental HEPA or ¢nhanced filtration to decrease
airborne contaminants (proper installation and maintenance of filtration systems are
critical) or supplemental ultraviolet germicidal irradiation for air disinfection
(UVGI) (proper installation, maintenance and monitoring are critical for the safe use
of UVGI)
4y Triage area
a) Have N95 respirators immediately available for staff
i) Ensure staff have been fit-tested
ii) Ensure appropriate sizes and type of respirators are available
b) Have surgical masks, tissues and alcohol-based handrubs immediately available
5) Patient care areas
a) Identify AIIR rooms and ensure they are functioning properly
i) Establish priority criteria for placement in bonafide AIIRs based on risk of
transmission
(1) Suspected diagnosis
(2) Exposure history
(3) Extent/severity of symptoms
(4) Aerosol-generating procedures
b) Develop plans for overflow/surge in number of patients requiring isolation
i) Identify supplemental rooms
(1) AIIR on other units
(a) Use precautions during transport
(b) Notify unit prior to arrival of patient
(¢) Minimize contact with others during transport
(2) Private rooms with doors closed
(a) Supplement dilutional ventilation with portable HEPA or UVGI, if
available
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(b) If none of the above are available, consider window fans exhausting air
to the outside, while ensuring no potential air re-entry or exposure to
persons outside

(3) Pre-identify a separate area near the emergency department or in an alternate
setting that can be quickly converted to provide for triage, surge capacity
and cohorting of individuals with febrile rash or febrile respiratory
conditions

(a) Establish a system to initiate cohorting

(b) Establish criteria for instituting cohorting

(c) Educate and perform a drill to ensure frontline healthcare providers
can implement the system :

¢} ldentify areas and procedures for storage, donning, and removal of PPE
i) Ensure appropriate PPE is immediately available for staff
ii} Ensure PPE can be appropriately discarded after use or if reusable (e.g., power
air supplied respirators) protocols are in place to ensure safe decontamination
and reprocessing
iii) Ensure hand hygiene can be performed immediately after removal of PPE
d) If aerosol-generating procedures (e.g., sputum induction, intubation, positive
pressure oxygen, bronchoscopy, etc.) are medically necessary for patients in the
emergency department, perform them in a special booth or hood with local exhaust
ventilation or in a room that meets the criteria for airborne infection isolation
e) Limit patient movement to medically essential procedures only
1) Notify unit where procedure is to take place prior to transport
i) Utilize precautions during transfer and during procedure
f) Ensure appropriate cleaning and disinfection of medical equipment and
environmental surfaces in immediate patient vicinity after patient leaves, as well as
transport equipment (stretcher or wheelchair)

IV. Guidelines for the Inpatient Setting

1. Identify AHR rooms on all patient units
A. Ensure clinical staff know the location of all AIIRs
B. Ensure appropriate staff have the authority to place suspect or confirmed cases on
appropriate isolation precautions
2. Establish priority criteria for placement in bonafide AIRs based on risk of transmission
A. Suspected diagnosis
B. Exposure history
C. Extent/severity of symptoms
D. Aerosol-generating procedures
3. Develop plans for overflow/surge in the number of cases requiring airborne infection
isolation
A. Consider use of AIIRs on other units
B. Ifinsufficient AlIRs, consider use private rooms with doors closed
1) Use portable HEPA, if available
2) Use exhaust fan blowing out to achieve negative directional airflow if there is
not a potential for air re-entry or direct exposure to others (pedestrians etc.)
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C. If the number or location of AIIRs is not sufficient or appropriate, cohort patients
with the same infectious agent in a designated unit, floor, wing or building
(Dedicated All Unit)

1) Ensure appropriate administrative and clinical staff have the authority to
initiate cohorting and/or establish the AIl Unit when needed

2) Ensure policies and procedures are in place to establish the AIl Unit

3) Train and drill clinical staff on protocols for establishing the AII Unit

4) Ensure plant management/engineering staff are trained to implement the
necessary engineering modifications

D. Identify areas and procedures for storage, donning, and removal of PPE

1) Ensure appropriate PPE is immediately available for staff
2) Ensure PPE can be appropriately discarded after use or if reusable (e.g.,
power air supplied respirators) protocols are in place to ensure safe
decontamination and reprocessing
3} Ensure hand hygiene can be performed immediately after removal of PP
4. Ensure appropriate environmental conditions for high risk acrosol-generating
procedures are available

A. Perform in a room that meets the criteria of an AIIR or if AIIR is unavailable, in a
special booth or hood with local exhaust ventilation

B. Ensure appropriate PPE is available for staff

5. Develop admission and discharge policies/procedures for use during mass events
A, Discontinue elective admissions
B. Establish referral systems for patients depending upon level of care required
1) Establish written memoranda of understanding (MOU) with long term care,
homecare or other facilities capable of providing alternate care for patients
2) Coordinate triage plan with local/state health departments, regional resource
centers (for facilities outside of New York City) and local emergency
managers
6. Ensure that systems for prompt reporting to and communication with state and local
health department are in place

A. During outbreaks of severe, highly contagious diseases, local health departments
should be notified when infectious patients are discharged to the community or
moved between hospitals, counties, states or other countries

B. Collaborate with local and state health departments to improve hospital
bioterrorism and outbreak preparedness

V. References:

1. American Institute of Architects. Guidelines for Design and Construction of Hospital
and Health Care Facilities 2001 Edition. The American Institute of Architects:
Washington D.C. [not available on the web}

2. CDC. Guidelines for preventing the transmission of Mycobacterium tuberculosis in
health-care facilities. MMWR 1994; 43 (RR-13).
http://www.cde.gov/mmwr/PDF/RR/RR4313.pdf
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3. U.S. Army Corps of Engineers. Protecting buildings and their occupants from airborne
hazards — Draft. October 2001.
http://buildingprotection.sbeccom.army.mil/downloads/reports/airborne_hazards report.pdf

4. NIOSH. Guidance for protecting building environments from airborne, chemical,
biological, or radiological attacks. DHHS (NIOSH) Pub No. 2002-139.
http://www.cde.gov/niosh/bldvent/2002-139.html

5. NIOSH. Guidance for filtration and air-cleaning systems to protect building
environments from airborne, chemical, biological, or radiological attacks. April 2003.
http://www.cde.gov/niosh/docs/2003-136/pdfs/2003-136.pdf

Comments and questions should be directed to:
Rachel L. Stricof

E-mail: rlsOl@health.state.ny.us

Tel: 518 474-7000
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Disease Facilities
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3. Non-hospital Isolation and Quarantine

A. Goals

The goals of community containment measures are to:

¢ Reduce the risk of exposure to SARS by separating and restricting the movement of
persons suspected to have SARS

s Reduce the risk of transmission of SARS-CoV by restricting the movement of
contacts who may have been exposed to infectious SARS patients but are not yet ilL.

o Reduce the overall risk of transmission of SARS-CoV at the population level by
limiting social interactions and preventing inadvertent exposures.

B. Definitions

Isolation is the separation from other persons, in such places, under such conditions, and

for such time, as will prevent transmission of the infectoius agent, of persons known to

be ill or suspected of being infected (10 NYCRR 2.25(d)).

» Isolation allows for the focused delivery of specialized health care to persons who are
ill, and it protects healthy persons from becoming ill.

e 11l persons are usually isolated in a hospital, but they may also be isolated at home or in
a designated community-based facility, depending on their medical needs.

» “Isolation” is typically used to refer to actions performed at the level of the individual
patient.

Personal quarantine (hereinafter referred to as "quarantine") means restricting household
contacts and/or incidental contacts to premises designated by the health officer (10
NYCRR 2.25(1)).

e Persons are usually quarantined in their homes, but they may also be quarantined in
community-based facilities.

e Quarantine can be applied to an individual or to a group of persons who are exposed
at a large public gathering or to persons believed exposed on a conveyance during to
international travel.

¢ Quarantine can also be applied on a wider population- or geographic-level basis.
Examples of this application include the closing of local or community borders or
erection of a bartier around a geographic area with strict enforcement to prohibit
movement into and out of the area.

The ultimate goal of isolation and quarantine is to separate and restrict the movement or
activities of persons who are ill, suspected of being ill, or who have been exposed to infection,
for the purpose of preventing transmission of diseases.

C. Planning for isolation and/or quarantine

LHDs should initiate detailed planning and training (including drills) regarding voluntary and
involuntary non-hospital isolation and quarantine. Partner organizations that will be needed to
support non-hospital isolation and quarantine should be contacted and participate in training. A
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planning assumption is that existing LHD staff will manage a small number of SARS cases, but
that additional staff should be identified in the event that a moderate or large outbreak occurs.

LHDs should be prepared to educate persons regarding reasons for isolation and quarantine,
encouraging voluntary compliance, and to summarize services that will be provided to support
the patient and their family, etc. to enhance the likelihood of compliance.

The first factor to consider in implementing non-hospital isolation and quarantine is the person’s
willingness to be isolated or quarantined. Subsequent considerations, which are presented
separately below, are whether a person will be isolated or quarantined, the location where
isolation or quarantine will occur, the conditions of the location, services and supplies available
at the location, tracking activities during isolation and quarantine, and provision of daily
summaries.

D. Willingness of persons to be isolated or quarantined:
During the first outbreak of SARS, most symptomatic and exposed persons willingly accepted
isolation and quarantine. We can expect a similar level of cooperation, but should be prepared to
impose isolation or quarantine against a person’s will. Background
information/recommendations have been prepared based upon the person’s willingness:
e Person is willing
— Model voluntary home agreement for home isolation (Appendix 3A)
—  Model voluntary home agreement for quarantine (Appendix 3A)
e Person is not willing
— DOH General Counsel Opinion No. 03-03: letter regarding quarantine powers
of local health officers and boards of health (Appendix 3B).
—  County attomey developed process and legal papers for court order for
isolating a case and quarantining a contact.
— NYS Supreme Court prepared to quickly rule on petition.
~ Law enforcement officials are prepared to assist with enforcing a health
officer’s and/or court order.

Additional background information regarding NYS laws pertaining to bioterrorism
preparedness and response has also been prepared (Appendix 3C).

E. Isolation of a SARS patient at home

During the first outbreak of SARS, many cases not requiring hospital care were isolated
at home. The home should be assessed for various conditions that will reduce the risk of
person-to-person transmission. LHD staff should be trained to assess key conditions and
support services of the home setting. A checklist for determining the suitability of a home
for home isolation has been developed (Appendix 3D).
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Key conditions for home isolation:

e Primary caregiver is available to provide necessary care that the patient is unable to
provide for their self as well as help monitor the person’s condition.

¢ Household members not providing care can be re-located. If relocation of household
members is not possible, their contact with the SARS patient should be minimized.
Persons at risk of serious SARS complications (e.g., persons with underlying heart or
lung disease, persons with diabetes mellitus, elderly persons) should not have contact
with the patient.

s Telephone is available.

e A separate bedroom, including floor-to-ceiling walls and a door, is available.

¢ Under ideal conditions, separate air handling for the patient’s room will help reduce
the risk of transmission. It is recognized that this feature is not typically available in
homes in NYS.

Availability of support services and supplies:

For a home to be suitable for isolation, support services and supplies needs to be

available. LHD staff should be trained to assess how these services and supplies will be

available at the home. Key supplies and services for non-hospital management of cases

and contacts include:

o Surgical masks for the patient to wear (if possible) when caregiver is present

» Assure fit-testing (if practical), training, and availability of PPE for all categivers and
providers that will be entering the home.

s Food and water

e Daily cleaning of patient’s room and bathroom, as well as any bodily fluids spilled
during the day

s Medicines and medical consultations

¢ Mental health and psychological support services

¢ Other supportive services, 1.e. day care, etc.

s Transportation to medical treatment, if required

F. Isolation of a SARS patient at an alternate facility:

Facilities will need to be identified for patients not requiring hospital care but who do not
have an appropriate home setting, such as travelers, homeless populations, and for
persons whose home lacks suitable conditions, and for uncooperative persons that refuse
to stay at home. Apartments, schools, dormitories, trailers, or hotels are options that could
be considered. NYS Law permits the establishment of isolation facilities, during an
emergency, under provisions regarding temporary hospitals as well as communicable
disease facilities (Appendix 3E). Establishing a new setting will require identification of
appropriate staffing.

Alternate isolation facilities need to be assessed for various conditions that will reduce
the risk of person-to-person transmission. LHD staff should be trained to assess key
conditions and support services of the facility.
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Key conditions of the alternate facility:

¢ Primary caregivers are present and can provide care as well as monitor the patients’
condition.

e Primary caregivers are trained with regard to appropriate infection control
precautions, including respirator fit-testing.

s Telephone is available.

e A separate bedroom is available for each patient, including floor-to-ceiling walls and
a door, is available.

¢ Under ideal conditions, separate air handling for the patient’s room will help reduce
the risk of transmission.

» Accommodations are available for staff.

Availability of support services and supplies:

For an isolation facility to be suitable, support services and supplies needs to be available.

LIID staff should be trained to assess how these services and supplies will be available at

the facility. Key supplies and services include:

¢ Patient education regarding ways to reduce the risk of disease transmission, including
wearing of surgical masks (if possible) when caregivers are present, hand hygiene,
remaining in their room

» Assure fit-testing, training, and availability of PPE for all caregivers and providers
that will be entering the facility.

¢ Food and water

¢ Daily cleaning of patient’s room and bathroom, as well as any bodily fluids spilled
during the day

¢ Medicines and medical consultations

e Mental health and psychological support services

e Other supportive services, i.e. day care, etc.

e Transportation to medical treatment, if required

s Assure patients have a TV, radio, etc.

¢ Assure adequate care and services for family members in the event that the isolated
person is a head of household.

G. Management of contacts to a SARS patient (quarantine):

Apart from special circumstances, quarantine should be limited to persons who have had
contact with an actively ill SARS patient in the home or hospital (MMWR
2003;52:1037). In a limited SARS outbreak, contacts of SARS cases may be managed
through either active or passive monitoring alone and without any restriction of
movement unless they develop symptoms of disease. With an increasing number of
SARS cases in a community characterized by uncontrolled, unexplained, on-going
transmission or if asymptomatic contacts are determined to pose a risk of infection,
restricting the movement of asymptomatic contacts (e.g., home quarantine) may be
justified.

Contacts of SARS cases should be contacted daily by the LHD and advised to:
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¢ Be vigilant for fever (i.e., measure temperature twice daily) or respiratory symptoms
for a 10-day period after exposure.

o Seek healthcare evaluation immediately if they develop symptoms.

s Inform a healthcare provider in advance of presenting at a healthcare facility that they
may have been exposed to SARS.

Types of quarantine:

¢ Home quarantine -- Quarantine at home is most suitable for contacts who have a
home environment in which their basic needs will be met and where protection of
unexposed household members is feasible.

* Quarantine in designated facilities -- Contacts who do not have an appropriate home
environment for quarantine or contacts who do not wish to be quarantined at home
may be quarantined in specific facilities designated for this purpose.

o  Work quarantine — This applies to healthcare workers or other essential personnel
who have been exposed to SARS patients and who may need to continue working
(with appropriate infection control precautions) but who are quarantined either at
home or in a designated facility during off-duty hours.

H. Monitoring of cases and contaets:
Both patients and contacts should be closely monitored by LHD staff:
¢ Cases should be monitored daily for worsening of symptoms and compliance with
isolation
e Contacts should be monitored at least daily for fever and onset of respiratory
symptoms
— Refer to medical care if fever or respiratory symptoms develop
— Contact medical care provider before transporting person

1. Daily summaries
Daily summaries will be needed regarding the number and condition of persons being
isolated and quarantined.

J. Additional community containment measures

If a community experiences extensive transmission, steps in addition to isolation and
quarantine may be employed to reduce the risk of transmission. These steps will aim to
reduce opportunities for person-to-person transmission. Steps may include restrictions on
public gatherings and travel. NYS Law also addresses the closure of schools during an
emergency (see Appendix 3F).

¢ Identify key partners and personnel for the implementation of movement restrictions,
including quarantine, and provision of essential services and supplies:
— Law enforcement
—  First responders
—  Other government service workers
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— Utilities

—~ Transportation industry

— Local businesses

—  Schools and school boards

K. Contingency plan
A contingency plan should be drafted for mass vaccination and/or prophylaxis in the
event that either a vaccine or antiviral therapy is developed for SARS.
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Appendix 3A

NEW YORK STATE DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
SEVERE ACUTE RESPIRATORY SYNDROME (SARS)
MODEL VOLUNTARY HOME ISOLATION AND
QUARANTINE AGREEMENTS

The New York State Department of Health (NYSDOH), Division of Legal Affairs, has developed
the Model Voluntary Home Isolation Agreement and the Model Voluntary Home Quarantine
Agreement for the local health departments (LHD) to use when asking a suspect or probable
SARS patient or contact to submit to voluntary isolation or quarantine. The LHD should provide
the appropriate agreement to patients with SARS symptoms or contacts as a means to instruct
them on the necessary infection control precautions to be taken to prevent transmission to
family members, friends, and other outside contacts. While these agreements are not intended
to be legally binding contracts with the patient or contact, they clearly spell out what is expected
of the patient or contact and his/her family by the LHD. This document may also be useful as
evidence by the LHD in any subsequent court proceeding seeking involuntary isolation or
quarantine, as it would show what was expected of the patient or contact and that the patient or
contact was informed of these expectations, and that the LHD tried voluntary measures prior to
seeking assistance from the court. These models may be used as is or the LHD may
choose to modify them as necessary to meet the needs of the particular situation,
especially with regard to quarantine. We encourage the counties to add or remove
provisions, or change the language of the agreements as necessary to make them more
patient specific.

CDC guidelines suggest that guarantining persons who were exposed to SARS but who are not
symptomatic may be key to preventing a large-scale outbreak. To achieve this end, the LHDs
need not implement strict quarantine in the traditional sense (i.e. asking someone to confine
themselves to their house and not leave for any reason until the 10 day period is up).
Depending on the situation, the LHDs could restrict the movement of the contact by
implementing modified quarantine techniques (i.e. allowing the contact to leave the house to go
to work but for no other reason). The level of restriction should be proportionate to the type of
contact/exposure and the level of SARS activity. The following table is an example of the level
of restriction required for certain SARS contacts based upon CDC recommendations. This table
is merely an example and the methods that may be applied. Depending on the individual
situation the LHDs could require more or less restrictions.

TYPE OF CONTACT/EXPOSURE

Contact has history of travel to affected area
but no direct contact wW/SARS case.

QUARANTINE METHODS

Require fever monitering and reporting
Advise proper hand hygiene

Advise avoidance of unnecessary trips out
of the home

NS

Require fever monitoring and reporting
Leave home to go to work only

Advise not to use public transportation
Advise against unnecessary contact with
friends and relatives, no visitors.

Advise against going to public gatherings
(church, funerals, etc.)

Health care worker with contact with SARS
case (probable or suspect)

AN N

Prohibit leaving the home for any reason
Require fever monitoring and reporting

Household member who is primary caregiver
for a SARS patient in home isolation

SN
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v Advise proper hand hygiene and use of
protective equipment (masks & gloves)
v" Prohibit contact with visitors

There is a space at the end of each document for the suspected or probable SARS patient or
contact and his or her caretaker or head of household to sign the document, acknowledging that
s/he understands the information contained therein. There is also a place for the name and
signature of the LHD representative who explained the provisions of the agreement to the
suspected or probable SARS patient or contact and the caretaker/head of household. There
should be three copies of the document signed by all three parties, one to be left with the
patient, a copy for the caretaker/head of household, and the other to be placed in the file
maintained by the LHD. In the event that there is no caretaker/head of household present, the
LLHD need only use two copies and note that there is no third party.

Should either person refuse to sign the document, the LHD representative should still sign each
copy, give a copy to the patient, a copy to the caretaker/head of household, and keep the other
copy in the LHD file with a note that the patient or caretaker/head of household refused to sign
the document. Mere refusal to sign the document is not encugh evidence of lack of cooperation
on the part of the patient to justify seeking a commissioner’s or court order. In addition to refusal
to sign the agreement, justification for a commissioner’s or court order would typically include
evidence of the patient's failure to follow recommendations and demonstration of medical need
for isolation or quarantine.

Section 3-Non-Hospital Quarantine and Isolation 2




Appendix 3A

NYSDOH Model SARS Voluntary Home Isoiation Agreement

| have been informed that | have been diagnosed as a suspect or probable case of Severe
Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS), a communicable disease dangerous to the public health,
and that unless precautions are taken, others may contract this infection from me. The local
health department (LHD) and its commissioner, is required to protect the public from the danger
of such communicable diseases by Public Health Law §§ 308 and 324, Public Health Law Art.
21, and 10 NYCRR Part 2. In order to prevent the spread of this virus the LHD has provided
me with the following information, advised me of the need to comply with the following
instructions and | hereby agree to the following:

a

| shall remain in home isolation for a period of 10 days after my fever has resolved and
respiratory symptoms (such as cough, shortness of breath, or difficulty breathing) are absent
or improving.

| shall be isolated at the following location which shall hereinafter be referred to as *home™

Street address:

City: County: Zip:

Telephone: ( ) -

| have been educated about the disease, the reasons for isolation in the home, and the
length of time | can expect to be confined to the home.

| shall limit all activities and interaction with all other persons living outside the home. | shall
not go to school, a house of worship, work, out-of-home day care, stores or other public
areas.

| shall not leave the home for any reason unless first authorized to do so by the LHD.

| understand that only those persons authorized by the LHD may enter my home during the
period of my isolation. Those who enter the home without prior authorization from the LHD
may be subject to isolation or quarantine themselves. | agree to notify friends and relatives
that they shall not visit the home until further notice.

[ shall use a separate bed and, if possible, a separate bedroom.

| shali wear a surgical mask when in the same room with non-infected persons. If | cannot
wear a surgical mask, others in the same room will be asked to wear a surgical mask or
respirator.

If | am not masked | shall cover my nose and mouth with a disposable tissue when coughing
or sheezing.

Household waste, including surgical masks and disposable tissues soiled with respiratory
secretions, blood, or other body fluids will be disposed of as normal household waste.
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I will wash my hands with soap and water after all contact with respiratory secretions from
coughing or sneezing, blood, and all other body fluids (e.g. urine, feces, wound drainage,
etc.). | will educate and encourage other members of my household to do the same.

All members of my household will wear gloves on both hands when they have contact with
my respiratory secretions (lung or nasal), blood, and all other body fluids (e.g. urine, feces,
wound drainage, etc.). Alcohol-based hand hygiene products may be substituted for hand
washing with soap and water after removing the gloves, IF the hands are not visibly soiled
with respiratory secretions, blood, or other body fluids. Gloves shall not be reused and shall
be discarded immediately after removal.

My eating and drinking utensils will be washed with hot water and a household dishwashing
detergent.

Environmental surfaces (e.g. countertops, tables, sinks, etc.) in the kitchen, bathroom, and
my bedroom will be cleaned and disinfected with a household disinfectant, such as
household bleach or Lysol®, while wearing gloves, at least daily an when soiled with the
respiratory secretions, blood, and other body fluids.

My bed linens, towels, and personal clothing shall not be shared with other members of the
household. Clothes and linens will be washed in hot soapy water.

All members of my household or other close contacts who develop fever or respiratory
symptoms will seek medical evaluation.

| understand that to prevent transmission of SARS, | should advise members of the
household who develop SARS symptoms that they shall call the physician’s office, clinic, or
hospital emergency department where they intend to seek care to alert healthcare workers
there prior to seeking treatment.

| agree to monitor my temperature ___times a day and report this information to the LHD
(daily, in the morning and at night. The number | must call to report this information

is { ) -

The LHD will provide me and members of my household with surgical masks, gloves, and
other items necessary to prevent the spread of SARS (i.e. alcohol-based hand wash).

| understand that the LHD will arrange for the delivery of necessary items to my home,
including but not limited to, food, clothing, and supplies, during the period of isolation.

| agree to adhere to any additional recommendations and instructions from the LHD that
may be listed below:

[, or my legal guardian, may contact the following LHD representative to seek relief from,
clarification of, or further explanation of the conditions contained in, any part of this agreement.
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( -

(Name of LHD contact person) (Daytime telephone #)

The provisions of this agreement have been explained to me by the LHD representative
and | fully understand that my failure to follow these guidelines or to voluntarily remain
in isolation may result in my being placed in involuntary isolation, or committed to a
facility where | may be isolated against my wishes.

{Print name of SARS case/contact) {Signature)

{Date)

I, the caretaker/head of household, acknowledge that the LHD representative has
explained the provisions of this agreement to me as well as the patient in isolation. |
fully understand that my failure to follow these guidelines may result in my exposure to
SARS and in my being placed in involuntary isolation, or committed to a facility where |
may he isolated against my wishes.

(Print name of caretaker/head of household) (Signature)
(Date)
(Print name of LHD representative) {Signature)
(Date)
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NYSDOH Model Voluntary SARS Quarantine Agreement

| have been informed that | have been determined to be a contact of a suspect or probable case
of SARS, a communicable disease dangerous to the public health, and that unless precautions
are taken, | could potentially infect others. In order to prevent the spread of this virus, the local
health department (LHD), pursuant to Public Health Law §§ 308 and 324, Public Health Law Art.
21, and 10 NYCRR Part 2, has provided me with the following information, and | hereby agree
to the following:

o | shall remain in quarantine for 10 days after the date of my exposure and will immediately
notify the LHD should | develop SARS symptoms, including but not limited to, a temperature
greater than 100.4° F., and/or symptoms of a respiratory infection suich as cough.

The LHD has determined that the date of my exposure was and | shall
be released from quarantine on or about , provided | do not develop SARS
symptoms as noted above.

o | shall be quarantined at the following location, which shall be referred to as “home”.

Street address:

City: County: Zip:

Telephone: ( ) -

o | have been educated about the disease, the reasons for my quarantine, and the length of
time [ can expect to be restricted from certain activities.

o | shall limit alf activities and interaction with all other persons living outside the home.

o 1 understand that during the quarantine period | may only leave the home to go to
(work/school/pharmacy, etc.). | shall not go to a house of worship, out-of-
home day care, stores/malls, restaurants, movies, sporting events, or other public areas or
gvents.

@ 1 understand that only those persons authorized by the LHD may enter my home during the
quarantine period. Those who enter the home without prior authorization from the LHD may
be subject to isolation or gquarantine themselves. | agree to notify friends and relatives that
they shall not visit the home untit further notice.

o | understand that whenever | leave the home | shall avoid close contact (within 3 feet) with
others to the best of my ability. This includes, but is not limited to, avoiding the use of public
transportation and confining myself to my office as much as possible when I'm at work (if
applicable).

o | shall cover my nose and mouth with a disposable tissue when coughing or sneezing.

0 Household waste, including surgical masks and disposable tissues soiled with respiratory
secretions, blood, or other body fluids will be disposed of as normal household waste.
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| will wash my hands with soap and water after all contact with respiratory secretions from
coughing or sneezing, blood, and all other body fiuids (e.g. urine, feces, wound drainage,
etc.). 1 will educate and encourage other members of my household to do the same.

I shall not share food or beverages with members of the household and my eating and
drinking utensils will be washed with hot water and a household dishwashing detergent.

Environmental surfaces {(e.g. countertops, tables, sinks, floors, efc.) in the household will be
cleaned and disinfected with a household disinfectant, such as household bleach or Lyso|®,
while wearing gloves, at least daily an when soiled with the respiratory secretions, blood,
and other body fluids.

[ agree to monitor my temperature ____times a day and report this information to the LHD
(daily, in the morning and at night). The number | must call to report this information

is ( ) -

| will advise all members of my household or other close contacts who develop fever or
respiratory symptoms to seek medical evaluation and advise the LHD when such symptoms
arise.

| understand that to prevent transmission of SARS, if | or the members of the household
develop SARS symptoms, we shall call the physician’s office, clinic, or hospital emergency
department to alert healthcare workers prior to seeking treatment.

| understand that if | develop fever or respiratory symptoms | must adhere to the following
additional provisions:

o I shall use a separate bed and, if possible, a separate bedroom.

= | shall wear a surgical mask when in the same room with non-infected persons. If |
cannot wear a surgical mask, others in the same room will be asked to wear a
surgical mask or respirator.

0 My bed linens, towels, and personal clothing shall not be shared with other members
of the household. Clothes and linens will be washed in hot soapy water.

o All members of my household will wear gloves on both hands when they have
contact with my respiratory secretions (lung or nasal), blood, and all other body fiuids
(e.g. urine, feces, wound drainage, etc.). Alcohol-based hand hygiene products may
be substituted for hand washing with soap and water after removing the gloves, IF
the hands are not visibly soiled with respiratory secretions, blood, or other body
fluids. Gloves shall not be reused and shall be discarded immediately after removal.

o The LHD will provide me and members of my household with surgical masks, gloves,
and other items necessary to prevent the spread of SARS (i.e. alcohol-based hand
wash).

| understand that the LHD will arrange for the delivery of necessary items to my home,
including but not limited to, food, clothing, and supplies, during the quarantine period if | am
not authorized to leave the quarantine location in order fo obtain these items myself.
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0 | agree to adhere to any additional recommendations and instructions from the LHD that
may be listed below:

|, or my legal guardian, may contact the following LHD representative to seek relief from,
clarification of, or further explanation of the conditions contained in, any part of this agreement.

( ) -

(Name of LHD contact person) {Daytime telephone #)

The provisions of this agreement have been explained to me by the LHD representative
and | fully understand that my failure to follow these guidelines or to voluntarily remain
in quarantine will result in my being placed in involuntary quarantine, or committed to a
facility where | may be quarantined against my wishes.

(Print name of SARS contact) (Signature)
{Date)

(Print name of LHD representative) (Signature)
{Date)
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.O STATE OF NEW YORK
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

Corning Tower The Governor Nelson A, Rackefeller Empire State Plaza Albany, New York 12237

Antonia C. Novello, M.D., M.P.H., DBr.P.H. Dennis P. Whalen
Commissioner Executive Deputy Commissioner

September 2, 2003

Michael Caldwell, M.D., M.P.H.

President

New York State Association of County Health Officials
Dutchess County Dept. of Health

387 Main Street

Poughkeepsie, New York 12601

Re: BOH GC Opinion No.03-03
Quarantine Powers of Local Health
Officers and Local Boards of Health

Dear Dr. Caldwell:

Dennis Whalen, Executive Deputy Commissioner, has asked that 1 respond to Dr. Lioyd Novick’s May
9, 2003 letter, seeking clarification of the authority of local health officials, particularly with regard to the power to
isolate and quarantine individuals exposed to or infected with a communicable disease. As indicated below, both
local health officers and local boards of health have the power to isolate and quarantine individuals exposed to or
infected with a communicable disease designated in the State Sanitary Code. There is considerable variation among
counties regarding who exercises the powers of focal health officers and local boards of health. Therefore, the
general guidance provided in this letter should be supplemented by specific advice from each county’s legal advisor.

Brief Summary

A “local health officer” inciudes a county health commissioner; the health commissioner of a city
having a population of 50,000 or more; a public health director; a county health director in counties or cities having
populations of less than 150,000 according to the 1970 or subsequent federal census, but without a charter or
optional or alternative form of government; and the officer of a city having a population of less than 50,000, town,
village, or part-county or consolidated health district who administers and manages public health programs within
such jurisdiction. Each can exercise the powers of a local health officer.

A “Jocal board of health” is the hoard of health of a county, part-county, city, village, town or
consolidated health district. In some situations a county legislature may serve as the board of health. In villages the
board of health is the board of trustees of the viflage; in towns the board of health is the town board. Since the
Public Health Law provides for either the abolition of certain local health districts or their continuation as a
subdivision of the county, or part-county, health district, the activity and authority of town and village boards of
health will vary based upon local actions taken. In addition, under Article 9 of the State Constitution and the
Municipal Home Rule Law, county charters can reallocate the administrative responsibilities of the agencies of local
government among the agencies. As a result, 4 county charter may give to other county agencies or bodies the
powers which the Public Health Law gives to a board of health. Given the variety of local actions that several

{ counties may have undertaken, local health officers should consult with their own legal advisors to confirm what
[ bodies exercise the powers of the local board of health in their jurisdictions. The Department has no central registry
of such information.




The Public Health Law requires every local board of health and every local heaith officer to guard
against the introduction of communicable diseases designated in the State Sanitary Code by the exercise of proper
and vigilant medical inspection and control of all persons and things infected with or exposed to such diseases. The
law authorizes local boards of health and local health officers to provide for the care and isolation of cases of
communicable disease in a hospital or elsewhere when necessary for protection of the public health and, subject to
the provisions of the State Sanitary Code, to prohibit and prevent all contact and communication with or use of
infected premises, places and things, and to require, and if necessary, provide the means for their thorough cleansing
before general contact and use is resumed. The law requires health officers to investigate the circumstances and to
seck a court order committing non-compliant individuals afflicted with a communicable disease to a hospital or
institution estabiished for the care of persons suffering from such communicable disease. Pursuant to these
provisions both focal health officers and focal boards of health have the power and primary responsibility to isolate
and quarantine individuals exposed to or infected with a communicable disease designated in the State Sanitary
Code.

Discussion

The term “local health officer” is defined in Public Health Law (“P1L."} § 2(j} as the “health officer of
a county, part-county, city, village, town, or consolidated health district.” A county commissioner of health has all
the powers and duties of a local health officer. See PHL § 352(2). In “unorganized” counties having a population of
less than 150,000 according to the 1970 or subsequent federal census, but no charter or optional or aliernative form
of govermment, the county legislature may appoint a county health director “who shall have all the powers
prescribed in section three hundred fifty-two of [the PHL]” See PHL § 356.) In counties of less than 250,000
population, a public health director acting with appropriate medical consultation may be employed in lieu of a
commissioner of health to administer and manage public health functions in a county. See 10 NYCRR §§ 11.180
through 11.182. The terms “health officer” or “local health officer” are defined in 10 NYCRR § 1.1{d) to mean and
include “the health officer, or other officer of a municipality, by whatever title he [sic] may be known, having the
usual powers and duties of a health officer of @ municipality.” The term “local health officer” is more clearly
defined in 10 NYCRR § 11.1 to mean (1) the commissioner of health of a county or a city having a population of
50,000 or more and having an established health department; (2) a public health director; {3) a county health director
appointed pursuant to PHL § 356 in “unorganized” counties having a population of less than 150,000 according to
the 1970 or subsequent federal census, but no charter or optional or alternative form of government; and (4) the
officer of a city having a population of less than 50,000, town, village or consolidated health district who
administers and manages public health programs within such jurisdiction and who has the general powers and duties
specified in the PHL. Each can exercise the powers of a local health officer.

As to local boards of health, as a general proposition, the boards of heaith of all county and part-county
health districts have the same powers and duties. The board of health in a county or part-county health district
created under PHL § 340 has the powers set forth in PHL § 347, et seq., including the powers and duties of a local
board of health. See PHL § 308. PHL § 356 designates the legislatures of certain small counties (“unorganized”
counties having a population of less than 150,000 according to the 1970 or subsequent federal census, but no charter
or optional or alternative form of government) as the local board of health and provides that they, too, “shall have all
the powers and duties of a board of health of a county or part-county health district.”

A differentiation among powers excrcised by county boards of health arises when they respond to focal
conditions, such as the availability of resources or enactment of charters. PHL § 602(6) permits the State
Commissioner of Health to approve a public health services plan in which the county provides reduced services, as
long as the services the county does not provide can be provided by the State or through contract. This can result in
“partial service” health departments in which state district offices provide some services within a county. Similatly,
PHL § 341 provides for either the abolition of certain local health districts or their continuation within a county or
part-county health district as a subdivision of the county or part-county health district. Thus, in one county the town




and village boards of health may be active participants in public health while a different county or part-county health
district may be more centralized. In villages the board of health is the board of trustees of the village; in towns the
board of health is the town board. See PHL § 302. PHL § 356 does not address the relationship between a county
board of health created under its terms and pre-existing town and village boards of health. Therefore, such pre-
existing town and village boards of health might have greater autonomy in county and part-county health districts
governed by PHL § 356 than they would in county and pari-county health districts formed under PHL § 340.

In addition, under Article 9 of the State Constitution and the Municipal Home Rule Law, county
charters can reallocate the administrative responsibilities of local government agencies. As a result, a charier may
give the county legisiature or some other local agency powers which the PHL gives to a board of health. The scope
and exercise of that power would, of course, be subject to any provisions of the PHL or State Sanitary Code. The
Department does not maintain a summary of county charter provisions. Given the variety of possible local actions
that several counties may have undertaken, the county commissioners and public health directors should consult
with their own legal advisors to confirm what bodies exercise the powers of the local board of health. The
Department has no central registry of such information.

With regard to the power to isolate and quarantine, PHL § 2100 states:

1. Every local board of health and every health officer shall
guard against the introduction of such communicable diseases
as are designated in the sanitary code, by the exercise of proper
and vigilant medical inspection and control of all persons and
things infected with ot exposed to such diseases.

2. Every local board of health and every health officer may:

{a) provide for care and isolation of cases of communicable
disease in a hospital or elsewhere when necessary for protection
of the public health and,

(b) subject to the provisions of the sanitary code, prohibit and

prevent all intercourse and communication with or use of infected
premises, places and things, and require, and if necessary, provide

the means for the thorough puritication and cleansing of the same
before general intercourse with the same or use thereof shall be allowed.

In addition, PHL § 2120 requires health officers, upon receipt of a complaint from a physician that a person is
afflicted with a communicable disease and is unable or unwilling to conduct himself and to live in such a manner as
not to expose members of his family or household or other persons with whom he may be associated to danger of
infection, to investigate the circumstances and to seek a court order committing the individual to a hospital or
institution established for the care of persons suffering from such communicable disease. Pursuant to these
provisions both local health officers and local boards of health have the power to isolate and quarantine individuals
exposed to or infected with a communicable disease designated in the State Sanitary Code. The State Sanitary Code
places the primary responsibility for such isolation and quarantine on local health officers, see 10 NYCRR §§ 2.6,
2.25(d), (e) and (f), and 2.29.

I also want to take this opportunity to confirm the New York State Department of Health’s position that
local health officers and local boards of health may quarantine and isolate only patients infected with or exposed to
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communicable diseases determined to be dangerous to the public health by the New York State Public Health
Council and listed in 10 NYCRR § 2.1. We understand that local health officers are concerned that they be able to
respond quickly to communicable disease threats in their communities. By authorizing the State Commissioner of
Health to add diseases to the communicable disease list in 10 NYCRR § 2.1 between its meetings, the Public Health
Council has assured that expeditious response will be possible. The Department looks forward to continuing to
work effectively and collaboratively with local health officers to meet the challenges of communicable disease
control.

Very truly yours,

Donald P. Berens, Jr.
General Counsel

Dennis Whalen
Dr. Lloyd Novick
JoAnn Bennison
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A GUIDE TO NEW YORK STATE LAWS GOVERNING BIOTERRORISM
PREPAREDNESS AND RESPONSE

This compilation of New York State statutory and regulatory authority is intended as a convenient
resource for state and local health officials involved in planning for potential bioterrorism and other
public health emergencies, including those arising from a radiological source.

L. PLANNING FOR A PUBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY

A. DISASTER PREPAREDNESS PUBLIC POLICY STATEMENT

Authority: Executive Law 20(1) states that it is the policy of the State that:

(a) Jocal government and emergency service organizations continue their essential role as the first
line of defense in times of disaster, and that the State provide appropriate supportive services to the
extent necessary,

(b) local chief executives take an active and personal role in the development and implementation
of disaster preparedness programs and be vested with authority and responsibility in order to assure
the success of such programs;

(c) State and local natural disaster and emergency response functions be coordinated in order to bring
the fullest protection and benefit to the people;

(d) State resources be organized and prepared for immediate effective response to disasters which
are beyond the capability of local governments and emergency service organizations; and

(e) State and local plans, organizational arrangements, and response capability required to execute
the provisions of Executive Law Article 2-B (Disaster Preparedness) shall at all times be the most
effective that current circumstances and existing resources allow.

B. DISASTER PREPAREDNESS COMMISSION PLAN

Authority: Executive Law 21 provides for the creation of a Disaster Preparedness Commission,
which includes the commissioners of the following State agencies: Health, Transportation, Division
of Criminal Justice Services, Education, Economic Development, Agriculture and Markets, Housing
and Community Renewal, General Services, Labor, Environmental Conservation, Mental Health,
State Energy Research and Development Authority, State Police, [nsurance, Banking, and State. The
Disaster Preparedness Commission also includes the State Fire Administrator, the chair of the Public
Service Commission, the Adjutant General, the chairman of the State Thruway Authority, the chief
professional officer of the State coordinating chapter of the American Red Cross and other members
appointed by the Governor,

Among the Disaster Preparedness Commission’s duties set forth at Executive Law 21(3)(c) is the
duty to prepare State disaster preparedness plans.
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C. CIVIL DEFENSE DRILLS
Authority: Executive Law 29-b(1) provides that the Governor may, in his discretion, direct the State
Civil

Defense Commission to conduct a civil defense drill, under its direction, in which all or any of the
civil defense forces of the State may be utilized to perform the duties assigned to them in a civil
defense emergency, for the purpose of protecting and preserving human life in a disaster. In such
event, civil defense forces in the State shall operate under the direction and command of the State
Director of Civil Defense, who is, pursuant to Military Law 11, the Adjutant General.

Executive Law 29-b(2) and (3) respectively set forth provisions governing use of civil defense forces
by the chief executives of counties and cities, including provisions relating to drills.

II. REPORTING AND DETECTION

The ability to detect and respond effectively to an unannounced act of bioterrorism may depend
significantly upon timely and complete reporting of cases of communicable disease.

1. PRIMARY REPORTERS OF CASES OF COMMUNICABLE DISEASE AND OTHER
INDICATORS OF DISEASE OUTBREAK

1. Local Health Officers Outside the City of New York

What is reported: All cases of such communicable diseases as may be required by State Department
of Health (DOH)

Report made to: State DOH

Manner of reporting: Original reports or summary reports when authorized by State DOH

When reported: Promptly

Aunthority: Public Health Law 2103 requires every local health officer to report promptly to the State
DOH all cases of communicable diseases as may be required by State DOXL. Public Health Law 2110
excepts the provisions of Public Health Law 2103 from applying to the City of New York. See
instead New York City Health Code Article 11.

2. County Health Commissioners Outside the City of New York

What is reported: Original reports of communicable disease cases.

Report made to: State DO,

Manner of reporting: Original reports or summary reports when authorized by State DO

When reported: Within 24 hours after receipt by county health commissioner.

Authority: Public Health Law 2104(1) requires the health officer of each city, village, town and
consolidated health district included as part of any county or part-county health district, to transmit
daily all original reports of communicable disease cases to the county health commissioner. Public
Health Law 2104(2) requires the county health commissioner to transmit to State DOH the original
reports of communicable disease cases within 24 hours after he or she receives them. Public Iealth
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Law 2110 excepts the provisions of Public Health Law 2104 from applying to the City of New York.
See instead New York City Health Code Article 11.

3. Hospitals

What is reported; “Case”, defined in 10 NYCRR 2.2(b) as a person diagnosed to have a particular
disease or condition; “outbreak”, defined in 10 NYCRR 2.2(c) as an increased incidence of disease
above its expected baseline level.

Report made to: State DOH and to the city, county or district health officer.

When reported: Not specified.

Manner of reporting: as specified by the Commissioner of Health (10 NYCRR 405.11(c).
Authority: Public Health Law 201(1)(c) authorizes DOH to supervise the reporting and conirol of
disease. Public Health Law 2803(1)(a) grants the Commissioner of Health the power to inquire into
the operation of hospitals. 10 NYCRR 405.11(c), which requires the hospital professional
responsible for the hospital-wide infection control program to report to DOH any increased incidence
of nosocomial infections, must be read with the 10 NYCRR 2.2(a) definition, which states that “for
public health reporting purposes, hospital associated infections include outbreaks or increased
incidence of disease due to microbiological agents or their toxic products”. 10 NYCRR 2.1 specifies
the infectious, contagious or communicable diseases which must be reported pursuant to various
provisions contained within 10 NYCRR Part 2 (Communicable Diseases), which was promulgated
pursuant to Public Health Law 225. Nosocomial infections are reportable by hospitals pursuant to
10 NYCRR 405.11{c).

4. Physicians OQutside the City of New York

What is reported. The full name, age and address of every person with a suspected or confirmed case
of a communicable disease or any outbreak of communicable disease, together with the name of the
disease, and any additional information requested by the health officer in the cowrse of a
communicable disease investigation.

Report made to: City, county or district health officer within whose jurisdiction the patient is.
Witen reported: Immediately or within 24 hours from the time the case is first seen by the physician.
Manner of reporting: Telephone, facsimile and other electronic transmission if indicated, and also
in writing unless the State Health Commissioner approves waiver of written notice.

Authority: Public Health Law 2101 requires that every physician shall immediately give notice of
every case of communicable disease required by State DOH to be reported to it, to the health officer
of the local health district where such disease occurs. Existing regulations promulgated pursuant to
Public Health Law 225, and set forth at 10 NYCRR 2.10, require every physician to report to the
city, county, or district health officer, within whose jurisdiction the patient is, specified information
concerning every person with a suspected or confirmed case of a communicable disease or any
outbreak of communicable disease, within 24 hours from the time the case is first seen by the
physician. Reports shall be made by telephone, facsimile or other electronic transmission if
indicated, and shall also be made in writing ,except that the written notice may be omitted with the
approval of the State Commissioner of Health. Although direct reporting to State DOH is not
currently required, when a communicable disease is reported to a city, county or district health
officer, a copy is retained in that office, and another copy of the report must be reported to State
DOH, pursuant to 10 NYCRR 2.1(b).
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5. Physicians Within the City of New York

Authority: Public Health Law 2110 excepts the City of New York from, among other requirements,
the provisions of Public Health Law 2101 described in paragraph 4 above. See instead New York
City Health Code Article 11.

6. Nursing homes, diagnostic and treatment centers, other Public Health Law Article 28
facilities

What is reported. Cases of communicable diseases as defined in 10 NYCRR 2.2(b).

Report made to: State DOH and to the city, county or district health officer in whose jurisdiction the
institution 1s located.

When reported. Not specified.

Manner of reporting: Not specified.

Authority: 10 NYCRR 2.10(a) provides that when a case of communicable disease occurs in a
facility licensed under Article 28 of the Public Health Law, the person in charge of the facility shall
report the case to the State Department of Health and to the city, county or district health officer in
whose jurisdiction the institution is located.

7. Clinical Laboratories

What is reported: ldentity of person from whom specimen is taken, name of physician sending
specimen, other facts pertinent to the examination. Tests performed and such other information as
the Department of Health may require to carry out the provisions of Title V, Article 5 of the Public
Health Law. Also, such information and data concerning the laboratory’s technical operation as may
be specified by the Department.

Report made to: Local health official and State DOH.

When reported. Immediately for communicable disease reporting.

Manner of reporting: In a form prescribed by the Department.

Authority: Public Health Law 2102(1) requires that when any laboratory examination discloses
evidence of communicable disease, the results of such examination together with all required
pertinent facts, shail be immediately reported by the person in charge of the laboratory or the person
making such examination to the local or state health official to whom the attending physician is
required to report such case. Public Health Law 576(2) authorizes the State DOH to require clinical
laboratories and blood banks to submit, in a form prescribed by the Department, periodic reports of
tests performed and such other information as the Department may require to carry out the provisions
of Title V, Article 5. 10 NYCRR Part 58-1.11(a) states that when requested, a laboratory shall
submit reports containing such information and data concerning its technical operation as may be
specified by the Department.

8. State Institutions

What is reported. Cases of communicable diseases.

Report made to: State DOH and to city, county or district health officer.

When reported: Not specified.

Manner of reporting: Not specified.

Aunthority: Public Health Law 2105 requires the director or person in charge of each state institution
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to report immediately an outbreak of a communicable disease in such institution to the State Health
Commissioner and as may otherwise be provided in the State Sanitary Code. 10 NYCRR 2.10(a)
provides that when a case of communicable disease occurs in a State institution or a facility licensed
under Article 28 of the Public Health Law, the person in charge of the institution or facility shall
report the case to the State Department of Health and to the city, county or district health officer in
whose jurisdiction such institution is located.

9. Public Health Nurses and All Other Persons When No Physician Is In Attendance

What is reported: The name and address of any individual affected with any disease presumably
communicable.

Report made to: City, county or district health officer.

When reported: Inmediately.

Manner of reporting: Not specified.

Authority: 10 NYCRR 2.12 provides that when no physician is in attendance, it shall be the duty of
the head of a private household or the person in charge of any institution, school, boarding house,
camp or vessel or any public health nurse or any other person having knowledge of an individual
affected with any disease presumably communicable, to report immediately the name and address
of such person to the city, county, or district health officer.

10. Coroners, Medical Examiners, Pathologists

What is reported: Case of any individual who at time of death was apparently affected with a
communicable disease, based on examination of the corpse or from history of events leading to
death.

Report made to: City, county or district health officer.

When reported. Within 24 hours of determination.

Manner of reporting. By telephone, facsimile transmission or other electronic communication if
indicated, and also in writing , except that the written notice may be omitted with the approval of the
State Health Commissioner.

Authority;: 10 NYCRR 2.11 provides that if a pathologist, coroner, medical examiner, or other
person determines from examination of a corpse or from history of the events leading to death that
at the time of death this individual apparently was affected with a communicable disease, he/she
shall report the case within 24 hours to the proper health authority according to the manner indicated
in 10 NYCRR 2.10 as if the diagnosis had been established prior to death. Note that the State
Department of Health is not a direct recipient of such information pursuant to 10 NYCRR 2.10 but
is an indirect recipient pursuant to 10 NYCRR 2.1(b).

B. REGULATION OF LIVE PATHOGENIC MICROORGANISMS OR VIRUSES

Authority: This is an area regulated primarily by the Federal government. It is important because
of the potential threat of diversion of dangerous pathogens for bioterrorism. In addition to the State
faw cited below, see also Title 42 Code of Federal Regulations Part 72, entitled Interstate Shipment
of Etiologic Agents, promulgated pursuant to the Antiterrorism Act of 1996, Pub.L. No. 104-132
which, among other things, directed the Federal Centers for Disease Control and Prevention to
establish a regulatory scheme to identify biological agents posing a threat to the public health and
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to regulate their transfer and use through Federal rule. See also the USA Patriot Act of 2001(Pub.
Law 107-56, section 8§17); 18 U.S.C. 175 and 175b.

Public Health Law Arficle 32 (Live Pathogenic Microorganisms or Viruses) requires that no person
other than a licensed practitioner of medicine, dentistry, or veterinary medicine or a person under
their direct supervision shall possess or cultivate live pathogenic microorganisms or viruses other
than vaccine virus, subject to certain exceptions. Public Health Law 3201(1),(2) requires that no
person shall sell or convey any live pathogenic microorganisms or viruses other than vaccine virus
to any other person without permission from the State Commissioner of Health, or the New York
City Health Department if within that city. However, this requirement does not apply to diseased
tissue, exudate, or other specimens which are sent by physicians, dentists or veterinarians to
laboratories for examination as an aid to the diagnosis or control of disease.

IIL. STATE, AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT RESPONSE PROVISIONS
. ATONSETOF PuBLIC HEALTH EMERGENCY

1. Actions of the Governor

a. Governor May Declare a Disaster Emergency

Authority: Executive Law 28(1),(3) provides that whenever the Governor, on his own initiative or
pursuant to a request from one or more chief executives, finds that a disaster has occurred or may
be imminent, for which local governments are unable to respond adequately, he shall declare a
disaster emergency by executive order, which describes the disaster and affected area, and which
remains in effect for a period not to exceed 6 months unless extended by executive order for
additional limited periods.

Disaster is defined at Executive Law 20(2)(a) as the occurrence or imminent threat of widespread
or severe damage, injury, or loss of life or property resulting from any natural or man-made causes,
including, but not limited to, fire, flood, earthquake, hurricane, tornado, high water, landslide,
mudslide, wind, storm, wave action, volcanic activity, epidemtic, air contamination, blight, drought,
infestation, explosion, radiological accident, water contamination, bridge failure or bridge collapse.

State disaster emergency is defined at Executive Law 20(2)(b) as a period beginning with a
declaration by the Governor that a disaster exists and ending upon its termination.

b. Governor May Invoke the New York State Defense Emergency Act of 1951

Authority: The New York State Defense Emergency Act of 1951 (Chapter 784, Laws of 1951}, could
be invoked following an “attack”, defined to include any case involving use of bacteriological or
biological means, thereby empowering a State Defense Council, chaired by the Governor, to exercise
a broad range of extraordinary powers. (See appendices which contain the complete statute).

2. Local Government Actions

a. Chief Executive of a County, City, Town or Village May Proclaim a Loeal State of
Emergency
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Authority: Executive Law 24(1) provides that specified chief executives (defined at Executive Law
20(2)(£)) may proclaim a local state of emergency within any part or all of the territorial limits of
such local government under specified circumstances.

Local state of emergency may arise in the event of a disaster, rioting, catastrophe, or similar public
emergency within the territorial limits of any county, city, town or village. See Executive Law 24(1).

2. During Public Health Emergency

1. Actions of the Governor

a. Governor May Temporarily Suspend State and Local Laws and Regulations Under
Specified Conditions

Authority: Under Executive Law 29-a, the Governor may, by executive order and subject to the State
and Federal Constitutions and Federal statutes and regulations, and after seeking the advice of the
Disaster Preparedness Commission, temporarily suspend specific provisions of any statute, local
law, ordinance, or orders, rules or regulations, or parts thereof, of any agency during a state disaster
emergency, if compliance with such provisions would prevent, hinder, or delay action necessary to
cope with the disaster.

b. Governor Shall Take Specified Actions Following Declaration of Disaster Arising from
Radiological Accident

Authority: Executive Law 28(2) requires that upon the Governor’s declaration of a disaster arising
from a radiological accident, the Governor or his designee, shall direct one or more chief executives
and emergency services organizations to: (a) notify the public that an emergency exists; and (b) take
appropriate protective actions pursuant to the radiological emergency preparedness plan approved
pursuant to sections 22 and 23 of the Executive Law. The Governor or his designee shall also have
the authority to direct that other actions be taken by such chief executives pursuant to their authority
under Executive Law 24,

¢. Governor May Request Federal Assistance

Authority: Executive Law 28(4) provides that whenever the Governor finds that a disaster is of such
severity and magnitude that effective response is beyond the capabilities of the State and the affected
jurisdictions, he shall make an appropriate request for Federal assistance available under Federal law,
and may make available out of any funds provided under the governmental emergency fund or such
other funds as may be available, sufficient funds to provide the required State share of grants made
under any Federal program for meeting disaster related expenses.

d. Governor May Direct State Agencies to Provide Disaster Emergency Assistance
Authority: Executive Law 29 provides that upon the declaration of a state disaster emergency, the
Governor may direct any and all agencies of the state government to provide assistance under the
coordination of the Disaster Preparedness Commission. Such State assistance may include: (1)
utilizing, lending, or giving to political subdivisions, with or without compensation, equipment,
supplies, facilities,

services or state personnel, and other resources, other than the extension of credit; (2) distributing
medicine, medical supplies, food and other consumable supplies through any public or private
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agency authorized to distribute such items; (3) performing on public or private lands temporary
emergency work essential for the protection of public health and safety, clearing debris and
wreckage, making emergency repairs to and temporary replacements of public facilities of political
subdivisions damaged or destroyed as a result of such disaster; and (4) making such other use of their
facilities, equipment, supplies and persormel as may be necessary to assist in coping with the disaster
or any resulting emergency.

e. Governor May Order the Organized Militia into Service of the State
Authority: Military Law 6(1) provides that the Governor shall have power, in case of disaster, to
order the organized militia into the active service of the State for such period, to such extent, and in
such manner as he may deem necessary. Pursuant to Military Law 9, whenever the organized militia
is employed under Military Law 6, the Govetnor may by proclamation declare the county or city in
which the troops are serving to be under martial rule, if in the Governor’s judgment the
maintenance of law and order will thereby be promoted. Martial rule is subject to the Federal and
State Constitutions and is governed by the Code of Military Justice. See Military Law Article VIL

f. Governor May Issue Call to the State Police

Authority: Executive Law 223(1) sets forth the duties and powers of the Superintendent and
members of the New York State Police. The State Police are subject to the call of the Governor and
are empowered to cooperate with any other department of the State or with local authorities. Upon
the direction of the Governor or upon the request of the mayor of a city with the approval of the
Governor, the State Police may exercise their powers within the limits of any city to suppress rioting
and disorder.

g. Governor May Require State Health Commissioner to Examine Nuisances and Order Their
Abatement or Removal

Authority. Public Health Law 1301(1) provides that whenever required by the Governor, the State
Commissioner of Health shall make an examination concerning nuisances or questions affecting the
security of life and health in any locality, and shall report the results to the Governor within the time
prescribed by him. The Governor may declare the matters public nuisances and may order them to
be changed, abated or removed as he may direct, pursuant to Public Health Law 1301(2). Pursuant
to Public Health Law 1301(3), the Governor may, by a precept under his hand and official seal,
require the district attorney, sheriff and other officers of the county where such nuisance is
maintained, to take all necessary measures to execute such order and cause it to be obeyed.

Application of these provisions to a situation arising from bioterrorism would assume the resulting
contamination of property which might be identified and termed a public nuisance.

2.State Agency Actions
a. State Health Commissioner and New York State Department of Health Continue to Exercise
Powers and Duties Regarding Public Health Matters as Provided by Law
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Authority: Public Health Law 200 provides for the existence of a Department of Health in State
government, headed by a Commissioner of Health of the State of New York. Public Health Law
206(1)(a) states the duty of the Commissioner of Health to take cognizance of the interests of public
health and exercise functions, powers and duties prescribed by law.

Supervision of local boards of health and health officers — Public Health Law 206(1)(b) states
the duty of the Commissioner of Health to exercise general supervision over the work of all Tocal
boards of health and health officers, unless provided otherwise.

Promulgation of regulations by Public Health Council --- Public Health Law 225(4) and 225(5)(a)
provide that the Public Health Council, which exists within the Department of Health, shall have
the power to establish, amend and repeal regulations known as the State Sanitary Code, which may
deal with any matters affecting the security of life or health or the preservation and improvement of
public health in the State of New York and with any matters as to which the jurisdiction is conferred
upon the Public Health Council.

Supervision of reporting and control of disease --- Public Health Law 206(1)(d) states the duty of
the Commissioner to investigate the causes of disease, epidemics, the sources of mortality and the
effect of various factors on public health. Public Health Law 201(1){(c) states that the Department
of Health shall, as provided by law, supervise the reporting and control of disease.

Supervision of nuisance abatement — Public Health Law 201(1)(n) requires the Department to
exercise control over and supervise the abatement of nuisances affecting or likely to affect public
health. Public Health Law 1300 confers on the Commissioner of Health all necessary powers to
make investigations and examinations into nuisances, or questions affecting the security of life and
health in any locality. Pursuant to Public Health Law 1303(4) and 10 NYCRR 8.5, the Commissioner
of Health may mandate that local boards of health outside of New York City convene and take
directed action necessary for the public good, including the abatement of the spread of disease.

Deputization of local health officers --- Pursuant to Public Health Law 206(9), the Commissioner
of Health may deputize in writing any local health officer to do or perform in her place and stead
those duties set forth at Public Health Law 206(1)(d) pertaining to the investigation of the causes of
disease, epidemics, the sources of mortality, and the effect of localities, employments and other
conditions, upon the public health.

Modification of local board of health orders - Pursuant to Public Health Law 206(4)(b), the
Commissioner of Health may annul or modify an order, regulation, by-law or ordinance of a local
board of health concerning a matter which in her judgment affects the public health beyond the
territory over which such local board of health has jurisdiction.

Access to facilities and property--- Pursuant to Public Health Law 206(2), the Commissioner of

Health or designee may, without fee or hindrance, enter, examine and survey all grounds, erections,
vehicles, structures, apartments, buildings and places.
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Expenditure of funds--- Public Health Law 201(1)(p) provides that the Department of Health shall
receive and expend funds for public health purposes as provided by law.

Distribution of products — Public Health Law 201(1){e) requires the Department of Health to
produce, standardize and distribute diagnostic, prophylactic and therapeutic products as provided
by law.

Regulation of public health aspects of radiation — Public Health Law 201(1)(r) requires the
Department of Health to supervise and regulate the public health aspects of ionizing radiation and
non-ionizing electromagnetic radiation.

Promotion of disease education —-- Public Health Law 201(1)(g) requires the Department of Health
to promote education in the prevention and control of disease as provided by law.

b. State Health Commissioner May Take Summary Action to Protect Public Health
Authority: Public Health Law 16 provides that whenever the Commissioner, after investigation, is
of the opinion that any person is causing, engaging in or maintaining a condition or activity which
in her opinion constitutes danger to the health of the people, and that it therefore appears to be
prejudicial to the interests of the people to delay action for 15 days until an opportunity for a hearing
can be provided in accordance with the provisions of Public Health Law section 12-a, the
Commissioner shall order the person, including any State agency or political subdivision having
jurisdiction, by written notice to discontinue such dangerous condition or activity or take certain
action immediately or within a specified period of less than 15 days. As promptly as possible
thereafter, within not to exceed 15 days, the Commissioner shall provide the person an opportunity
to be heard and to present any proof that such condition or activity does not constitute a danger to
the health of the people.

¢. Commissioner of General Services May Authorize State Agency Emergency Procurements
Authority: State Finance Law 163(10)(b) provides that procurements made to meet emergencies
arising from unforeseen causes may be made without a formal competitive process and shall only
be made under unusual circumstances and shall include a determination by the Commissioner of
General Services or the State agency that the specifications or requirements for the purchase have
been designed in a fair and equitable manner. The purchasing agency is required to document in the
procurement record the nature of the emergency giving rise to the procurement.

Emergency is defined at State Finance Law 163(1)(b} as an urgent and unexpected requirement
where health and public safety or the conservation of public resources is at risk.

3. Local Government Actions

a. Local Boards of Health and Health Officers Have the Duty and Authority to Control
Infectious Diseases by Means that Include Isolation and Quarantine

Authority. Public Health Law 2100 (1) requires every local board of health and every health officer
to guard against the introduction of such communicable diseases as are designated in the State
Sanitary Code, by the proper and vigilant medical inspection and control of all persons and things
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infected with or exposed to such diseases. Public Health Law 2100(2) places a legal duty upon local
boards of health and health officers to: (a) provide for care and isolation of cases of communicable
disease in a hospital or elsewhere when necessary for protection of the public health and (b) subject
to the provisions of the State Sanitary Code, prohibit and prevent all intercourse and communication
with or use of infected premises, places, and things, and require, and if necessary provide the means
for their thorough purification and cleansing before resumption of their use. Pursuant to Public
Health Law 2110, New York City is exempt from the requirements contained in Public Health Law
2100. See New York City Health Code Article 11.

Isolation is defined at1 0 NYCRR 2.25(d) as consisting of the separation from other persons, i such
places, under such conditions, and for such time, as will prevent transmission of the infectious agent,
of persons known to be ill or suspected of being infected.

Quarantine of premises is defined at 10 NYCRR 2.25(e) to consist of (1) prohibition of entrance
into or exit from the premises, as designated by the health officer, where a case of communicable
disease exists of any person other than medical attendants and such others as may be authorized by
the health officer; (2) prohibition, without permission and instruction from the health officer, of the
removal from such premises of any article liable to contamination with infective material through
contact with the patient or with his secretions or excretions, unless such article has been disinfected.

Pursuant to 10 NYCRR 2.29, whenever a case of a highly communicable disease (as defined in 10
NYCRR 2.1) comes to the attention of the city, county or district health officer, he or she shall
isolate such patients as in his or her judgment are deemed necessary. Pending official action by the
health officer, it is the legal duty of every attending physician, upon discovering a case of a highly
communicable disease (as defined in 10 NYCRR 2.1) to immediately isolate the patient. 10 NYCRR
2.33 restricts the removal of persons affected with any highly communicable disease (as defined in
10 NYCRR 2.1) from one health district into another.

Under case law, including Crayton v. Larabee (1917) 220 N.Y. 493, isolation and quarantine must
not be arbitrary, unreasonable or oppressive, and due process protections must be afforded to persons
subject to isolation and quarantine orders of public health officers.

b. Local Boards of Health and IHealth Officers Have Duty to Investigate, Suppress and
Remove Nuisances and Conditions Detrimental to Life and Health

Authority: Public Health Law 1303 provides that every local board of health and local health officer
shall

receive and examine into all complaints concerning nuisances, or causes of danger or injury to life
and health within the health district. Every local board of health shall order the suppression and

removal of all such nuisances and conditions.

Application of this provision to a situation arising from bioterrorism would assume the resulting
contamination of property which might be identified and termed a nuisance.
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¢. City Comumissioner of Health (or Health Officer in Cities with Population of Less than
175,000) May Exercise Extraordinary Powers in Case of Great and Imminent Peril to the
Public Health
Authority: Public Health Law 370(1) provides that in case of great and imminent peril to the public
health of the city, it shall be the duty of the city health commissioner, or health officer in cities
having a population of less than 175,000, with the approval and consent of the legislative authority
if it is practicable to convene such authority for prompt action, or if not, when approved by the board
of estimate or similar authority, to take such measures and to do, order or cause to be done such acts
and to make such extraordinary expenditures, in excess of the sum appropriated to the city
department of health, as provided by law, for the preservation and protection of the public health of
such city as he or she may deem necessary and proper.

d. Chief Execative of County, City, Town or Village May Promulgate Emergency Orders
Following Proclamation of a Local State of Emergency

Authority. Executive Law 24(1) provides that following the proclamation of a local state of
emergency and during its continuance, the chief executive may promulgate local emergency orders
to protect life and property or to bring the emergency situation under control.

Control of roads and public areas — As illustration, such orders may, within any part or all or the
territorial limits of such local government provide for: the establishment of a curfew and the
prohibition and control of pedestrian and vehicular traffic, except essential emergency vehicles and
personnel; the prohibition and control of the presence of persons on public streets and places.

Designation of emergency facilities— Such orders may also provide for the establishment or
designation of emergency medical shelters.

e. Chief Executive of County, City, Town or Village May Suspend Local Law Under Specified
Conditions

Authority: Pursuant to Executive Law 24(1)(g), a local emergency order may provide for the
suspension within any part or all of its territorial limits of any of its local laws, ordinances or
regulations, or parts thereof, subject to Federal and State constitutional, statutory and regulatory
limitations, which may prevent, hinder, or delay necessary action in coping with a disaster or
recovery from a disaster. This extraordinary power is first subject to two conditions: (1) a request
has been made by the appropriate chief executive of the county or city to the Governor in
accordance with Executive Law 24(7); or (2) the Governor has

declared a state of disaster emergency pursuant to Executive Law 28. Also, such suspension of any
local law, ordinance or regulation is subject to specified standards and limits:

(1) no suspension shall be made for a period in excess of 5 days, provided, however, that upon
reconsideration of all the relevant facts and circumstances, a suspension may be extended for
additional periods not to exceed 5 days each during the pendency of the state of emergency;

(i1) no suspension shall be made which does not safeguard the health and welfare of the public and
which is not reasonably necessary to the disaster effort;

(iii) any such suspension order shall specify the local law, ordinance or regulation, or part thereof,
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suspended and the terms and conditions of the suspension;
(iv) the order may provide for such suspension only under particular circumstances, and may provide
for the alteration or modification of the requirements of such local law, ordinance or regulation
suspended, and may include other terms and conditions;
(v) any such suspension order shall provide for the minimum deviation from the requirements of the
local law, ordinance or regulation suspended consistent with the disaster action deemed necessary;
and
(vi) when practicable, specialists shall be assigned to assist with the related emergency actions to
avoid adverse effects resulting from the suspension.

f. Chief Executive of County and Certain Chief Executives of Cities May Request Governor
to Provide Assistance Following Declaration of Local State of Emergency Involving Disaster
Beyond Capability of Local Government to Meet

Authority: Executive Law 24(7) provides that whenever a local state of emergency has been declared
pursuant to this section, the chief executive of the county in which the local state of emergency has
been declared, or where a county is wholly contained within a city, the chief executive of the city,
may request the Governor to provide assistance under the Executive Law, provided that such chief
executive determines that the disaster is beyond the capacity of local government to meet adequately
and State assistance is necessary to supplement local efforts to save lives and to protect property,
public health and safety, or to avert or lessen the threat of a disaster.

IV. PROVISIONS GOVERNING CRITICAL AREAS

A. SAFE DISPOSAL OF INFECTIOUS WASTE

Authorify: See Public Health Law Article 13, Title X1I], entitled Storage, Treatment, and Disposal
of Regulated Medical Waste. Included are the following definitions:

Regulated medical waste — 1389-aa(1)

Infectious agents — 1389-aa(5)

Cultures and stocks — 1389-aa(1)(a)

Human pathological waste— 1389-aa(1)(b)

Sharps— 1389-aa(1)(d)

In addition, seec 6 NYCRR 364.9, which establishes a program for tracking and managing medical
waste shipments pursuant to the Environmental Conservation Law.

B. SAFE DISPOSAL OF HUMAN REMAINS
Authority: See generally Public Health Law Article 41, Title IV (Registration of Deaths: Burial
Permits); and Public Health Law Article 42 (Cadavers). Public Health Law 4140 requires that in the
case of a death occurring from a disease which is designated in the State Sanitary Code as a
communicable disease, no permit for the removal or other disposition of the body shall be issued by
the registrar, except to a funeral director or undertaker licensed in accordance with Public Health
Law Article 34 (Funeral Directing), under such conditions as may be prescribed in the State Sanitary
Code.

C. DESTRUCTION OF PROPERTY
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Authority: Public Health Law 2100 (2)(b) provides that every local board of health and every health
officer may, subject to the provisions of the State Sanitary Code, prohibit and prevent all contact
with or use of infected premises, places and things, and require, and if necessary, provide the means
for their thorough purification and cleansing before contact may be resumed. According to an 1894
Opinion of the Attorney General, it was within the power of a local board of health to destroy
clothing which had become infected with infectious or contagious disease germs.

D. LICENSING AND APPOINTMENT OF HEALTH PERSONNEL

1. Coroner, Coroner’s Physician and Medical Examiner

Authority: Outside of New York City, County Law Article 17-A applies and describes their duties
and manner of investigating deaths within their jurisdiction.

2, Physicians

Aunthority: Education Law Article 131 (Medicine); Education Law Article 131-A (definitions of
professional misconduct applicable to physicians); Public Health Law 230 et seq.(Professional
Medical Conduct); Public Health Law Article 33 (Controlled Substances)

3. Physician’s Assistants

Authority: Education Law Article 131-B (Physician Assistants and Special Assistants); Education
Law Article 131-A (definitions of professional misconduct applicable to physician’s assistants and
special assistants); Public Health Law Article 33 (Controlled Substances)

4, Nurses
Authority: Bducation Law Article 139 (Nursing); Public Health Law Article 33 (Controlled

Substances)

5. Pharmacists
Authority: Education Law Article 137 (Pharmacy); Public Health Law Article 33 (Controlled

Substances)

6. Veterinarians
Authority: Education Law Article 135 (veterinary medicine)

7. Emergency Medical Technicians
Authority: Public Health Law Article 30 (Emergency Medical Services); 10 NYCRR Part 800 (State
Emergency Medical Services Code)

8. Funeral Directors
Authority: Public Health Law Article 34 (Funeral Directing)

E. COLLECTION OF LABORATORY SPECIMENS: CHAIN OF CUSTODY
Physical evidence of an act of bioterrorism may take the form of a biohazard specimen. Whenever
such a specimen is to be appropriately collected by members of the health service system or law
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enforcement agencies and transported to an appropriate laboratory for testing (e.g. Wadsworth Center
for Laboratories and Research), material submitted as physical evidence must comply with policies
that ensure its integrity and safe handling.

Authority. Executive Law 995-b(1) requires the Commission on Forensic Science to develop
minimum standards for all forensic laboratories in New York State. See also 9 NYCRR Part 6190
(New York State Accreditation Program for Forensic Laboratories).

F. ACCESS TO AND DISCLOSURE OF PROTECTED HEALTH INFORMATION

Authority: In addition to State law ciled below, recently enacted Federal law must also be
considered. See especially the Federal Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act (HIPAA).
Accompanying regulations are not yet effective. However, the relevant privacy regulations
implementing HIPAA are scheduled to take effect and require compliance on April 14, 2003,

Hospitals licensed under Public Health Law Article 28 are required to ensure the confidentiality of
patient records. Original medical records, information from or copies of records shall be released
only to hospital staff involved in treating the patient and individuals as permitted by Federal and
State laws. (10 NYCRR 405.10 (a)(5)).

Nursing homes must keep confidential all information contained in the residents’ records except

when
release is required by the resident or by law. (10 NYCRR 415.22 (d)).

Confidential HIV related information is defined at Public Health Law 2780(7). No person who
obtains such information in the course of providing any health or social services pursuant to a
release of confidential HIV related information may disclose or be compelled to disclose such
information except as provided in Public Health Law 2782 and Aurticle 27-F.

Release of patient medical records procedures are provided for in Public Health Law 17 upon the
written request of the patient to an examining, consulting or treating physician or hospital.

Access to patient information is governed generally by Public Health Law 18,
V. ENFORCEMENT

Authority:

A. Criminal penalties — Public Health Law 12-b(2) provides that a person who wilfully violates
any provision of the Public Health Law or any regulation lawfully made or established by any public
officer or board under authority of the Public Health Law, the punishment for violating which is not
otherwise prescribed by the Public Health Law or any other law, is punishable by imprisonment not
exceeding one year, or by a fine not exceeding $2000 or by both.

B. Physician discipline — A physician may be charged via the disciplinary processes of Public
Health Law 230 with professional misconduct pursuant to Education Law 6530(16) for a wilful or
grossly negligent failure to make a communicable disease report required under 10 NYCRR 2.10.
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C. Civil penalties --- Pursuant to Public Health Law 12 and 206, any person, including health
facilities licensed under Public Health Law Article 28, who violates any provision of the Public
Health Law or regulations made pursuant to it shall be liable for a civil penalty of not to exceed
$2000 for every such violation. A health facility licensed under Public Health Law Article 28 may
subject its operating certificate to revocation, pursuant to Public Health Law 2806(1) for violation
of the Public Health Law or applicable regulations, including communicable disease reporting

requirements.

D. Obstruction or interference with State health inspector — No person shall interfere with or
obstruct the inspection or examination of any occupant of any house, building, vessel or other
premises by the State Commissioner of Health in the discharge of her official duties.(10 NYCRR

1.11).
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Home Isolation for Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) Patients
Assessment Checklist - Draft

Date: Tracking ID/Bar Code
. Patient Name: Last First;
. Address:

. Telephone #:

. Primary Caregiver Name: Last First:
. Telephone #

. Inspectors Name: Last First:

. Type of Home
[1- Single Family/Single Unit
[1- Single Family/Multiple Unit
[1- Single Family/Apartment

[1- Other
. Number of Occupants in home
. Residence Description
£ Number of Bedrooms
| Number of Bathrooms
| Central Air Conditioning
| Carpeted
0 Number of Window Air Conditioning Units
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Home Isolation for Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) Patients

Assessment Checlklist - Draft - Page 2

Date: Tracking ID/Bar Code

Appendix 3D

ftem

Yes

No

Is a household member available to be the patients primary caregiver?

Is there a separate bedroom available to be used only by the SARS patient during the
isolation period?

Does the bedroom have an openable window?

Is the bedroom physically separated by walls from adjacent rooms?

Does the bedroom have a door which can be kept closed?

Does the residence have a designated bathroom for the SARS patient

Does the residence have electricity and running water?

Does the residence have a functioning telephone?

Does the residence have a central air conditioning unit that services the SARS patient’s
room?

Does the residence have a window air conditioning unit that services the SARS patient’s
room?

If a central air conditioning unit is in place, has the system been modified to prevent air from
the SARS patient’s room from circulating throughout the residence?

If a wall air conditioning unit is in place, is the condensate drain hard-plumbed to the sewer
system?¥

Is a sign posted on the patient’s door restricting access only to the Caregiver?

Have other occupants been relocated (if possibie)?

Has a contingency for emergencies been developed (e.g., who to notify)?

Has the Caregiver and patient been instructed on the proper procedures for disposing of waste
materials and laundering?

Have procedures and supplies for disposing of waste material been developed and obtained?

Has the Caregiver been instructed on how to clean/disinfect the SARS patient’s room?

Are sufficient gloves, surgical masks, and disinfectant available at the residence?

Has the patient been instructed to restrict his mobility and take precautions (e.g. surgical
mask).

*Cooling is accomplished by removing moisture {rom the air and the condensate liquid may contain infectious

material and should be handled accordingly.
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NYS Laws Regarding Temporary Hospitals and
Communicable Disease Facilities

1. Exceeding hospital capacity:

“The medical facility shall control admission and discharge of patients or"
residents to assure that occupancy shall not exceed the bed capacity
specified in the operating certificate, except that a hospital may temporarily
exceed such capacity in an emergency.” 10 NYCRR § 401.2(a)

Contact the New York State Department of Health Regional Office if exceeding hospital capacity
becomes necessary.

2. Temporarily using unlicensed facilities or sites as hospitals.

If licensed facility is overwhelmed or in danger of being overwhelmed and diversion to another
licensed facility is not advisable the State Commissioner of Health can order use of other
facilities.

“Whenever the commissioner, after investigation, is of the opinion that any
person is causing, engaging in or maintaining a condition or activity which in her
opinion constitutes danger to the health of the people, and that it therefore
appears to be prejudicial to the interests of the people fo delay action for 15 days
until an opportunity for a hearing can be provided in accordance with the
provisions of [Public Health Law section 12-a], the commissioner shall order the
person, including any State agency or political subdivision having jurisdiction, by
written notice to discontinue such dangerous condition or activity or take certain
action immediately or within a specified period of less than fifteen days. As
promptly as possible thereafter, within not to exceed fifteen days, the
commissioner shall provide the person an opportunity fo be heard and to
present any proof that such condition or activity does not constitute a danger to
the health of the people.” PHL § 16.

PHL § 307(1) provides that in case of great and imminent peril to the public
health of the city, it is the duty of the city health commissioner or health officer,
with the approval of the local legislative authority, to take such measures and to
do, order or cause to be done such acts for the preservation and protection of the
public health of such city as he or she may deem necessary and proper.

In addition, Executive Law § 24(1) provides that following the proclamation of a
local state of emergency, the chief executive may promulgate local emergency
orders to protect life and property or to bring the emergency under control. These
orders may provide for the establishment or designation of emergency medical
shelters.

Contact the New York State Department of Health Regional Office if use of

Section 3-Non-Hospital Quarantine and Isolation 1




Appendix 3E

unlicensed facilities or sites is being contemplated, as these statutory authorities
may only be available during a declared emergency.

3. Permanent establishment of Tacilities for communicable disease.

“The commissioner shall from time to time submit to the authorities of the
several municipalities or counties of the state such recommendations as

he may consider necessary as to the establishment of hospitals for
communicable diseases, indicating the disease for which in his judgment
provision should be made and the extent of such provision.” PHL § 2109(1).
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Appendix 3F
NYS Education Law Regarding School Closure
During an Emergency

Schools are required to develop school emergency management plans. 18 NYCRR 155.17.
Generally the school board or the school superintendent by delegation from the school board has
authority to close a school to ensure the health of the students and staff. If a school
superintendent refuses or fails to act the State Commissioner of Education can override and order
the school closed.

“The Commissioner of Education or his or her designee may

order emergency response actions by individual school districts

in the event that the local officials are unable or unwilling to take
action deemed to be appropriate by State and/or county emergency
personnel in accordance with county or State emergency
preparedness plans or directives. 18 NYCRR 155.17(m).

The State Commissioner of Education can be reached through the local (BOCES) District

Superintendent, except in the cities of Buffalo, Rochester, Syracuse, Yonkers and New York. If
the school is in those cities contacts should be made directly with the Commissioner’s office.
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Appendix 3-G

Information Sheet for SARS Patients

SARS

This fact sheet gives information about the illness and important instructions for preventing the spread of severe
acute respiratory syndrome (SARS). SARS is a viral respiratory illness caused by a coronavirus, called SARS-
associated coronavirus (SARS-CoV). SARS was first reported in Asia in February 2003.

The 2003 SARS outbreak

According to the World Health Organization, during the SARS outbreak of 2003, a total of 8,098 people
worldwide became sick with SARS; of these, 774 died. In the United States, there were 192 cases of SARS, none
of which were fatal. Most of the U.S. SARS cases were among travelers returning from other parts of the world
with SARS. There were very few U.S. cases among close contacts of travelers, including health-care workers and
family members. SARS did not spread more widely in the community in the United States.

Symptoms of SARS

In general, SARS begins with a high fever (temperature greater than 100.4°F [>38.0°C]). Other symptoms may
include headache, an overall feeling of discomfort, and body aches. Some people also have mild respiratory
symptoms at the outset. About 10 percent to 20 percent of patients have diarrhea. After 2 to 7 days, SARS patients
may develop a dry cough. Most patients develop pneumonia.

How SARS spreads

The main way that SARS seems to spread is by close person-to-person contact. The virus that causes SARS is
thought to be transmitted most readily by respiratory droplets produced when an infected person coughs or
sneezes. Droplets from the cough or sneeze are propelled a short distance (generally up to 3 feet) through the air
and may be deposited on the mouth, nose, or eyes of persons who are nearby. The virus also can spread when a
person touches a surface or object contaminated with infectious droplets and then touches his or her mouth, nose,
or eye(s). In addition, it is possible that the SARS virus might spread more broadly through the air (airborne
spread) or by other ways that are not now known.

Steps to protect yourself and the people around you
If you have SARS follow these instructions:

If you have SARS, you should:

» Cover your mouth and nose with tissue when coughing or sneezing. If you have a surgical mask, wear it
during close contact with other people. A mask can reduce the number of droplets coughed into the air.

« Follow the instructions given by your health-care provider.

If you have SARS and are being cared for at home, in order to help prevent your close contacts from getting
sick, you must follow the instructions below while you have symptoms and for 10 days after your fever has
disappeared and your respiratory symptoms {cough, shortness of breath, or difficulty breathing) have
improved.,

¢ You must not leave your home (go to work, school, out-of-home childcare, or other public places) for
10 days after your fever has disappeared and respiratory symptoms have improved. One exception is
if you need to see your doctor (see next bullet).

o If youneed to go to the doctor’s office, be sure to contact your doctor before you visit and tell the doctor
you have been diagnosed with SARS. Wear a surgical face mask on the way to see your doctor.

Section 3-Non-Hospital Quarantine and Isolation 1




Appendix 3G

¢ Do not have visitors to your household for 10 days after your fever has disappeared and respiratory
symptoms improved.

o While at home, limit your contact with household members. If possible, sleep in separate rooms or at least
a separate bed. Avoid close contact such as kissing,

e If possible, wear a surgical mask when around other people in your home. If you can’t wear a mask, the
members of your household should wear one when they are around you.

¢  Wash your hands frequently with soap and water, particularly after contact with body fluids
(coughing/sneezing/blowing your nose, going to the bathroom). An alcohol-based hand rub is also
acceptable.

e Cover your mouth and nose with tissue when you sneeze or cough. Put used tissues in the garbage and
wash your hands immediately with soap and water or use an alcohol-based hand rub.

» Don’t share silverware, towels, or bedding with anyone in your home until these items have been washed
with soap and hot water. Do not share toothbrushes, drinks, or cigarettes.

s (lean surfaces (counter or tabletops, door knobs, bathroom fixtures, etc.) that have been contaminated by
body fluids (sweat, saliva, mucous, or even vomit or urine) from the SARS patient with a household
disinfectant used according to the manufacturer’s instructions. Wear disposable gloves during all cleaning
activities, Throw these out when you are done. Do not reuse them.

¢ Maintain contact with the local health department regarding your symptoms.

Please contact at if you have any questions or
concerns or if you are feeling worse and require medical care.

YOU MUST FOLLOW THESE INSTRUCTIONS TO PREVENT OTHERS FROM BELCOMING ILL.
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Appendix 3-H
Information Sheet for Close Contacts of SARS Patients

SARS

This fact sheet gives information about the illness and important instructions for close
contacts of SARS patients to prevent the spread of severe acute respiratory syndrome
(SARS). SARS is a viral respiratory illness caused by a coronavirus, called SARS-
associated coronavirus (SARS-CoV). SARS was first reported in Asia in February 2003.

What does “close contact” mean?

In the context of SARS, close contact means caring for or living with someone with
SARS or having direct contact with respiratory secretions or body fluids of a patient with
SARS. Examples of close contact include kissing or hugging, sharing eating or drinking
utensils, talking to someone within 3 feet, and touching someone directly. Close contact
does not include activities like walking by a person or sitting across a waiting room or
office for a brief time.

How SARS spreads

The main way that SARS seems to spread is by close person-to-person contact. The virus
that causes SARS is thought to be transmitted most readily by respiratory droplets
produced when an infected person coughs or sneezes. Droplets from the cough or sneeze
are propelled a short distance (generally up to 3 feet) through the air and may be
deposited on the mouth, nose, or eyes of persons who are nearby. The virus also can
spread when a person touches a surface or object contaminated with infectious droplets
and then touches his or her mouth, nose, or eye(s). In addition, it is possible that the
SARS virus might spread more broadly through the air (airborne spread) or by other ways
that are not known.

If you have had close contact with or are are caring for someone at home who has
SARS, you should:

« Be sure that the person with SARS has seen a health-care provider.

« Be sure that all household members of the person with SARS are washing their
hands frequently with soap and hot water or using alcohol-based hand wash.

« Wear disposable gloves if you have direct contact with body fluids of a SARS
patient. However, the wearing of gloves is not a substitute for good hand hygiene.
After contact with body fluids of a SARS patient, remove the gloves, throw them
out, and wash your hands. Do not wash or reuse the gloves.

« Houschold members should encourage the person with SARS to cover their
mouth and nose with a tissue when coughing or sneezing.

« If possible, the person with SARS should wear a surgical mask during close
contact with other people in the home. If the person with SARS cannot wear a
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surgical mask, other members of the household should wear one when in the room
with that person.

« Do not use silverware, towels, bedding, clothing, or other items that have been
used by the person with SARS until these items have been washed with soap and
hot water.

« Clean surfaces (counter or tabletops, door knobs, bathroom fixtures, etc.) that
have been contaminated by body fluids (sweat, saliva, mucous, or even vomit or
urine) with a houschold disinfectant used according to the manufacturer’s
instructions, Wear disposable gloves during all cleaning activities. Throw these
out when done. Do not reuse them.

+ Follow these instructions for 10 days after the last contact with the person with
SARS or 10 days after fever has gone away and respiratory symptoms are
improving.

« If you develop a fever or respiratory symptoms, contact your health care provider
and the local health department immediately and tell them that you have had close
contact with a SARS patient.

YOU MUST FOLLOW THESE INSTRUCTIONS TO PREVENT OTHERS
FROM BECOMING ILL.
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4. Laboratory Diagnosis of SARS

A. Goals and key concepts

B. NYSDOH Wadsworth Center Guidance Document:
Laboratory Diagnosis of SARS

Tests that will be performed at Wadsworth Center

Samples that will not be tested

Description of SARS tests and how they should be interpreted
Process to Initiate testing

Method and timing of specimen collection

Forms to be submitted with specimens sent to Wadsworth Center
Safety precautions when collecting and handling specimens
How to ship specimens to Wadsworth Center

9. When to ship specimens to Wadsworth Center

10. Reporting of results

11. Contacts for Additional information

2N O R W

C. Roles and Activities for Laboratory Diagnosis of SARS

Appendices
4A. Virus Reference and Surveillance Laboratory History form
DOH-1795
4B, Informed Consent for EIA
4C. Informed Consent for RT-PCR
4D, Patient Information Form (if samples taken prior to
consent)
4E. Recommended Specimens For SARS Co-V Testing

Note: Appendices B-D are being revised by CDC. Updated versions will be
forwarded when they become available.
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4. Laboratory Diagnosis of SARS

A. Goals and Key Concepts

The overall goals of SARS laboratory diagnostics are to:

s Provide the public health community with ready access to high-quality SARS
diagnostics.

s Ensure that SARS laboratory diagnostics are used safely and appropriately and that
results are interpreted appropriately.

The following are key concepts about SARS laboratory diagnosis:

s Specific laboratory diagnostic assays must be used to distinguish SARS from other
common respiratory pathogens.

s Most patients in the early stages of SARS illness have a low titer of virus in
respiratory and other secretions and require time to mount an antibody response.

¢ Itis preferable to collect multiple specimens from different sites and at different times
during iliness.

s The possibility of false-positive and false-negative results with both PCR and
serologic assays should always be considered when interpreting results.

B. NYSDOH Wadsworth Center Guidance Document:
Laboratory Diagnosis of SARS

1. Tests that will be performed at Wadsworth Center

Tests for the SARS Coronavirus

For patients who meet the case definition and whose case history has been reviewed by
the local health department (LHD) and the NYSDOH Bureau of Communicable Disease
Control (BCDC), the Wadsworth Center laboratory will test for infection with the SARS
coronavirus (SARS CoV) using both a reverse-transcriptase PCR (RT-PCR assay) and an
enzyme-linked immunoassay (EIA). These tests have been developed by the CDC.

Tests for other viruses

The majority of SARS-like illnesses will be caused by other respiratory pathogens.
Diagnosis of these infections will often make it easier to manage community anxiety about
SARS. Once the presence of the SARS coronavirus has been ruled out in a clinical
sample, the Wadsworth Center laboratory will perform both rapid diagnostic testing and
viral culture for respiratory pathogens including influenza A and B, respiratory syncytial
virus, para-influenza virus, enterovirus and adenovirus. These results will be reported to
the submitting physician and, through the Bureau of Communicable Disease Control, to
the LHD.

2. Samples that will not be tested

If the patient does NOT meet the case definition, testing for the SARS coronavirus will
not be performed. Testing for respiratory pathogens in these patients should be performed
using the normal laboratory services. If the case history has not been reviewed by staff of
the Bureau of Communicable Disease Control, the LHD will be requested to follow-up
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with the medical provider to determine if the patient meets the case criteria for SARS
testing. Samples that are improperly labeled will not be tested until the required
information is obtained. Samples with insufficient volume cannot be tested. Samples that
are leaking present a safety hazard to laboratory staff and will not be tested. Samples
shipped at room temperature will not be tested because of the potential for false-negative
results.

3. Description of SARS tests and how they should be interpreted

The CDC has developed and validated an enzyme immunoassay (EIA) for detection of serum
antibody to SARS-CoV, and a reverse transcription-polymerase chain reaction (RT-PCR)
assay, for detection of SARS-CoV RNA. Both the EIA and RT-PCR tests are sensitive and
highly specific for SARS-CoV. The ability to diagnose SARS-CoV infection in the patient,
however, is often limited by either the low concentration of virus in most clinical specimens
(RT-PCR assays) or by the time it takes a person to mount a measurable antibody response to
SARS (serologic assays). The likelihood of detecting infection is increased if multiple
specimens, e.g. stool, serum, and respiratory tract specimens, are collected at several times
during the course of illness.

e What does it mean if a patient with SARS has a positive test result for SARS-
CoV?
Laboratory test results should always be considered together with clinical observations and
epidemiologic data in making a final diagnosis. A positive PCR result should be
confirmed by a qualified second laboratory to ensure that this result is not an artifact of
laboratory contamination. A positive serologic result is less likely to result from a
laboratory artifact, but should also be subjected to confirmatory testing. If the results are
confirmed, then a positive RT-PCR or serologic test result indicates that the patient has
been recently infected with SARS-CoV (unless they have a previous history of SARS).

e  How is a SARS-CoV test confirmed?

Positive antibody tests will be confirmed by retesting the specimens in an independent
laboratory. Positive RT-PCR results will be confirmed by repeat testing of the original
specimen AND by testing of the same specimen in an independent lab using a validated assay.

¢  What does it mean if a patient with SARS has a negative test result for SARS-
CoV?

The only conclustve rule out test for SARS-CoV is a negative antibody result on a serum

specimen collected >28 days after onset of illness. A negative antibody result on serum

specimens collected < 28 days after onset of illness or a negative RT-PCR test does not

rule out SARS-CoV infection. Clinical specimens do not always have sufficient virus to be

detected by RT-PCR and an antibody response may not be detected in some patients until >28

days after onset of illness. With the exception of a >28 day antibody test, a negative test result

should not affect patient management or infection control decisions. If SARS continues to be

a diagnostic concern, additional specimens should be collected and tested.
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. What does it mean if the test results are positive for other respiratory diseases?

A positive test result for another respiratory pathogen does not rule out SARS-CoV
infection. SARS patients can be co-infected with SARS-CoV and other respiratory
pathogens. Thus, detection of another respiratory pathogen does not eliminate the
possibility of SARS-CoV infection. In some circumstances, however, detection of another
respiratory pathogen may help rule out SARS-CoV infection, e.g. the other pathogen is
detected in multiple patients in a cluster of cases and can fully explain the severity of illness.

. Should a patient with SARS who has a negative SARS-CoV test result
continue to be held using isolation precautions recommended by CDC and other

public health authorities?

As noted above, the interpretation of negative SARS-CoV test results varies depending on the
type of specimen, timing of specimen collection, and the test performed. With the
exception of a >28 day negative serologic test result, a negative SARS-CoV test result
should not affect patient isolation or management decisions. The clinical features of the
illness and the type and risk of exposure are the keys to making patient management and

isolation decisions.

4. Process to initiate testing

The first point of contact for a clinician who has a high suspicion for SARS in a patient is
the LHD. The LHD will contact the NYSDOH Regional Epidemiologist for the area. If
the LHD cannot be reached, call the NYSDOH Bureau of Communicable Disease
Control at 518-473-4436 during working hours or the Duty Officer after-hours at 1-866-

881-2809.

5. Method and timing of specimen collection
The CDC believes that we will maximize our ability to detect the SARS-CoV if multiple
specimens are collected at different times during the illness. The following table
indicates priority specimens to be collected during the course of illness. The priority is
based on the likelihood that the specimen will be positive in a SARS-CoV-infected

person.

Specimen < 1 week post | 1-3 weeks post >3 weeks post
symptom onset | symptom onset symptom onset

Serum (serum separator tube) ++ ++ .

Blood (EDTA/purple top - + -

tube)

Respiratory (deep cough ++ ++ +

sputum is preferred)

Stool + ++ 4

* To rule out SARS serologically, it is important to collect the serum >28 days post

onset

++  Priority specimen

- Not recommended
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Thus, based on the chart above, the following specimens are recommended:

o Less than 1 week post-onset: collect serum, blood, respiratory secretions and stool.
o 1-3 weeks post-onset: collect serum, respiratory secretions and stool

e More than three weeks post-onset: collect serum, respiratory secretions and stool.

Key points
o Itis preferable to collect multiple specimens from different sites and at different times

during illness.

o Each sample should be labeled with patient’s name, ID number when available,
specimen type and date collected.

e The most useful respiratory specimen may be deep cough sputum.

o Nasal aspirates and lower respiratory specimens should be collected with strict attention to
airborne and contact precautions, and in an airborne infection isolation room. Before
collecting specimens, review infection control precautions at:
http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/infectioncontrol.htm and
http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/aerosolinfectioncontrol.htm.

o If patient is deceased, autopsy specimens can be submitted.

o Further guidance on specimen collection can be obtained at

http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/specimen_collection_sars2.htm.

Respiratory Tract Specimens

Respiratory specimens should be collected as soon as possible in the course of the illness for
most respiratory pathogens. The likelihood of recovering most viruses diminishes
markedly >72 hours after symptom onset. In contrast, for SARS-CoV, the amount of
virus may increase later in the course of the illness. Seven types of respiratory
specimens may be collected for viral and/or bacterial diagnostics. These are: 1)
nasopharyngeal wash/aspirates; 2) nasopharyngeal swabs; 3) oropharyngeal swabs; 4)
broncheoalveolar lavage; 5) tracheal aspirate 6) pleural tap or 7) sputum. Deep cough sputum
is preferred for detection of SARS-CoV. Nasopharyngeal wash/aspirates are the specimen of
choice for detection of most respiratory viruses other than SARS-CoV and are the preferred
collection method among children aged <2 years.

Upper Respiratory Tract
Collection of nasopharyngeal wash/aspirate
Collect 1-2 ml from each nostril in sterile vials using non-bacteriostatic saline.
Ship with cold packs to keep sample at 4°C.
Collection of nasopharyngeal or oropharyngeal swabs
Use only sterile dacron or rayon swabs with plastic shafts. Do NOT use calcium
alginate swabs or swabs with wooden sticks.
o Nasopharyngeal swabs - Insert swab into nostril parallel to the palate and
leave in place for a few seconds to absorb secretions.
o Oropharyngeal swabs - Swab both posterior pharynx and tonsillar
areas, avoiding the tongue.
Place both swabs immediately into same sterile vial containing 2 ml of viral
transport media. Break applicator sticks off near the tip to permit tightening of
the cap. Ship with cold packs to keep sample at 4°C.
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Lower Respiratory Tract
Collection of broncheoalveolar lavage, tracheal aspirate, pleural tap
Collect available fluid (at least 2ml) in sterile vials with external caps and
internal O-ring seals. If there are no internal O-ring seals, then seal tightly with
the available cap and secure with Parafilm®. Ship with cold packs to keep
sample at 4°C.
Collection of sputum
Educate the patient about the difference between sputum and spit. Have the
patient rinse the mouth with water then expectorate deep cough sputum directly
into a sterile screw-cap sputum collection cup or sterile dry container. Ship with
cold packs to keep sample at 4°C.

Blood Components

Collection of serum for antibody or RT-PCR testing

Acute serum specimens should be collected and submitted as soon as possible. If the
patient meets the case definition, convalescent specimens should be collected > 28
days after the onset of illness.

Collect 5-10 ml of whole blood in a serum separator tube. Allow blood to clot,
centrifuge briefly and collect all resulting sera in vials with external caps and
internal O-ring seals. If there are no internal O-ring seals, then seal tightly with the
available cap and secure with Parafilm®. Label vials as containing serum with
patient name, ID number and date collected. A minimum of 800 microliters of
serum is preferred for each test. Ship with cold packs to keep sample at 4°C.

Pediatric patients: a minimum of lcc of whole blood is needed for testing. If
possible, collect 1ec in both an EDTA and serum separator tube. However, if only
lcc can be obtained, please use a serum separator tube for collection, spin and
remove serum prior to shipping.

Collection of EDTA blood/plasma for RT-PCR

Collect 5-10 ml of blood in an EDTA (purple-top) tube. Centrifuge briefly and
collect all resulting plasma in vials with external caps and internal O-ring seals. If
there are no internal O-ring seals, then seal tightly with the available cap and secure
with Parafilm®. Label vials as containing plasma with patient name, ID number and
date collected. Ship with cold packs to keep sample at 4°C.

In order to provide the best quality specimen it is highly preferable to spin blood and
remove serum or plasma prior to shipping. If it is not possible to spin blood
specimens prior to shipping, ship in original collection tube sealed with Parafilm®.
Blood specimens should be stored and shipped with cold packs to keep sample at
4°C. Do NOT freeze.
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Collection of stool for PCR

Begin collecting stool specimens as soon as possible in the course of the illness.
Although collecting earlier specimens is ideal, SARS-CoV has been detected in stool as
late as one month post symptom onset. Place 10-50ml stool specimen, in a leak-proof
tightly sealed stool cup or urine container. Patients may drape plastic kitchen wrap across
the back half of the toilet, under the toilet seat, to facilitate collection of stool specimens.
Refrigerate tubes after specimens are placed in them and ship immediately. Ship with
cold packs to keep sample at 4°C.

Collection of tissue from surgical or autopsy specimens

As well as specimens described above, the CDC recommends collection of formalin
fixed or paraffin embedded tissue from all major organs (lung, heart spleen, liver,
brain, kidney and adrenals) and fresh frozen tissue from the lung and upper airway.
Frozen tissue should be shipped on dry ice.

6. Forms to be submitted with specimens sent to Wadsworth Center
Three forms are required:

1. Wadsworth Center Virus History Form must be completed. The form is
available as Attachment A.

2. Informed Consent for the RT-PCR assay.

3. Informed Consent for the EIA assay.
The RT-PCR and EIA assays have been released by the Food and Drug
Administration (FDA) under an Investigational Device Exemption and are
IRB-approved. Use of both assays requires completion of two informed
consent documents, one each for the RT-PCR and EIA assays. The forms are
available as Attachments B and C or at the following websites.
http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/lab/rtper/consent.htm and
http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/lab/eia/consent.htm.

Note: If specimens have been collected prior to informed consent being obtained, the
Patient Information Form may be completed instead of the RT-PCR and EIA
informed consent forms. This form is available as Attachment D and at
www://cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/lab/rtper/participant.htm.

The completed forms MUST be shipped with the samples. Place the completed forms
in a plastic bag on top of the outer shipping container but inside the outer cardboard
box before sealing.

7. Safety precautions when collecting and handling specimens
Key points
e Laboratories performing routine hematology and clinical chemistry studies should
handle potential SARS specimens similarly to specimens containing other
bloodborne pathogens (e.g. hepatitis or HIV, see specific biosafety guidelines
at http://www.cdc.gov/od/ohs/biosfty/bmbl4/bmbl4s7f.htm).
e Laboratories performing serology or RT-PCR testing should handle potential
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SARS specimens using Standard Precautions (previously Universal
Precautions). Further guidance can be obtained at
http://www.cdec.gov/ncidod/sars/sarslabguide.htm

e Further safety guidance for safe handling of human remains of SARS patients
can be found at http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/autopsy.htm

o A detailed description of recommended facilities, practices, and protective
equipment for the various laboratory biosafety levels (BSLs) can be found in
the CDC/NIH Biosafety in Microbiological and Biomedical Laboratories
Manual at
www.cdc.gov/od/ohs/biosfty/bmbl4/bmbl4s3.htm.

It is estimated that several thousand diagnostic specimens from patients with SARS
have been processed in routine clinical laboratories throughout the world and to date
there has been no reported cases of SARS illness among laboratory workers
performing diagnostic assays; however, there has been one reported case in a research
laboratory setting where the SARS-CoV was being propagated. Until more
information about the transmission of the SARS agent in the laboratory setting is
known, precautions should be taken in handling these specimens. Effective and
timely communication between clinical and laboratory staff is essential in
minimizing the risk incurred in handling specimens from patients in whom SARSis
suspected. Specimens from patients who may have SARS should be labeled
accordingly and the laboratory should be alerted to insure proper specimen handling.
Listed below are biosafety guidelines for handling these specimens.

Guidance for handling blood specimens (blood, serum, plasma)

These specimens may be handled using Standard Precautions (previously Universal
Precautions). Careful attention should be given to hand hygiene after removal of gloves
and especially before touching the eyes or mucosal surfaces.

Any procedure with the potential to generate fine particulate aerosols (e.g. vortexing
or sonication of specimens in an open tube) should be performed in a biological
safety cabinet (BSC). The use of sealed centrifuge rotors or sample cups, if
available, should be employed for centrifugation. Ideally, these rotors or cups should
be loaded and unloaded in a BSC. Procedures performed outside of a BSC should be
performed in a manner that minimizes the risk of exposure to an inadvertent sample
release.

Work surfaces and equipment should be decontaminated after specimens are
processed. Standard decontamination agents that are effective against lipid-
enveloped viruses should be sufficient.

Guidance for handling other specimens (e.g., respiratory secretions, stool,
urine, tissue)
The following activities should be performed in BSL-2 facilities with standard BSL-

2 work practices:
1. Pathologic examination and processing of formalin-fixed or otherwise
inactivated tissues.
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Molecular analysis of extracted nucleic acid preparations.

Electron microscopic studies with glutaraldehyde-fixed grids.

Routine examination of bacterial and mycotic cultures.

Routine staining and microscopic analysis of fixed smears.

Final packaging of specimens for transport to diagnostic laboratories for additional
testing. Specimens should already be in a sealed, decontaminated primary container.

ST

The following activities involving manipulation of untreated specimens should be performed
in BSL-2 facilities and in a Class IT biological safety cabinet:

I. Aliquoting and/or diluting specimens.

2. Inoculation of bacterial or mycological culture media.

3. Performing diagnostic tests that don't involve propagation of viral agents in vitro or in

vivo,
4. Nucleic acid extraction procedures involving untreated specimens.
5. Preparation and chemical- or heat-fixing of smears for microscopic analysis.

Laboratory workers should wear protective equipment including disposable gloves and solid
front gowns with cuffed sleeves. Work surfaces should be decontaminated on completion of
work with appropriate disinfectants and all disposable waste autoclaved.

Any procedure or process that cannot be conducted within a biological safety cabinet requires
use of the appropriate combinations of personal protective equipment (e.g., respirators, face
shields) and physical containment devices (e.g., centrifuge safety cups or sealed rotors).
Acceptable methods of respiratory protection include a properly fit tested NIOSH approved
filter respirator (N95 or higher); or powered air-purifying respirators (PAPRS) equipped with
high efficiency particulate air (HEPA) filters. Accurate fit testing is a key component of
etfective respirator use. Personnel who cannot wear fitted respirators because of facial hair or
other fit-limitations should wear loose fitting hooded or helmeted PAPRs. Centrifugation
should be catried out using sealed centrifuge cups or rotors that are unloaded in a biological
safety cabinet.

The following activities require BSL-3 facilities and BSL-3 work practices:
+  SARS-CoV propagation in cell culture.
+ Initial characterization of viral agents recovered in cultures of SARS specimens.

When a procedure or process cannot be conducted within a biological safety cabinet, then
appropriate combinations of personal protective equipment (e.g., respirators, face
shields) and physical containment devices (e.g., centrifuge safety cups or sealed
rotors) must be used.

The following activities require Animal BSL-3 facilities and BSL-3 work practices:

» Inoculation of animals for potential recovery of the agent from SARS samples.
»  Protocols involving animal inoculation for characterization of putative SARS agents.
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Safety procedures for safe handling of human remains of SARS patients
Postmortem procedures require adherence to standard precautions with use of appropriate
personal protective equipment and facilities with appropriate safety features.

e Protective garments should include: surgical scrub suit, surgical cap, impervious gown
or apron with full sleeve coverage, eye protection (goggles or face shield), shoe covers
and double surgical gloves with an interposed layer of cut-proof synthetic mesh
gloves.

e Respiratory protection: N-95 or N-100 respirators; or powered air-purifying respirators
(PAPR) equipped with HEPA filter. Use of a PAPR is recommended for any
procedures that result in mechanical generation of aerosols.

Further guidance can be obtained at http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/autopsy/htm

8. How to ship specimens to Wadsworth Center

Key points

Packaging, shipping and transport of specimens from suspect and probable SARS cases must
follow the current edition of the International Air Transport Association (IATA) Dangerous
Goods Regulations at http://www.iata.org/dangerousgoods/index and US DOT 49 CFR
Parts 171-180 (http://hazmat.dot.gov/rules.htm)

Please note that it is the shipper’s responsibility — not the transport company’s - to
provide the appropriate packaging materials and documentation that complies with the
IATA regulations. The Wadsworth Center does not provide shipping materials.

It is essential that SARS specimens be sent to the Wadsworth Center as soon as possible
after collection. If shipped within two days of collection, ship with cold packs to keep
sample at 4°C. Do not use wet ice. If shipment is delayed >2 days, then the specimens
should be shipped on dry ice. Note: Whole Blood should never be sent on dry ice. All
original paperwork (Attachments A-D) must be complete and accompany each specimen.

e All SARS specimens must be shipped in accordance with IATA packing
instructions 650 as a "Diagnostic Specimen". Appropriate UN/IATA certified
shipping materials must be used. Diagnostic specimens transported under the
IATA Regulations are assigned to UN Identification number 3373. Follow the
step-by-step packaging guidelines given in "Packing Diagnostic Specimens for
Transport: Summary Instructions" at
http://www.cde.gov/ncidod/sars/pdf/packingspecimens-sars.pdf.

e All specimens must be sent at 4°C or, for tissue specimens, frozen on dry ice with
appropriate UN certified shipping materials. If shipped within two days of
collection, ship with cold packs to keep sample at 4°C. Note: Whole Blood should
never be sent on dry ice.

e All specimens must be shipped "Priority Overnight" and received within 24 hours
via chosen carrier. Confirm that the selected carrier guarantees next day, morning
delivery for diagnostic specimens.
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e Specimens should ONLY be shipped Sunday - Thursday so that appropriate
laboratory personnel can be present to accept and accession specimens Monday -
Friday. Samples should not be sent to arrive on a public holiday.

e The Wadsworth Center, NYSDOH, Viral Reference and Surveillance Laboratory
must be contacted via telephone or email prior to shipment. Please notify one of
the following that you are shipping SARS specimens and provide patient initials
and sample identification number.

Dr. Jill Taylor 518-862-4320, jxt07@health.state.ny.us
Dr. Norma Tavakoli 518-862-4323, npt02(@health.state.ny.us
Mr. Ryan Bennett 518-869-4551, rtc03@health.state.ny.us

Samples should be shipped to:
Shipping address: Wadsworth Center, NYSDOH
Griffin Laboratory
Virus Reference and Surveillance Laboratory
5668 State Farm Road (Route 155)
Slingerlands, NY 12159

9. When to ship specimens to Wadworth Center

At this time the Wadsworth Center laboratory will perform SARS testing only during
regular working hours Monday to Friday. Specimens should therefore ONLY be shipped
Sunday - Thursday so that appropriate laboratory personnel can be present to accept and
accession specimens. Samples should not be shipped to arrive on a public holiday.

10. Reporting of results
SARS test information will be reported through the NYSDOH Electronic Clinical
Laboratory Reporting System (ECLRS) to the LHD and a paper report sent to submitters.

Receipt of specimens

e  When specimens for SARS testing are received at the Wadsworth Center, the
specimen will be accessioned and entered into the clinical laboratory information
management system (CLIMS).

e Once accessioned, the record will be uploaded to ECLRS by 8:00 a.m. daily. A
24/7 alert will then be generated by ECLRS to notify the NYSDOH Bureau of
Communicable Disease Control (BCDC) and the LHD that a specimen for SARS
testing has been received.

e If the specimen submission form does not have a Health Information Network
(HIN/CDESS) ID number for the patient, NYSDOH BCDC will be notified.
BCDC will contact the NYSDOH Regional Office and/or LHD for follow-up.

Test results
e Results will be uploaded to ECLRS by 8:00 a.m. each day.
e Negative results will be uploaded to ECLRS and sent to the submitter at the same
time.
e Positive test results will not be uploaded to ECLRS until confirmed.
- A 24/7 alert will be generated by ECLRS
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e Preliminary positive test results
- The initial positive test result(s) in a county will be telephoned to the
NYSDOH BCDC, who will notify the NYSDOH Regional Office
and LHD.
If community-transmission of SARS is documented, telephone reporting of preliminary
results may need to be discontinued.

11. Contacts for additional information
Dr. Jill Taylor 518-862-4320, jxt07@health.state.ny.us
Dr. Norma Tavakoli 518-862-4323, npt02@health.state.ny.us
Mr. Ryan Bennett 518-869-4551, rtc03@health.state.ny.us

C. Roles and Activities for Laboratory Diagnosis of SARS

Clinical Laboratories and Healthcare Providers

e Report all potential SARS cases to the LHD to determine if the patient meets the
surveillance case definition prior to shipping specimens to Wadsworth Center.

e Collect, handle and ship SARS specimens correctly, according to guidelines and
regulations.

e Complete all appropriate forms and send to Wadsworth with the sample.

o Follow biosafety guidance to ensure that SARS specimens and SARS-CoV-infected
materials are handled safely.

e Interpret SARS test results in consultation with state and/or local health department
officials and with consideration of data on the clinical and epidemiologic features of
the illness and the type and timing of specimen collection.

Local Health Departments

e Provide the medical provider with the case HIN ID number, guidance on specimen
submission and the appropriate paperwork (Attachments A-D)

e Communicate/coordinate with the medical provider the appropriate specimen
collection and submission throughout the course of the illness, including the
convalescent serology.

o Educate and consult with clinicians on the interpretation of SARS diagnostics.

NYSDOH

e Conduct testing for SARS and other respiratory pathogens on specimens from
patients who meet the reporting criteria.

e ELnsure all positive SARS PCR test results are appropriately confirmed.

e Educate and consult with clinicians on the interpretation of SARS diagnostics.
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Patient

Specimen

Virus Detection History
New York State Department of Health

Wadsworth Center, Empire State Plaza
Virus Reference and Surveillance Laboratory

P.O. Box 509
Albany, New York 12201-0509
Phone (518) 869-4500

*

Fax (518) 869-6487

Please see instructions for shipping address

Date Received

Appendix 4A

NYS Lab Number

Please type or print legibly in black ink

Last Name First Name Mi DOB Sex
/ f 1 Male
MM Db YY |0 Female
Street Address City/State Zip Code County of Residence
1 Original Material 1 Isolate Cell line [} Autopsy () Biopsy
NYS DOH QOutbreak # CDESS Case ID Submitter Lab #
DOH Influenza Sentinel Specimen 0 Yes 0 No SARSsugpect [0 Yes O No [J Calicivirus testing
Source Date Collected Onset Date
{1 Stool 1 NPS 1 Genital [J Urine O CSF
7] Blood O Vesicle [ Other ! / / /
MM bbb oYY MM DD oYY
Requesting Medical Provider Name and Address Lahoratory PFI Comments
Contact person Email
Telephone Fax
Diagnosis Virus Suspected
Diagnosis/Signs/Symptoms (Please check}
O Fever Cardiovascular Miscellaneous
Max. temp. 0 Myocarditis 0 Immunodeficient
Buration 1 Pericarditis O Immunosuppressed

0 Endocarditis 1 Lymphadenapathy
Rash 0 Splenomegaly
1 Maculopapular O Hepatomegaly
1 Hemorrhagic Gastrointestinal 0 Jaundice
I Vesicular O Diarrhea [ Mucous Membrane Lesion
1 Other 0 Nausea/Vomiting M Skin Lesion

0 Other 0 Conjunctivitis
Respiratory 0 Myalgia
1 Cough Central Nervous System 0O Pleurodynia
1 Upper Resp./Rhinitis pharyngitis O Headache 11 Chorioretinitis
1 Pneumaonia, type 0 Stiff neck O Other
0 X-ray 0 Abnormat CSF
0 Bronchitis 0 Microcephatus Exposure/Trave! History
[ Pleurisy 0 Seizures 0 Contact with a known case
1 Other O Paralysis 1 Exposure to animal specify

1 Other 0 Insect bite specify

1 Health care worker
1 Pregnant Trimester N Travel
1 Recent Viral Vaccinations or Infections  specify
date [} Antiviral therapy specify

[ Apnormat laboratory results specify Start date

date
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. // SEVERE AcUTE RESPIRATORY SYNDROME
ATM

FORM

Consent Form (SARS Laboratory Testing Public Health
Response): Coronavirus Antibody Testing

Information regarding SARS laboratory testing may change. For the most current information and up-to-

date version of this document, see www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/diagnosis.htm.

Background

Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome, or SARS, is a respiratory illness caused by a virus. It can start as
fever and cough. It may go on to pneumonia in some people and can be serious. SARS may spread easily
from person to person. The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and state and public health
laboratories are using an experimental laboratory test to help detect people who have been infected with
the SARS virus. This test is one tool in a public health response to the SARS outbreak to try to limit spread
of this illness. The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) has not approved this test. We don’t know for sure
if this test can detect all people who may get sick with SARS. There are no proven tests that quickly find

the virus.

Who Is Being Tested?

We are asking you (or your child) to be tested for the SARS-related virus because you (or your child):
¢ Have symptoms that are like the symptoms of SARS, and/or
o Had traveled 10 days before start of symptoms to an area that had reported SARS cases, and/or
e Have cared for, lived with, or had direct contact with a patient with suspected SARS.

Procedures
To do this test, we need a minimum of % teaspoon of blood from children and 1 to 2 teaspoons of blood

from adults. This blood may be taken using a needle put into a vein in your (or your child’s) arm. This test
may also be done on blood that is left over after other tests for your (your child’s) care are done.

We may also ask for a second blood sample more than 21 days after you (your child) became sick. We
may ask for this second sample in order to test for SARS. This is because this test looks for evidence that
the body is fighting the infection (antibodies), and sometimes it takes time for the body to make
antibodies to fight the virus.

Are There Any Benefits?

There may be no direct benefits to you (or your child) from having this test done. This test may help to
show whether you (your child) have SARS. If people with the SARS virus limit contact with other people,
this can prevent others from getting sick. By having this test done, you could lower the chance of
spreading the virus from you (your child) to your family or others. It could also help us learn more about
this virus to help stop the spread of illness.

Are There Any Risks?
When we take you (your child’s) blood, the needle poke may pinch or sting or cause a bruise.

There is a small chance that this test may give a positive result for the SARS virus when the virus is not
present (false positive). If your (your child’s) result from this test is positive:
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Consent Form (SARS Laboratory Testing Public Health Response): Coronavirus Antibody
Testing
(continued from previous page)

1. You (your child) could be asked to limit contact outside the home by not going to work, school,
out-of-home childcare, church, or other public areas. You may also be asked to use a mask at
home to limit the risk of spread of the virus. If you {your child) have had symptoms of SARS,
you might be asked to follow these limits because of these symptoms and not because of the
test results. However, if your (your child’s) samples tested positive, there is a small chance that
you (your child) may be asked to follow these limits even if you (your child) has no symptoms.

2. Based on the testing results, your (or your child’s) doctor may choose to change how your care
will be managed.

This test may give a negative result when you (or your child) actually have the virus (false negative). A
false negative result should not have an effect on your (or your child’s) care. CDC has told doctors that a
negative test does not prove that a person does or does not have the SARS virus. No changes in your
medical care or how you interact with people around you should be based on a negative result.

Your (or your child’s) doctor will use other information along with this test to decide what is best for you
(your child),

Are There Other Choices?
You may refuse to be tested or to have your child tested. There are several other tests for the SARS virus,
but they are all experimental and we don't know which tests work the best.

What About Privacy?

We will keep all facts about you (your child) as private as the law allows. CDC, FDA the Local/State Health
Department staff, and the person(s) who ordered your test (such as your doctor) may see your/your
child’s results. When we present or publish papers about these tests, neither you (nor your child) will be
identified.

What Are the Costs?
The test will be done by CDC or your health department at no cost. You, your insurer, Medicare or
Medicaid will need to pay for other costs related to the testing, such as doctor’s visits.

What Happens If You (Your Child) Are Harmed?

If you (your child) are harmed as a result of taking the samples, CDC will not pay the costs for hospital
and medical care. You, your insurer, Medicare or Medicaid will need to pay those costs. You (or your child)
do not give up any legal rights that otherwise would be available to you (or your child),

Right to Refuse

This testing is voluntary. It is your choice to have this testing done on you (your child). If you refuse to
have the testing done, then you (or your child) will not lose the right to get health care because of not
having results from these tests. Your doctor will take care of you (your child) in the same way they would
take care of you (your child) if this test were not available.

Whom to Call If You Have Questions

Please call your doctor if you have any questions about this testing, If you have questions about your (or
your child’s) rights as a participant in this testing program or if you feel you have been harmed or injured
by taking part in the program, please call the CDC Associate Director for Science at 1-800-584-8814.
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Consent Form (SARS Laboratory Testing Public Health Response): Coronavirus Antibody
Testing
(continued from previous page)

Leave a message including your (or your child’s) name, phone number and that the protocol # is 3918.
Someone will call you back as soon as possible.

Consent Statement
I agree that this investigational laboratory testing can be done on samples collected from me (my child).

I have read the above and have had my questions answered by

Print Patient’s Name:

Patient’s/Parent’s Signature: Date:
Witness to sighature: Date:
Physician withess to signature: Date:

Consent for Sample Storage

Thank you for agreeing for you (or your child) to be in this program. We are asking for your consent to
store any remainders of your (your child’s) samples used for SARS virus testing at CDC for future SARS-
related research. If the results of any future tests are important for your medical care we will make every
effort to notify your physician.

We will not do human genetic testing or HIV testing unless we contact you and ask for your consent. If
you agree to storage and change your mind later please fax Suzette Bartley at 404-639-0590.

1 Yes, I agree to long-term storage of my (my child’s) samples for future testing

0 No, I do not agree to long-term storage of my (my child’s) samples for future testing

Print Patient’'s Name:

Patient’s/Parent’s Signature: Date:

NOTE: PLEASE RETURN OR FAX A SIGNED COPY OF THIS FORM TO

Suzette Bartley

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
1600 Clifton Rd. Mailstop L0O2

Atlanta, Ga. 30333

FAX: 404-639-0590

For more information, visit www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars or call the CDC public response hotline
at (888) 246-2675 (English), (888) 246-2857 (Espaniol), or (866) 874-2646 (TTY)
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Information regarding SARS laboratory testing may change. For the most
current information, see www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/clinicians.htm

CONSENT FORM (SARS Laboratory Testing Public Health Response)

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and public health laboratories are using an experimental
laboratory test as one tool in a public health response to the “severe acute respiratory syndrome” (SARS) outbreak.
The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) has not approved this test. We don’t know for sure if this test can detect
all people who may get sick with SARS. There are no proven tests that quickly find the virus.

Your State Health Department and/or CDC are using this test as one tool to help us find out if people are infected.
We are using this test to respond to the SARS outbreak and limit spread of this illness.

BACKGROUND

SARS is a respiratory illness that can start as fever and cough. It may go on to pneumonia in some people. SARS
seems to be spread by close person to person contact. SARS may also spread by touching the skin of other people or
objects with infected droplets and then touching your eye(s), nose, or mouth. This can occur when someone who is
sick with SARS coughs or sneezes droplets onto themselves, other people, or nearby surfaces. It also is possible that
SARS can be spread through the air or by other ways that we don’t yet know about.

WHY SHOULD MY (MY CHILD’S) SAMPLE BE TESTED

We are asking you (or your child) to be tested for the SARS-related virus because you (or your child):
Have symptoms that resemble those of SARS, and/or

e  Had traveled 10 days before start of symptoms to an area that had reported SARS cases, and/or
e Have cared for, lived with, or had direct contact with a patient with suspected SARS.

ARE THERE ANY BENEFITS?

There may be no direct benefits to you (or your child) from having this test done. This test may help to find the
virus in people who do not yet have all the signs of SARS. If people with the SARS virus limit contact with other
people, this can prevent others from getting sick. By having this test done, you could lower the chance of spreading
the virus from you (your child) to your family or others. Use of this test could also help us to know more about this
virus to help stop the spread of this illness. Some or all of these may benefit you (your child).

ARE THERE ANY RISKS?
There is a small chance that this test may give a positive result for the SARS virus when the virus is not present
(false positive). If your (your child’s) result from this test is positive:

1. You (your child) could be asked to limit contact outside the home by not going to work, school, out-of-
home childeare, church, or other public areas. You may also be asked to use a mask at home to limit
the risk of spread of the virus. If you (your child) have had symptoms of SARS, you might be asked to
follow these limits because of these symptoms and not because of the test results. However, if your
(your child’s) samples tested positive, there is a small chance that you (your child) may be asked to
follow these limits even if you (your child) have no symptoms.

2. There is no proven treatment for SARS at this time. If you (your child) your child is very ill, in rare

cases, you (your child) may be advised to take an antiviral drug. You can refuse such treatments, but if
you take them, they might cause side effects.

3. Based on the testing results, your (or your child’s) doctor may choose to change how your care will be
managed.

This test may give a negative result when you (or your child) actually have the virus (false negative).
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A false negative resuilt should not have an effect on your (or your child’s) care. CDC has told doctors that a negative
test does not prove that a person does or does not have the SARS virus. No changes in your medical care or how
you interact with people around you should be based on a negative result.

Your (or your child’s} doctor will use other information along with this test to decide what is best for you (your
child).

To do this test, exira samples may be collected that are like samples that are normally taken for
laboratory testing when you are sick. These samples may include nasal swab or aspirate, or throat
swab, The swabs are taken by placing one small Dacron swab into the back of your {or your child’s)
nose and one into the back of your (or your child’s) throat for 5 seconds each. A nasal aspirate may
also be done by placing and then, after a few seconds, removing 1-2 cc (less than % teaspoon) of salt
water into each side of your (or your child’s) nose. These tests don’t hurt, but may cause a little
discomfort. Occasionally they make people gag, cough or get a bloody nose.

ARE THERE OTHER CHOICES?

There are no other rapid laboratory tests approved by FDA that can be used to tell whether you (or your child) have
the virus believed to be causing SARS.

WHAT ABOUT PRIVACY?

We will keep all facts about you (your child) as private as the law allows. CDC, FDA, the Local/State Health
Department staff and the person(s) who ordered your test (such as your Doctor) may see your/your child’s results.
When we present or publish papers about these tests, neither you (nor your child) will be identified.

WHAT ARE THE COSTS?

The test will be done by CDC or your health department at no cost. You, your insurer, Medicare or Medicaid will
need to pay for other costs related to the testing, such as Doctor’s visits.

WHAT HAPPENS IF YOU (YOUR CHILD) ARE HARMED?

If you (your child) are harmed as a result of taking the samples, CDC will not pay the costs for hospital and medical
care. You, your insurer, Medicare or Medicaid will need to pay those costs. You (or your child) do not give up any
legal rights that otherwise would be available to you (or your child).

RIGHT TO REFUSE

This testing is voluntary. It is your choice to have this testing done on you (your child}.

If you refuse to have the testing done, then you (or your child) will not lose the right to get other health care because
of not having results from these fests. Your doctor will take care of you {your child) in the same way they would
take care of you (your child) if this test were not available.

WHO TO CALL IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS

Please call your doctor if you have any questions about this testing. If you have questions about your (or your
child’s) rights as a participant in this testing program, please call the CDC Associate Director for Science at 1-800-
584-8814. Leave a message including your (or your child’s) name, phone number and that the protocol # is 3911,
Someone will call you back as soon as possible.
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CONSENT STATEMENT
I agree that this investigational laboratory testing can be done on samples collected from me (my

child).

I have read the above and have had my questions answered by

Print Patients Name:

Patient’s/Parent’s Signature: Date:
Witness to signature: Date:
Physician witness to signature: Date:

CONSENT FOR SAMPLE STORAGE:

Thank you for agreeing for you (or your child) to be in this program. We are asking for your consent to store any
remainders of your (your child’s) samples used for SARS virus testing at CDC for future SARS-related research.
If the results of any future tests are important for your medical care we will make every effort to notify your

physician.

We will not do human genetic testing or HEV testing unless we contact you and ask for your consent. If you agree
to storage and change your mind later please call Suzette Bartley, Phone: 770 488 7837 (FAX: 404 635 0590}

[l Yes, I agree to long-term storage of my (my child’s) samples for future testing

[ No, I do not agree to long-term storage of my (my child’s) samples for future testing

Print Patient’s Name:

Patient’s/Parent’s Signature: Date:

NOTE: PLEASE RETURN OR FAX A SIGNED COPY OF THIS FORM TO:

Suzette Bartley

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention
1600 Clifton Rd. Mailstop .02

Atlanta, Ga. 30333

FAX: 404 639 0590

Phone: 770 488 7837
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Information regarding SARS laboratory testing may change. For the most
current information, see www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/clinicians.htm

PATIENT INFORMATION (SARS Laboratory Testing)

The Centers for Disease Control and Prevention (CDC) and public health laboratories are using
an experimental laboratory test as one tool in a public health response to the “severe acute
respiratory syndrome” (SARS) outbreak. The Food and Drug Administration (FDA) has not
approved this test. We don’t know for sure if this test can detect all people who may get sick
with SARS. There are no proven tests that quickly find the virus.

Your State Health Department and/or CDC are using this test as one tool to help us find out if
people are infected. We are using this test to respond to the SARS outbreak and limit spread of
this illness.

Because SARS can be a serious illness, your State Health Dept and/or CDC have used this test
on samples from you (your child).

BACKGROUND

SARS is a respiratory illness that can start as fever and cough. It may go on to pneumonia in
some people. SARS seems to be spread by close person to person contact. SARS may also
spread by touching the skin of other people or objects with infected droplets and then touching
your eye(s), nose, or mouth. This can occur when someone who is sick with SARS coughs or
sneezes droplets onto themselves, other people, or nearby surfaces. It also is possible that SARS
can be spread through the air or by other ways that we don’t yet know about.

WHY WAS I (MY CHILD) TESTED?
You (your child) were tested for the SARS-related virus because you (your child):
e IHad symptoms that resemble those of SARS, and/or
e Had traveled 10 days before start of symptoms to an area that had reported SARS cases,
and/or
e Had cared for, lived with, or had direct contact with a patient with suspected SARS.

The samples used to do this laboratory test may have come from extra nasal swab or aspirate, or
throat swab samples, taken from you (or your child) to do this test. These samples may have
been taken as part of your routine care to find out what illness you (or your child) have.

WHAT ABOUT PRIVACY?

We will keep all facts about you (your child) as private as the law allows. CDC, FDA, the
Local/State Health Department staff and the person(s) who ordered your test (such as your
Doctor) may see your/your child’s results. When we present or publish papers about these tests,
neither you (nor your child) will be identified.

WHAT ARE THE COSTS?

The test was done by CDC or your health department at no cost. You, your insurer, Medicare or
Medicaid will need to pay for other costs related to the testing, such as Doctor’s visits.
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WHAT HAPPENS IF YOU (YOUR CHILD) ARE HARMED?

e If you (your child) were harmed as a result of taking the samples, CDC will not pay the
costs for hospital and medical care. You, your insurer, Medicare or Medicaid will need to
pay those costs. You (or your child) do not give up any legal rights that otherwise would
be available to you (or your child).

ARE THERE ANY RISKS?
There is a small chance that this test may give a positive result for the SARS virus when the
virus is not present (false positive). If your (your child’s) result from this test is positive:

1. You (your child) could be asked to limit contact outside the home by not going to work,
school, out-of-home childcare, church, or other public areas. You may also be asked to
use a mask at home to limit the risk of spread of the virus. If you (your child) have had
symptoms of SARS, you might be asked to follow these limits because of these
symptoms and not because of the test results. However, if your (your child’s) samples
tested positive, there is a small chance that you (your child) may be asked to follow these
limits even if you (your child) have no symptoms.

2. There is no proven treatment for SARS at this time. If you (your child) your child is very
ill, in rare cases, you (your child) may be advised to take an antiviral drug. You can
refuse such treatments, but if you take them, they might cause side effects.

3. Based on the testing results, your {or your child’s) doctor may choose to change how
your care will be managed.

This test may give a negative result when you {or your child) actually have the virus (false
negative).

A false negative result should not have an effect on your (or your child’s) care. CDC has told
doctors that a negative test does not prove that a person does or does not have the SARS virus.
No changes in your medical care or how you interact with people around you should be based on
a negative result. Your (or your child’s) doctor will use this other information along with this
test to decide what is best for you (your child).

Your (or your child’s) doctor will use other information along with this test to decide what is
best for you (your child). You and your doctor should discuss the result of this test and decisions
about your (your child’s} care.

WHO TO CALL IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS:

Please call your doctor if you have any questions about this testing. If you have questions about
your (or your child’s) rights as a participant in this testing program, please call the CDC
Associate Director for Science at 1-800-584-8814. Leave a message including your (or your
child’s) name, phone number and that the protocol # is 3911. Someone will call you back as
soon as possible.
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CONSENT FOR SAMPLE STORAGI:

We are asking for your consent to store any remainders of your (your child’s) samples used for
SARS virus testing at CDC for future SARS-related research. If the results of any future tests
are important for your medical care we will make every effort to notify your physician.

We will not do human genetic testing or HIV testing unless we contact you and ask for your consent. If you agree
to storage and change your mind later please call Suzette Bartley, Phone: 770 488 7837 (FAX: 404 639 0550)

[] Yes,1agree to long-term storage of my (my child’s) samples for future testing

[] No, I do not agree to long-term storage of my (my child’s) samples for fiture testing

SIGNATURE
I have been provided with the above information about my (my child’s) test results.

I have stated whether or not I agree to long term specimen storage.
I have read the above and have had my questions answered by

Print Patient’s Name:

Patient’s/Parent’s Signature; Date:

Physician’s witness to signature: Date:

NOTE: PLEASE RETURN OR FAX A SIGNED COPY OF THIS FORM TO:
Suzette Bartley

Centers for Disease Control and Prevention

1600 Clifton Rd. Mailstop L0O2

Atlanta, Ga. 30333

FAX: 404 639 0590

Phone: 770 488 7837
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Appendix 4E.

Recommended Specimens For SARS Co-V Testing

Specimen Source Qutpatient/Inpatient Fatal Case
I. Nasopharyngeal 1. Nasopharyngeal
wash/aspirate wash/aspirate
2. Nasopharyngeal
Upper Respiratory 2. Nasopharyngeal AND
AND Oropharyngeal
Oropharyngeal swabs
swabs
1. Sputum 1. Broncheoalveolar
lavage (BAL),
2. Broncheoalveolar tracheal aspirate or
Lower Respiratory lavage (BAL), pleural tap

tracheal aspirate or
pleural tap (Inpatient

only)

i 1. Serum — Acute
| AND convalescent
} Blood (> 28 days post
i onset) —

2. Blood/plasma

Stool 1. Stool

1. Fixed tissue from all
major organs (e.g.,
lung, heart, spleen,
liver, brain, kidney,

Tissue N/A adrenals)

2. Frozen tissue from
lung and upper
airway (e.g., trachea,
bronchus)
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5. Communication

Goals
New York State’s goals in promoting effective communication about SARS are similar to

those articulated in the CDC plan.

Key concepts
New York State’s SARS communication plan echoes the key concepts described in

CDC’s plan.

Priority activities
In addition to the CDC-delineated priority activities, New York State Department of
Health will:
e Build upon successful strategies for communicating emerging disease issues such
as West Nile virus and anthrax.
e Maximize relationships with existing “key communication partners” and identify
new partners to broaden communication channels.
s Ensure that key messages are delivered to special audiences, as well as the
general public.

The CDC plan calls for the provision of a location where state, local, federal and
emergency response personnel can work cooperatively to develop communication
strategies. Should it become necessary, we would ask the NYS Emergency Management
Office to establish a Joint News Center operation.

The following sections provide comments and New York State-specific details to
supplement the CDC plan:

A. Rationale and Goals:

New York State’s rational and goals are similar to those described in the CDC plan. Our
primary goal will be to instill and maintain public confidence in the State and local public
health response and the state’s health care system.

B. Lessons Learned:
New York State’s plan agrees with the precepts discussed in CDC’s plan, with the
following caveat: While speculation is generally not a prudent communication strategy,
health officials may wish to speculate under certain conditions:
s When failure to do so will result in false reassurance.
¢ To enhance accurate risk assessment when public perception/expectation of what
could happen is far worse than the actual “worst case scenario.”

C. Key Messages:

New York State’s key messages in advance of evidence of SARS are similar to those in
the CDC plan. However, some minor changes in wording should be noted:
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e We have learned a great deal about SARS that is helping us prepare for the
possibility that it will return.

s Obtaining a history of exposure to a patient with SARS or to a setting in which
SARS transmission is occurring is key in assessing the likelihood of SARS in
persons presenting with respiratory illness.

» Most exposures to SARS occur in healthcare facilities and households.
Community transmission outside of these settings have been reported, but these
occurred rarely, under special circumstances, and with few exceptions, after close
contact with ill persons. Persons at risk in healthcare facilities include healthcare
workers, patients, and visitors. In households, the greatest risk is to family
members of SARS patients.

s Inmost instances, SARS outbreaks were localized to specific communities and
often to specific locations or facilities in a community. For example, in Canada,
most SARS cases occurred in Toronto, and in Toronto, most cases were acquired
in hospitals.

» SARS can be controlled by rapid, appropriate public health action that includes
surveillance, identification and isolations of SARS cases, infection control,
intense contract tracing, and, in some circumstances, quarantine of persons who
may have been exposed to SARS. These measures can be a temporary hardship to
those involved but are essential for containing SARS outbreaks.

o New York State is preparing for the possible reappearance of SARS by: 1)
educating healthcare workers about SARS diagnosis and reporting, 2) developing
SARS surveillance systems to determine if and where SARS has re-emerged, 3)
developing guidelines for preventing transmission in different settings, and 4)
improving laboratory tests for SARS

e At this time, there is no evidence of ongoing transmission of SARS anywhere in
the world. In the absence of SARS tfransmission, there is no need for concern
about travel or other activities.

D. Preparing for a Communications Response:

CDC’s communication plan articulates Objectives and Activities under this section that
are in line with New York State’s plan. It should be noted, however, that the guidance
regarding requesting and utilizing federal assistance for the provision of public

mformation is revised as follows:

s At the direction of the Governor’s office, be prepared to make use of available
federal assistance.

E. Communications Activities in the Presence of SARS:

Objective 1: Coordinate local/state and national communication efforts related to SARS.

While New York State will make every effort to work closely with CDC’s Office of
Communication, our health information dissemination will be conducted under the
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direction of the New York State Health Commissioner. The decision to participate in a
Joint Information Center/Joint News Center will be made in consultation with the
Governor’s office.

F. Comments on Appendices in Supplement G of the CDC plan:
Appendix G1-—Joint Information Center:

While New York’s State’s plan does not rule out the possibility of establishing a Joint
Information Center/Joint News Center, the following statement will introduce the
JIC/INC discussion contained in Appendix G1:

The decision to establish a Joint Information Center/Joint News Center will be made in
consuliation with the Governor’s office. A JIC will be coordinated by the New York State
Emergency Management Office with the participation of NYSDOH and other state and
local agencies, as appropriate. The purpose of a JNC will be to facilitate a one-voice
response; serve as the clearinghouse for accurate, timely information; and enhance the
dissemination of health information essential to an effective SARS response.

Appendix G2—Media relations:

The following introductory statement is added to the media relations annex in the CDC
plan:

New York State’s plan generally agrees with the Media Relations strategies described in
the CDC plan. However, the decision to establish a Joint Information Center will be
made in consultation with the Governor’s office. If a JIC is activated, regular briefings
should take place. The precise briefing schedule will be determined as appropriate;
however, ideally, JIC briefings should occur at least once a day.

Appendix G-3-—Community relations/outreach

New York State’s plan is similar to that in the CDC plan. New York State’s
community outreach strategies are as follows:

Outreach to persons who may have special needs or issues that distinguish them from the
general public during an outbreak of SARS will be especially important. First responders
and their families, health care providers and medical/hospital support personnel, and
transportation officials will all have special needs for information — either to be able to
perform their jobs or to ensure that their own concerns about exposure and protection are
being addressed.

Local communications staff will need to establish a daily routine for coordinating and
communicating with partner organizations regarding community education and outreach
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activities and needs, with briefings arranged as needed. Cooperation and understanding
among all the involved agencies will greatly enhance the success of the community
outreach/community relations operation. It will be important to work closely with local
health departments’ education and community outreach staff members, who can offer
valuable insights into issues that are relevant to the community.

Communication staff should make sure of the resources of the ECS and JIC to facilitate
coordination and management of community relations activities.

¢ Develop and maintain a contact list of key community partners, and provide key
messages regularly. Include members of health care organizations and
transportation officials involved in the response.

¢ [Establish a public response line to respond to the questions and concerns of state
and local healthcare providers, pharmacists, transportation personnel, persons
under isolations or quarantine, and other special populations as appropriate.
Work with partners to implement a resources and referral list for phone line staff.

¢  Work with local partners and response personnel to coordinate communication
and health education activities by identifying needs and reporting on activities
that have been planned and executed. Activities may include: a) information
campaigns for affected groups, b) education campaigns and activities for
healthcare providers, including first responders; ¢) education and communication
with state and community personnel involved in meeting community needs or
community actions designed to prevent the spread of the disease, and d) activities
to ensure that persons under isolation or quarantine have access to needed
supplies or services.

o Tailor communication and education services and messages to affected
communities.

e In coordination with epidemiologic and medical personnel, obtain and track
information daily on the numbers and location of new cases, new quarantined
persons, and hospitals with SARS cases. Use these reports to determine priorities
among community outreach and education efforts.

e Provide feedback to and coordinate with the JIC for distribution of information
and identification of information needs.
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Appendix 5A

PUBLIC HEALTH GUIDANCE FOR COMMUNITY-LEVEL PREPAREDNESS AND
RESPONSE TO SEVERE ACUTE RESPIRATORY SYNDROME (SARS)

SUPPLEMENT G: COMMUNICATION

Goals

» Instill and maintain public confidence in the nation’s public heaith system and its ability to
respond to and manage the reappearance of SARS,

+  Contribute to the maintenance of order, minimization of public panic and fear, and facilitation
of public protection through the provision of accurate, rapid, and complete information
hefore, during, and after a SARS outbreak.

+  Provide accurate, consistent, and comprehensive information about SARS,

»  Address rumors, inaccuracies, and misperceptions as quickly as possible, and prevent
stigmatization of affected groups.

Key concepts

+  Timely dissemination of accurate and science-based information on what is krnown and not
known ahout SARS and the progress of the response effort builds public trust and
confidence,

+  Coordination of messages and release of information among federal, state, and local health
officials and affected institutions are critical to aveiding contradictions and confusion that
can undermine public trust and impede containment measures.

+  Information should be technically correct and sufficiently complete to support policies and
actions without being patronizing.

«  Guidance to community members on actions needed to protect themselves and their family
members and colleagues is essential for crisis management.

«  Information presented during an outhreak should be iimited to specific data and results;
messages should omit speculation, over-interpretation of data, overly confident
assessments of investigations and controf measures, and comments related to other
jurisdictions.

+  Rumors, misinformation, misperceptions, and stigmatization of specific groups must be
addressed promptly and definitively.

+  Education and training of healthcare workers and public health staff on appropriate
strategles to recognize SARS and implement control measures is key to containing a SARS
outbreak,

Priority activities

+  Identify key messages about SARS for spedific audiences and the most effective methods
to deliver these messages.

«  Issue local public health announcements and updated information on the outbreak and
response.

«  Provide a location for state, local, and federal communication and emergency response
personnel to meet and work side-by-side in developing key messages and handling media
inquiries.

+  Respond to frequently occurring media questions by preparing fact sheets, talking points
(key messages), and question-and-answer documents.

«  Coordinate requests for spokespersons and subject matter experts.
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I. Rationale and Goals

During the 2003 SARS response, health communications figured prominently among the
tools used to contain the outbreak. The response to outbreaks and the threat of
outbreaks necessitated extensive communications activities. Experience showed
that, although a media/communications plan cannot alleviate the threat of SARS or solve
associated public health problems, good communication can guide the public, the media,
and healthcare providers in responding appropriately and complying with exposure-
control measures as required.

This document describes the communication plans and activities that are suggested to
prepare for a possible recurrence of SARS and activities that would be needed to
respond to a SARS outbreak. This ptan identifies information necessary for major
planning, preparedness, and communication response activities of state and local health
departments and provides guidance for coordinating efforts with CDC and other
entlties. The goals of this Supplement are to provide local and state
communications speclalists with suggestions and guidance to:

» Instill and maintain public confidence in the nation’s public health system and its
ability to respond to and manage a SARS outbreak

+  Contribute to the maintenance of order, minimization of public panic and fear, and
facilitation of public protection through the provision of accurate, rapid, and
complete information

*  Provide accurate, consistent, and comprehensive information about SARS

«  Address rumors, inaccuracies, and misperceptions as quickly as possible, and
prevent stigmatization of affected groups

1I. Lessons learned

After the SARS response of 2003, federal, state, and local public health colleagues
conducted internal debriefings to prepare for a future SARS occurrence. At CDC,
communications officers, in consultation with state and local partners, identified the
following as “lessons learned” for the next SARS response:

+  Timely dissemination of accurate and science-based information on what is known
and not known about SARS and the progress of the rasponse effort builds public
trust and confidence.

»  Coordination of messages and release of information among federal, state, and
local health officials and affected institutions are critical to avoiding contradictions
and confusion that can undermine public trust and impede containment
measures.

» Information should be technically correct and sufficiently complete to support
policies and actions without being patronizing.

»  Guidance to community members on actions needed to protect themselves and
their family members and colleagues is essential for crisis management.

+ Information presented during an outbreak shoutld be limited to specific data and
results; messages should omit speculation, over-interpretation of data, overly
confident assessments of investigations and control measures, and comments
related to other jurisdictions.

*  Rumors, misinformation, misperceptions, and stigmatization of affected groups
must be addressed promptly and definitively.
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«  BEducation and training of healthcare workers and public health staff on
appropriate strategies to recognize SARS and implement control measures is key
to containing a SARS outbreak.

1I1. Key Messaqges

Lessons learned from the Spring 2003 experience will help local, state, and national
communications speclalists refine their communications planning to facilitate appropriate
and decisive actions in response to a re-emergence. The foundation for effective
communication is a set of key messages that can be used consistently to highlight and
reinforce the lessons learned and generate an appropriate response to SARS that
minimizes risk while ensuring a strong and rapid response. These messages should
be developed with the input of all decisicn-makers in the SARS response, and all
communication messages should emanate from these central points. The following are
examples for consideration:

+  We have learned a great deal about SARS that is helping us prepare for the
possibility that it will return.

+ A SARS diagnosls is guided by a history of exposure to SARS or to a setting in
which transmission is occurring.

+  Most exposures to SARS cccur in healthcare facilities and households.
Community exposures outside of these settings have been reported, but these
occurred rarely, under special circumstances, and, with few exceptions, after
close contact with ill persons. Persons at risk in healthcare facilities include
healthcare workers, patients, and visitors. In households, the greatest risk is
to family members of SARS patients.

+ In most instances, SARS outbreaks were localized to specific communities and
often to specific locations or facilities in a community. For example, in
Canada, most SARS cases occurred in Toronto, and in Toronto, most cases
occurred in hospitals.

+  SARS can be controfled by rapid, appropriate public health action that Includes
surveillance, identification and isolation of SARS cases, infection control, intense
contact tracing, and quarantine of persons who may have been exposed to
SARS. These measures can be a temporary inconvenience to those involved
but are essentlal for containing SARS outbreaks,

+  The United States is preparing for a possible reappearance of SARS by: 1)
educating healthcare workers about SARS diagnosis, 2) developing SARS
surveillance systems to determine if and where SARS has re-emerged, 3)
developing guidelines for preventing transmission in different settings, 4)
improving laboratory tests for SARS, and 5) developing better guidance for
treating SARS patients.

+ At this time, there is no evidence of ongoing transmission of SARS anywhere in

1 the world. In the absence of SARS fransmission, there is no need for

i concern about travel or other actlvities, Up-to-date information on SARS is

| available on CDC's SARS webslte (www.cdc.gov/ncidod/SARS).

\

IV. Preparing for a Communications Response

In the absence of SARS, states and localities need to prepare and disseminate messages
to encourage vigilance for the possible reappearance of SARS-CoV and to specify
activities to prevent its spread. Communications personnel need to assess
communication needs and capacity, develop criteria and procedures for requesting
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CDC communications assistance, and develop mechanisms for coordinating the activities
of on-site CDC communications experts with local/state communication resources. If
SARS-CoV transmission is confirmed, the community will [ook to state and local
health departments as an information rescurce. Public information officers and
communications specialists should be prepared for the surge of requests and inquiries
generated by reports of SARS activity. The following suggestions should be
considered for optimal preparedness.

Objective 1: Assess the readiness of the jurisdiction to meet communication
needs during a SARS outbreak.

Activities

Assess the information needs of healthcare providers. Most healthcare

providers lack experlence with SARS and will need information on how to

diagnose, report, and manage possible cases. Communications

specialists should have an understanding of healthcare provider’s knowiedge

about surveillance and reporting, diagnostics, transmission, exposure

management, and issues such as concern for self-protection and possible use

of guarantine and isclation.

Assess the information needs of the general public. Public perceptions

about SARS may reflect misunderstandings and inaccuracies that can

exacerbate fears and may impede containment efforts. Assessment of

public knowledge and beliefs should guide the preparation of risk

commurnication messages and strategies. Information strategies may

include surveys, focus groups, and consultation with professional and civic

groups.

Consider logistical considerations that can influence the effectiveness of

health communications. Consideration may include:

o Adequacy of printing/graphic design contracts and resources to meet
emergency needs

o  Availability of tools (cell phones, email equipment, laptops) needed by
communications staff at the time of deployment. A “"Go-Kit” to
enable staff to set up operations wherever necessary s optimal.

0 Capacity of hotlines and web servers to accommodate increased usage

o Availability of emergency personnel to staff hotlines and communication
centers for extended hours and days

o Adequacy of training in risk communication, media relations, and SARS
epldemiology, dinical features, diagnostics, and surveillance.

Objective 2: In the absence of known SARS activity worldwide, make
preparations for a rapid and appropriate communications response to a global
recurrence or introduction into the United States.

Activities

Prepare to manage media demands. The first jurisdiction(s) with

possible or confirmed cases of SARS can expect a deluge of media
attention. Local communications personnel will need to defermine capacity
and develop procedures for addressing demands. This may include
requesting CDC communications assistance and coordinating the activities of
on-site CDC comumunications experts with local/state communication
resources.
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« Increase the range and type of educational materials that will be available during
an outbreak. As possible, coordinate efforts with other agencies and
organizations to avoid duplication.

o Develop a portfolio of communication, information, and education sources
and materials on topics including: clinical and laboratory diagnostics,
infection control, isolation and quarantine, stigmatization management,
travel control authority, legal issues, and agencies’ roles and
responsibilities.

o Develop and present formal educational curricula and materials In multiple
formats for professional audiences.

o Coordinate with partner agencies to prepare and establish appropriate
public, healthcare provider, policy maker, and media responses to a case or
outbreak of SARS, including an understanding of how the public health
system will respond, roles and responsibilities of the different sectors
invalved, and reasonable expectations regarding the scope and effect of
public health actions.

o Fstablish protocols to communicate the data that will need to be reported
daily after confirmation of SARS activity (e.g., morbidity and mortality
figures; geographic location of cases; number of persons affected; number
of persons hospitalized). As appropriate, coordinate with the CDC
Director's Emergency Operations Center (DEOC) and CDC’s Emergency
Communications System (see below).

«  Establish a mechanism in advance for reviewing and clearing SARS-related
messages and materials.

« Identify a spokesperson and subject matter experts who will be avaitable during
an outbreak. The spokesperson will require training in media relations and
risk communication.

« Develop websites to help manage information requests. Materials may be
developed in advance and stored on a server. Health departments may
choose to use or adapt materials posted on CDC’s SARS website
(http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars).

« Consider establishing a toli-free public information hotline. Although a CDC
information hotline will be available during an outbreak, state and local health
departments may also wish to provide this service for local residents. Hotline
staff should be trained in advance and will need access to an evolving
database of frequently asked questions.

+ In coordination with other emergency response personnel, identify an algorithm
or specific events that will activate emergency operations activities.

+ Be prepared to make use of available federal assistance. If requested, CDC
communication experts can be dispatched immediately to a community that has
a confirmed case of SARS. These persons can help coordinate communication
and media relations’ activities in the field and assist in the coordination of
communication with public and private healthcare providers and other agencies
responsible for the outbreak response.

Objective 3: Increase knowledge and awareness of SARS, and enhance understanding
of preparations for its reappearance and the appropriate response to a global recurrence
or introduction into the United States.

SUPPLEMENT G: COMMUNICATION Page 5 of 16

Section 5-Communication




Appendix 5A

Activities

Initiate the preparation and some dissemination of messages and materials to
increase the knowledge of the public, healthcare professionals, policymakers,
media, and others about SARS, travelers’ advisories and alerts, infection control
measures, patient management strategies, community containment measures
including guarantine, and laboratory diagnostics. Public understanding of
rmeasures such as Isolation and quarantine will facilitate acceptance of these
approaches if needed.

Use of a variety of approaches (e.q., increasing information available
through websites and the media; collaboration with professional and civic
organizations) to increase the level of knowledge about SARS. Target
information to healthcare providers, public health officials, policy makers, media,
and other local partners.

Be prepared to Immediately address questions related to the initial case(s) and to
provide guidance to the public regarding disease susceptibility, diagnosis, and
management. Case counts will need to be continually placed in context.

Be prepared to address more complex questions. As is the case with most
newly emerging microbial agents, most healthcare providers have never seen a
case of SARS and will be relying on state/local health departments to provide
needed information rapidly.

Ensure the availability of communications products in multiple languages, based
on the demographics of the jurisdiction. Key to this requirement is the prior
establishment of CDC's capacity to translate materials into relevant languages.

V. Communications Activities in the Presence of SARS

SUPPLEMENT G: COMMUNECATION

Objective 1: Coordinate local/state and national communications efforts
related to SARS.

Activities

+  Make every effort to work in dose consuttation with CDC communications
colleagues to ensure a consistent and accurate communications response,

+ Inthe event of a widespread SARS outbreak in the United States, it may be
necassary to establish a Joint Information Center (JIC) in field locations where
outbreak(s) are occurring. Most state and local jurisdictions currently
have ptans in place to facilitate such an installation if necessary. The JIC wiil
become operational at the beginning of an HHS-wide federal response to the
outbreak and will consist of representatives from all local, state, and federal
agencies involved in the outbreak response. States and localities will
coordinate all communication activities through the JIC or through an
emergency communications center if the JIC has not been activated. The
CDC Director’'s Emergency Operations Center {DEOC} will coordinate
CDbC's interface with the JIC. Additional information on the 1IC is
provided in Appendix G1,

« Interact, as appropriate, with CDC’s Emergency Communication System
{ECS). Once SARS activity is confirmed, CDC will activate the ECS to
serve as a resource to state and local communications personnel and
coordinate the federal public health communication response. ECS will
direct all CDC SARS-related communication activities, including
communication strategy development, key message development, CDC
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website management, materials development and dissemination, national media
relations, media monitoring, and all other national communication components,
Some ECS staff will be designated to focus on national level issues, whereas
others will coordinate field personnel. The ECS will fully support JIC activities,
Interact, as appropriate, with federal communication liaisons. To better
understand and to encourage a reciprocal relationship between state and local
communication officials, It is important to understand the roles of the federal
communication Haisons In relation to the communications portion of the SARS
response plan. Additional information can be found in Appendix G2.

Harmonize messages used at the national and local levels (see Key Messages above).

Objective 2: Keep communications staff informed and ready with accurate, up-to-
date information that is relevant to the situation in the jurisdiction.

Activities

Develop a “library” of SARS-related material for reference. Locat and state
health departments should develop a listing of SARS resources and references that
can be readily available to communications and public information officers. Although
information on SARS is available from muitiple sources, CDC's website offers the
most up-to-date official information. Locat and state health departments should
visit the CDC website at http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/ for updated guidance,
protocols, press releases, travel advisories, and educational materials in other
languages,

Equip all communications staff with a resource booklet identifying websites relating
to SARS. Have the information technology department bookmark these links on
staff members’ workstations.

Maintain a library of relevant articles and publications in hard copy for use during field
operations.

Know the community. Ensure that communication materials address the
language needs and cultural aspects of the affected community.

Know your hotlines. Hotlines can provide ongeing guidance on new messages
and materials that need to be developed to respond to publicinguiries and concerns.
Coordinate and maintain communication with local partners, such as:

o Public affairs directors and Information officers from local and state health
departments

City and state government public affairs offices

Local congressional delegation and offices

Local police and fire departments and emergency management officials

Regional HHS health officers and regional Office of Emergency

Preparedness

Local hospital public relations/affairs departments

State and local Emergency Operations Center coordinators

Federal Emergency Operations Centers

cC o 0000 0 0

Objective 3: Communicate key messages, and provide up-to-date
information on global and domestic SARS activity.
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Activities
+  Participate in and make available federal agency telebriefings and satellite
broadcasts on SARS.

Provide web-accessible materials on SARS.

Be aware of local resources. The local chapters of the American Lung
Association and other organizations are helpful in disseminating

educational messages to the community.

Use websites as a central component in managing inforrnation requests from the
public. Strategically designed websites can be used to organize and quickly
provide information, updates, fact sheets, responses to frequently asked guestions,
healthcare provider resources, and media materials to a range of audiences,
Provide information for travelers. SARS activity anywhere in the world will
prompt immediate attention to travelers’ movements to and from affected areas and

will likely result in travelers’ alert messages and surveillance at relevant ports of
entry.
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Appendix G1
Fact Sheet: Joint Information Center

What to does it mean to a communications specialist when a JIC is operational?

Once a Joint Information Center (JIC) is operational, all media contacts and
information should be handled through this center to ensure the distribution of
consistent and accurate information. The JIC will:
«  Issue tocal public health announcements and updated information on the
outbreak and the response
»  Disseminate information about SARS, its management, and the possible
need for travel restrictions and isolation and quarantine
=  Establish a “news desk operation” to coordinate and manage media
refations activities
+  Provide a location for state, local, and federal communication and emergency
response personnel to meet and work side-by-side in developing key
messages, handling media inquiries, writing media adviscries and briefing
documents
«  Respond to frequently occurring questions by developing fact sheets,
talking points {key messages), and guestion-and-answer documents
+  Coordinate requests for spokespersons and subject matter experts
* Issue media credentials
»  Address other local/regional information requests related to the outbreak that
require distribution to the media and the general public
« Develop, coordinate, and manage local websites, as required

What activities should be carried out once a decision to activate a JIC has been
made?

«  Once widespread SARS has been verified, activate full-scale communication
activities according to the state or local risk communications pian. This may
include deployment of field team{s) and assessment of staffing needs for
extended hours/days at the command center. Desighated staff will
immediately report to the communications command center.,

| +  Ensure that the communications command center has sufficient telephone lines

to permit immediate access by field deployment teams.,

= Activate or enhance a toll-free hotline, if available, and add sufficient
personnel to answer incoming calls. Provide telephone response staff

; with resources (e.q., state or CDC website address), and direct them to

| provide feedback on needs for development, enhancement, or revision of

current materials to meet emerging information demand. To reduce the

burden on local resources, callers may be directed to the CDC Information

‘ hotline if necessary. Also consider implementing a dedicated line for

‘ healthcare providers.

\

;

*  Create and disseminate a media advisory that provides information on the
situation, major actions taken, information about SARS, public guidance, and
local resources. It will be imperative to issue information updates
immediately and, as possible, to correct errors and misperceptions,
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+ If developed, activate the local emergency SARS website, provide links to other state
government web servers, and disseminate this information widely through the
media. If a website has not been developed, a link can be made available to
CDC's SARS website (http://www.cdc.gov/ncidod/sars/). All media and public
materials should be posted to the website, and all SARS-related information should
provide a website address. The website should be used heavily for medla
updates.

* Provide local and external partners {e.g., medical professional associations,
community leaders, community groups) with information/materials that will enable
them to respond to public or heailthcare provider inquiries, as necessary. Arrange
to hold periodic briefings with these partners.
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Appendix G2
Media Relations

One person cannot handle all aspects of media relations in the event of a widespread
SARS outbreak. A JIC is the best way to coordinate and manage media relations
activities. Public information officers from a range of federal, state, and local
agencies will need to work side-by-side handiing media inquires, writing releases, and
providing information on their agencies and other duties as appropriate. If a JIC is
not activated, the various participants of a JIC and the ECS should establish a daily briefing
among participants for coordination and communication on media briefings and media
materials.

The role of the state and local health department should be made clear in all contacts with
the media and in other public communications (e.qg., press briefings, interviews,
teleconferences). Cooperation and understanding among all the involved agencies
will greatly enhance the success of the media operaticn. It will be important that
federal heaith personnel (CDC), local and state health departments, and transportation
agencies work together closely. Together, these groups will create and manage the
flow of information to the media. It will also be important to work closely with
mayoral, governor, and congressional media and communlication staff. Key messages
should be used consistently to convey the priorities of state and local health departments
and their actions. Public infermation officers at state and local health departments can
offer valuable insights into important issues in the state and local community, as well as
guidance in dealing with local media. In addition, they can provide information about
media contacts, outlets, directories, and telephone and fax numbers to facllitate
distribution of information to the media. State and local personnel may be able to
locate facilities and infrastructure for briefings, Media offices at local hospital should
not be overlooked; they generally have good relationships with the media, as does the
local fire department public information officer. In most communities, fire departments
deal on a daily basis with the local media and can be valuable resources.

Public health spokespersons should answer questions concerning SARS and the actions
being taken to contrel and respond to the outbreak. Personnel dealing with the
media should be trained on the type of questions they should answer and those that
should be directed elsewhere. They should also be trained in strategies for
emphasizing key message in all responses. Adhering to key messages will allow
communication to be consistent over time. Key messages must be science-based,
reflect current knowledge, and based on good public health practice.

Communication personnel should identify and create new messages and materlals that
address emerging guestions and concerns of the media, public, healthcare providers,
policy makers, and others. As appropriate and feasible, field team communication
staff should taitor SARS education and communication materials to community needs,
with a special emphasis on subgroups who are most directly affected by SARS and who
may be subject to stigmatization.

The ECS or Joint Information Center should implement daily routines for informing, and
responding to inquiries from the media, healthcare providers, and the public:

+  Establish daily or twice-daily press briefings. Once routine briefings are
established, they will be invaluable in terms of relaying rapidly changing
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messages. As necessary and possible, without compromising the worik
commitments of subject matter experts, daily activities can be extended,

» ‘In-person’ press briefings are best for major public heaith anncuncements.

» Ideally, the same experts will conduct the media briefings to ensure continuity of
messages. Experts should be reassuring about the ability of the public health
authorities to respond to a crisis but should not minimize the severity of the situation in
a way that could invalidate public concern.

+ Limit media briefings to 30 to 45 minutes.

«  The state or local public information officer or CDC field communication media lialson
should moderate, begin, and end the briefing. The moderator should: 1) set
ground rules, 2) announce times of future briefings, 3) make administrative
announcements, and 3) briefly introduce each panel member

+  Each panel member should speak for 3 to 5 minutes on issues refated to his/her area of
expertise. Questions should be heid until alf panel members have spoken. Questions
should be directed to the moderator, who will either answer the question or refer it to
the appropriate panel member.

+ Al spokespersons should leave at the end of the briefing and avoid participating in
individual media interviews.

+  The state or local public Information officer (or fead communication staff person) and
the CDC field liaison should be notified immediately of any potential issues (e.qg.
inaccurate information, reports of rumors in the community, unanswered questions)
that were identifled during the briefing and need to be addressed.
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Appendix G3
Community Relations/Outreach

QOutreach to persons who may have special needs or issues that distinguish them
from the general public during an outbreak of SARS will be especially important. First
responders and their families, healthcare providers and medical/hospital support
persornel, and transportation officials will all have special needs for information -
either to be able to perform thelr jobs or to ensure that their own concerns about
exposure and protection are being addressed.

Local communications staff will needs to establish a daily routine for coordinating and
communicating with partner organizations regarding community education and outreach
activities and needs, with briefings arranged as needed. Cooperation and
understanding amaong all the involved agencies will greatly enhance the success of the
community outreach/community relations operation. It will be important to work
closely with local health departments’ education and community outreach staff members,
who can offer valuable insights into issues that are relevant to the community.

Communication staff should make use of the resources of the ECS and JIC to facllitate
coordination and management of community relations activities. Community outreach
staff, health education, and public heaith information officers from a wide range of federal,
state, and focal agencies will need to work side-by-side to appropriately handle
community information needs. Suggested community relations activities include the
following:

* Develop and maintain a contact list of key community partners, and establish regutar
briefings, ideally on a daily basis. Inciude members of healthcare organizations
and transportation officials involved in the response.

+  Work with healthcare providers and other affected workers {e.g., transportation
personnel) to identify and address relevant issues. Staff members are much
more likely to feel confident in carrying out their duties if they feel that their risks, and
the risks to their families, are being addressed and minimized.

+  Establish a community telephone line to respond to the questions and concerns of state
and local healthcare providers, pharmacists, fransportation personnel, persons under
isolation or quarantine, and other speclal populaticns as appropriate. Work with
partners to implement a resource and referral list for phone line staff.

+  Work with local partners and response personnel to coordinate communication and
health education activities by identifying needs and reporting on activities that have
been planned and executed. Activities may include; a) information campaigns for
affected groups, b) education campaigns and activities for healthcare providers,
including first responders; c) education and communication with state and community
personnel involved in meeting community needs or community actions designed to
prevent the spread of the disease, and d) activities to ensure that persons under
isolation or quarantine have access to needed supplies or services,

+  Tailor communication and education services and messages fo affected communities.
This may include meeting with community partners to identify specific community
resources that can be utilized and secured.

« Develop a list of healthcare facilities in the community that can be used for
information dissemination and health education activities. Coordinate with CDC
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staff in initiating contact with healthcare providers. Cross-train key partners to
assist in education and outreach efforts.

In coordination with epidemiologic and medical personnel, obtain and traci
information daily on the numbers and location of new cases, new quarantined

persons, and hospitals with SARS cases. Use these reports to determine
priorities among community outreach and education efforts

Provide feadback to and coordinate with the JIC for distribution of information and
identification of information needs.
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CDC Field communications liaisons

The CDC response to a major SARS outbreak will take place through CDC's centralized
Emergency Communications System (ECS) and through the deployment of field
communication personnel. The responsibilities of CDC field personnel are to: 1)
inform and advise federal efforts about the local situation and developments, 2) coordinate
federal activities in such a manner that they do not contradict or otherwise impede local
efforts, and 3) support state and local communication efforts, as necessary. To facllitate
this coordination between state and local health department personnel and CDC
communication personnel, CDC has designated two critical positions -~ Field
Communication Media Liaison and Field Communication Community Liaison (described
below). These two roles correspond to the media relations and community
relations/outreach response functions described above.

| Appendix 5A
i
|

CDC Fleld Communication Medla Liaison (FCML)

Among the activities of the CDC Field Communication Media Liaison are to:

*  Work with state and local officiais to facilitate the effective management of local
communication efforts and the on-site communications center

*  Support state/fiocal officials in facilitating the provision and management of accurate,
timely, and relevant information te the public and media (and timely and appropriate
responses to errors and misinformation)

» Help enhance state and local communication efforts (e.g., obtain or verify
information, prepare and debrief subject matter experts)

*  Provide information to the federal (CDC and HHS) communication centers regarding
local issues and developments, and coordinate federal and state/iocal
communication.

»  Serve as the principal CDC media advisor in the field, and assist the CDC ECS
Leadership Team by serving as a media spokesperson when appropriate

+  Assist state and local officials in preparing statements and materials to inform the
public about a possible or known case of SARS in the jurisdiction, explain that heaith
officials are working with CDC to confirm or rule-out the diagnosis (or to prevent
further transmission}, and inform the public about measures underway to prevent
the spread of infection.

*  Work with the lead CDC Center for SARS (NCID) to determine the most appropriate
meassages and timing for the notification of the news media and general public and to
ensure proper clearance of messages and materials

»  Act as CDC representative for coordination with the JIC for factual and consistent
distribution of information and identification of information needs

*  As necessary, help locate authorized public health spokespersons, and assist in
directing local media to previously identified reliable state and local subject matter
experts on SARS (e.q., local health officers and infectious disease physicians)

«  Aggist state and local officials in preparing for media interviews, developing media
materials, and scheduling and managing media interviews. This includes
assisting with logistics and working with local, state, and local officials to lease space
as needed for briefings and other communications activities.

«  Provide regular updates to CDC'’s ECS regarding local developments, concerns, and
issues.
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CDC Field Communication Community Liaison (FCCL)

CDC's communication plans include a Field Communication Community Liaison to serve as
a ChC community relations advisor in the field. This person can assist local/state
health department officlals and the CDC SARS Response Team Leader in serving as a
contact point to local hospitals and infectious disease specialists. The liaison can play
an Important role in assisting with communication tasks relevant to the implementation
of control measures (e.g., use of personal protective eguipment, isolation and
quarantine). The liaison will attend all CDC response team meetings and provide
updates to the team leader and media lialson regarding community outreach and
education activities.

As many community relations activities are state and local responsibilities, the liaison
should coordinate with state and local officials to assess the need for assistance. Among
the activities of the CDC Field Communication Community Liaison are to:

»  Assist in identifying key community partners, developing and maintaining a contact
list of these partners, and scheduling and participate in daily briefings

*  Assist in the management of the Joint Information Center

*  Assist in the management of community outreach staff

» Assist in coordination and management of training and education outreach activities
for healthcare professionals

«  Assist with communication and educational activities for quarantined persons

+  Participate in daily staff meetings held by the CDC field team leader.

*  Send a daily community outreach activity report to the CDC team leader and to
CDC's DEOC

»  Request the DEOC to send new materials as updated and to provide information on
new and emerging questions and issues identified from hotlines and other sources

*  In coordination with local authorities, maintain a daily log of community information
activities to facilitate the subsequent evaluation of the outbreak response

» In coordination with local authorities, write, edit, approve, and initiate clearance
procedures for customized community cutreach materials, To avoid confusing or
contradictory messages, materials should be cleared by the JIC, program or content
expert, state/local health departments, CDC Atlanta, and HHS,

*  Assist HHS, CDC, and state and local officials in working with state and community
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

FYI all. Here are the dates of events our team has put together for the remainder of 2020. Good luck to us!!!!

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

Here is a current list of possible events for 2020 that may occur. There m'ay be additional ones that are scheduled that
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
this email. Please notify the sender immediately if you have received this email by mistake and delete this email from your system. If you are not the infended
recipient you are notified that disclosing, copying, distributing or taking any action in reliance on the contents of this information is strictly prohibited.

i Kelly Berg, REHS/RS | Consumer Protection Program Senior | Southwest District Health
? 13307 Miami Lane | Caldwell ID 83607 | ph: 208.455.5418 | fx: 208.455.5405
5 kelly.berg@phd3.idaho.gov | Healthier Together | www.swdh.org
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May 2020 Events

5/19-9/17/20

Farm to Fork Market

Indian Creek Plaza

June 2020 Events

6/3/20 Emmett Farmers Market
5/19-9/17/20 Farm to Fork Market Indian Creek Plaza
6/18/20 Seasonal Food Market Flying M Nampa
6/19/20 Sled Pull and Concert Gem County Fair Grounds
6/20/20 Wild West Brew Indian Creek Plaza
6/21/20 Cambridge Rodeo Bible Camp Washington County Fairgrounds
6/21/20 Father's Day Event Lake View Park Nampa
6/26/20 A" Fridays Lloyd Square-Nampa

July 2020 Events
7/4/20 Plaza Palooza indian Creek Plaza
7/4/20 Caldwell 4™ of July {pending)
7/4/20 Emmett 4 of July (pending)
7/4/20 Middleton 4™ of July (pending)
7/4/20 Council 4 of July (pending)
7/4/20 Homedale 4" of July
7/4/20 Wilder 4" of July
7/4/20 Greenleaf 4™ of July
7/14-7/18/20 Snake River Stampede Nampa Ford Center
7/16/20 Seasonal Food Market Flying M Nampa
7/18/20 Mid- Summer Vintage Indian Creek Plaza
7/23-7/26/20 Canyon County Fair Canyon County Fairgrounds
7/24/20 4" Fridays Lioyd Square-Nampa

7/25-7/27/20

Adams County Fair

7/27-8/1/20

Washington County Fair

7/29-8/1/20

Gem County Fair {including
carnival)

Gem County Fair Grounds

7/31-8/1/20

Blues on Indian Creek

Indian Creek Plaza

August 2020 Events

8/3-8/5/20 Owyhee County Fair

8/5-8/8/20 Payette Country Fair

8/8/20 Nampa Festival of Fine Arts Lakevue Park
8/15/20 Hot Potato Festival Indian Creek Plaza
8/16/20 Tajano Festival Indian Creek Plaza
8/18-8/20/20 Caldwell Night Rodeo

8/20/20 Seasonal Food Market Flying M Nampa
8/28/20 4" Fridays Lloyd Square-Nampa

8/28/20

Freedom Brew Festival

Indian Creek Plaza




September 2020 Events

9/5/20 Dia De Los Tacos indian Creek Plaza
9/13/20 Fiesta Patrias Caldwell Memorial Park
9/17/20 Seasonal Food Market Flying M Nampa

9/18-9/20/20

Big Nasty

9/18-9/20/20

Indian Creek Festival

Indian Creek Plaza

9/25/20 Relay for Life Indian Creek Plaza
9/25/20 4" Friday Lloyd Square-Nampa
October 2020 Events
10/24/20 The Great Downtown Harvest indian Creek Plaza
Festival
November 2020 Events
11/20/20 Winter Wonderland Indian Creek Plaza
December 2020 Events
12/5/20 Caldwell Night Parade

12/21/20

Winter Solstice Market

Indian Creek Plaza




Williams, Katrina

From: Zogg, Nikole

Sent: Thursday, June 04, 2020 12:20 PM

To: *Community Health Huddle

Subject: Fw: Network Report 6/4: Racism as a Public Health Crisis, COVID-19 and Health Justice

Webinar Series, Worker Protections for Reopening Businesses and more

FYl - some interesting topics in this report.

EI S :‘ Nikole Zogg | Director | Southwest District Health

' 13307 Miami Lane | Caldwell ID 83607 | ph: 208.455.5315 | cell: 208.546.8945
| Nikole.Zogg@phd3.idaho.gov | Healthier Together | www.swdh.org

i’

From: The Network for Public Health Law <info@networkforphl.org>

Sent: Thursday, June 4, 2020 10:21 AM

To: Zogg, Nikole

Subject: Network Report 6/4: Racism as a Public Health Crisis, COVID-19 and Health Justice Webinar Series, Worker
Protections for Reopening Businesses and more

Network Report
Thursday, June 4, 2020

We're seeing it first-hand in our communities and in decades of evidence: racist practices perpetuated and
sanctioned by laws and policies are at the root of the suffering endured by so many people of color, especially Black
people, in America. In the midst of a pandemic that is disproportionately affecting the Black community, the brutal
killing of George Floyd is yet another example of how structural racism enables egregious harm. Read more.

I

Law and Policy Perspectives:
Reopening America: Protecting Employees as They Return to Work during

COVID-19
Across America, governments are allowing businesses to reopen as the COVID-19 pandemic continues. Employees
may be eager to return to their jobs and income, but could be at heightened risk of COVID-19 transmission. While
companies may comply with state-level or CDC reopening guidance, it is not a foolproof guard against COVID-19.
Several types of legal claims may be available to protect employees that return to unsafe and unhealthy working
conditions during the COVID-19 pandemic.

Workplace Disparities: Gaps in COVID-19 Protections for Grocery Workers
Outside of health care providers on the frontlines of the COVID-19 pandemic, grocery store workers are among the
most at-risk essential employees. Protections for grocery workers are particularly important due to the

characteristics of the workforce, a significant number of which are people of color and those with disabilities, along

1



with older adults. Despite having a legal requirement to protect employees in the workplace under federal law, and
the added efforts many employers have taken, there are still significant gaps in protections.

e i— .

Resources:
Lifeline Program Provides Discounted Access to Needed Telephone and

Broadband Internet Services, but is Underutilized

Closing the digital divide is essential to promoting public health, particularly during the COVID-19 pandemic, as the
need for internet and phone access has increased due to social distancing measures and school closures. Many
individuals are newly eligible for discounts on broadband and phone services through the federal Lifeline program,
however as of April 28, 2020 only 7 million of 38 million eligible individuals had enrolled in the program. This fact
sheet provides information on the Federal Communications Commission’s Lifeline Program.

T =

Michigan Laws Related to Right of a Minor to Obtain Health Care without

Consent or Knowledge of Parents
This issue brief summarizes the rights of minors to consent to various types of health care without the consent or
knowledge of their parents. It also covers whether the law permits information concerning the minor’'s health care to
be shared with the parent. Though the details of this document apply only in Michigan, the legal provisions likely
have counterparts in other states.

G e

Legality of Dispensing and Administering Expired Naloxone in Georgia

While states have passed various laws designed to increase access to naloxone, a life-saving opioid overdose
reversal medication, none explicitly address the legality of dispensing naloxone that is past its expiration date. This
fact sheet discusses whether Georgia laws forbid the prescription, dispensing, distribution, possession, or
administration of expired naloxone and whether such actions impact the risk of civil liability for medical professionals
who prescribe or dispense naloxone or laypeople who distribute or administer it.

I

Webinars:

COVID-19: Innovations in Nutrition Programs to Address Food Insecurity
TODAY: June 4 | 1:00 — 2:00 p.m. ET

Among the public health challenges that accompany the devastating loss of employment for tens of millions of
Americans as a result of the COVID-19 Pandemic is an alarming increase in food insecurity. Join us for a webinar
on how child nutrition programs, specifically the Summer Food Service Program and Seamless Summer Option, can
be used to support students during the pandemic. The webinar will also include a summary of how SNAP and WIC
have been modified in response to the pandemic to better address the needs of Americans, an explanation of how
government is working to reduce food waste on farms and support the operations of the Nation’s food banks, and
examples of innovative policies implemented by states to address the food security of their vulnerable citizens.

Webinar Series: COVID-19: Public and Global Health Law and Ethics

Across Diverse Systems, Populations and Workforces

June 11, June 25, July 9

We're excited to announce a three-part webinar series in partnership with leading organizations in law, policy and
health care focusing on ethics in COVID-19 response. Join us to examine issues at the intersection of pandemic
response and human rights, crisis standards of care, and care for vulnerable populations.



Worth Sharing:

The Role of the Legal System in the Flint Water Crisis

This article, published in The Milbank Quarterly and co-authored by Network attorneys Peter D. Jacobson, Colleen
Healy Boufides, Denise Chrysler and Jennifer Bernstein, reports on findings from research into the Flint Water
Crisis. The authors conclude that flaws in both the legal structure and how the laws were implemented not only
failed to stop but also exacerbated the crisis in Flint. Legal preparedness, they write, could prevent future public
health crises by helping government officials understand and identify gaps in complex legal arrangements—and
better coordinate across agencies and levels of government.

Job Opportunity:

Staff Attorney

The Campaign for Tobacco-Free Kids seeks a Staff Attorney Based in Washington, D.C. The Staff Attorney will
provide legal and policy support for regulation of the tobacco industry, including e-cigarettes, by the Food and Drug
Administration, as well as state and local tobacco control efforts. The Staff Attorney will play a leading role in high-
profile litigation related to FDA regulation of tobacco products and the legal defense of state and local tobacco
control laws, including the preparation of amicus briefs. Af least 6 years of predominately litigation experience, is
required.

Tell Us What You're Working On.
We're Ready to Help.

Our law and policy experts can help you identify the key considerations central to your unique challenges and
provide law and policy pathways you can leverage to make a difference.

Reguest Assistance —

]

Thank you!

Your interest in the work of the Network is important. Together, we can advance law as a tool to improve public
health. Please forward the Network Report and encourage others to join the Network!

The Network for Public Health Law provides information and technical assistance on issues related to public health.
The legal information and assistance provided in this document does not constitute legal advice or legal
representation. For legal advice, readers should consult a lawyer in their state.

Our Contact Information
Network for Public Health Law
7101 York Avenue South
Suite 270

Edina, MN 55435
952-452-9706

Unsubscribe | Manage email preferences
You are receiving this newsletter because you either signed up to become a Network member, or you attended a Network event or
webinar. If you no longer wish to receive this newsletter you can manage your email preferences below.




Williams, Katrina

From: Carol Moehrle <CMoehrle@phd2.idaho.gov>

Sent: Friday, June 05, 2020 1:51 PM

To: grackow@phd?7.idaho.gov; Iwhalen@phd1.idaho.gov; Melody Bowyer;
mmann@phd6.idaho.gov; rduke@cdhd.idaho.gov; Zogg, Nikole

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

Please see the follow up information helow from the Whitehouse Briefing call on Wednesday.
Dr. Hahn and Dr. Ball,

Please note the new information about testing.

dave

Dave Jeppesen

Director

Idaho Department of Health & Welfare
208-334-5500

3 5
: & IDAND DEPARTMENT OF

! HEALTH « WELFARE

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

Some follow-up information from Wednesday’'s White House call.

McKenzie MacDonald

Scheduler | Office of Governor Brad Little



phone: (208) 854-3009
mobile: (208) 559-5888
email: mckenzie.macdonald(@gov.idaho.gov

From: Pottebaum, Nic D. EOP/WHO <Nicholas.D.Pottebaum@who.eop.gov>

Sent: Friday, June 5, 2020 11:34 AM

To: Pottebaum, Nic D. EOP/WHO <Nicholas.D.Pottebaum@who.eop.gov>

Cc: Hoelscher, Douglas L. EOP/WHO <Douglas.L.Hoelscher@who.eop.gov>; Obenshain, Tucker T. EOP/QVP
<Anne.T.Obenshain@ovp.eop.gov>; Swint, Zachariah D. EOP/WHO <Zachariah.D.Swint2@who.eop.gov>; Campana,
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

e Developing Innovative Approaches to Support the Reopening of Colleges and Universities

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




THE WHITE HOUSE

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

» Governor Greg Abbott of Texas highlighted efforts to inspect over 90% of nursing homes’ infectious
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
¢ CDC Contact Tracing Resources
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

Contacting Your FEMA Regional Administrator & FEMA Ietter to Our Nation’s Emergency

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

4. CDCis assessing and providing guidance and technical assistance to improve infection control
practices to nursing homes and State health departments.

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

¢ U.S. Department of Health & Human Services (HHS) is delivering $11 billion in new funding to
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

e Digital Contact Tracing Tools for COVID-19 (here)

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

IMPORTANT: This e-mail, including attachments, is covered by the Electronic Communications Privacy Act,
18 U.S.C. Sections 2510-2521, is confidential and may be legally privileged or otherwise protected from
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

EI s Nikole Zogg | Director | Southwest District Health

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

To: grackow@phd7.idaho.gov; Iwhalen@phdil.idaho.gov; Melody Bowyer; mmann@phdé6.idaho.gov;
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
<Emily.Callihan@gov.idaho.gov>; 'Louis Hougaard' <Louis.Hougaard @gov.idaho.gov>; Sara.Stover@gov.idaho.gov;
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

» -
; & IDAKD DEPARTMEANT OF

i HEALTH « WELFARE

From: Mckenzie Macdonald <Mckenzie.Macdonald @gov.idaho.gov>

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

o Opening Up America Again Testing Blueprint (Here; 11-pages)

Addendum — Areas of Focus
o Diagnosing Active Infection in Individuals




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

To: Nic Pottebaum (Nicholas.D.Pottebaum@who.eop.gov) <Nicholas.D.Pottebaum @who.eop.gov>

Cc: Douglas.L.Hoelscher@who.eop.gov; Obenshain, Tucker T. EOP/OVP <Anne.T.Obenshain@ovp.eop.gov>; Swint,
Zachariah D. EOP/WHO <Zachariah.D.Swint2 @who.eop.gov>; Campana, Ariella M. EOP/WHO
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
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